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Cautions regarding forward looking statements 

This document contains statements about expected future events and financial and operating 

results of  Rodium Realty Limited, which are forward looking. By the nature, forward-looking 

statements require the Company to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and 

uncertainties. There is significant risk that the assumptions, predictions and other forward-

looking statements as a number of  factors could cause assumptions, actual future results and 

events to differ materiality from those expressed in forward-looking statements. Accordingly, this 

document is subject to the disclaimer and qualified in its entirely by the assumptions, 

qualifications and risk factors referred to in the management’s discussion and analysis report of  

Rodium Realty Limited Annual Report 2024-2025. 
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Over the past year, our team of 
architects and designers has 
showcased exceptional 
innovation and precision, 
driving projects seamlessly 
from vision to realization. By 
integrating advanced 
technology with sustainable 
practices, they have 
consistently delivered designs 
that align with the changing 
demands of our clients. 
Guided by the expertise of our 
creative professionals, the 
management team has 
provided strong leadership to 
ensure successful execution of 
project works. Their support 
has enabled our architects and 
designers to excel, resulting in 
architectural solutions that 
surpass client expectations. 
Through a culture of 
collaboration, all departments 
remain aligned with our 
strategic direction and project 
objectives. With effective 
coordination, optimal resource 
utilization, and proactive 
decision-making, the 
management team has played 
a vital role in overcoming 
challenges and ensuring 
projects are delivered on 
schedule. 
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MESSAGE FROM 

CHAIRMAN AND MD’S 

DESK 

 

Dear Valued Shareholders,  

It gives me immense pleasure to 

present to you the Annual Report 

for FY 2024–25. I sincerely hope 

you and your families are in good 

health and high spirits. 

India continues to strengthen its 

position as one of the fastest-

growing economies in the world, 

backed by strong fundamentals, 

rising urbanisation, and sustained 

policy support. The real estate 

sector, a key contributor to GDP 

and employment, remains on a 

robust growth trajectory. With 

favourable demographics, expanding 

middle-class aspirations, and an 

increased focus on sustainable and 

smart living, the sector is witnessing 

renewed momentum across 

residential and redevelopment 

segments.
 

 

In FY 2024–25, your Company 

made significant strides in 

execution, customer engagement, 

and new project development. Our focus remained on timely delivery and uncompromised quality. The projects 

“X’enus” and “X’line”
 

has been completed in all respect and successful handover is done to valuable clients and 

customers.

 

Project “X’one”

 

is progressing as planned

 

and we are proud to state that Part OC has been obtained from 

MCGM for ground floor, first floor and first parking floor and successful handover ceremon y is also done. Our growth 

pipeline remains strong, with X’heights

 

to be launched and we have received the necessary development agreement 

from the concerned societies. For X’meadows project among the key projects presently under approvals. We continue 

to explore redevelopment opportunities in strategic micro-markets, reinforcing our belief  that this segment will remain 

a major driver of growth in Mumbai’s real estate landscape.

 

 

Our philosophy of blending design excellence with sustainable construction practices has been a guiding force. At 

every stage, we strive to integrate modern urban lifestyles with thoughtful community living. We remain committed to 

innovation, financial discipline, and transparent governance as the cornerstones of our growth strategy .

 

 

Looking ahead, we foresee a decade of sustained demand, supported by India’s growing urban population and the 

aspiration of NRIs and domestic buyers to invest in quality homes. Your Company is well -positioned to capitalise on 

this momentum, with a strong project pipeline, disciplined execution, and customer-first approach.

 

 

I take this opportunity to thank our employees for their hard work and commitment, the Board for its guidance, our 

bankers and partners for their support, and most importantly, you —

 

our shareholders —

 

for your trust and confidence 

in us. Together, we will continue to deliver value and shape communities that redefine modern living.

 

 

 

Sincerely,

 

Deepak Dungarshi Chheda

 

Chairman

 

and Managing Director
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SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION AT A GLANCE  

 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1. Day, Date and Time of  AGM  Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 at 12.00 Noon 
 

2. Mode Video-Conference (VC) and Other Audio-Visual 
Means (OAVM)  
 

3. Participation through VC/OAVM  Members can login 15 minutes before the time of  
AGM at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com  
 

4. Helpline Number for VC/ OAVM  Members who need assistance before or during 
the AGM, can contact NSDL on 
evoting@nsdl.co.in / 022-4886 7000 and 022-
2499 7000 

5. Speaker Registration before AGM By sending their request from their registered 
email address mentioning their name, DP ID and 
Client ID/Folio number, copy of  PAN, mobile 
number at cs@rodium.net and 
evoting@nsdl.co.in from September 20, 2025 
(9:00 a.m. IST) to September 26, 2025 (5:00 p.m. 
IST). Those members who have registered 
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the 
AGM. 
 

6. Recorded Transcript Will be made available post AGM at 
www.rodium.net   
 

7. Cut-off date for e-voting  Tuesday, September 23, 2025 
 

8. Book Closure Date Wednesday September 24, 2025 till Tuesday 
September 30, 2025 (both days inclusive) 
 

9. Remote e-voting start time and date  Friday, September 26, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) 
 

10. Remote e-voting end time and date Monday, September 29, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. (IST)  
 

11. Remote e-voting website  https://www.evoting.nsdl.com 
 

12. Name, address and contact details of 
e-voting service provider  

National Securities Depository Limited 
Trade World, ‘A’ Wing,  
4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, 
Senapati Bapat Marg,  
Lower Parel (West), 
Mumbai – 400 013 
Tel: (022) 2499 4200 
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13. Name, address and contact details of 

Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent  

Cameo Corporate Services Limited 
Subramanian Building, No. 1,  
Club House Road,  
Chennai 600002. 
Phone: 044-28460390 
Email id: investor@cameoindia.com 
Website: www.cameoindia.com  
 

14. Email Registration and Contact 
Updating Process 

Demat Shareholders:  
Contact respective Depository Participant 
Physical Shareholders: 
investor@cameoindia.com 
The Shareholders also can visit: 
URL at https://investors.cameoindia.com/ the 
web module maintained by Cameo. 
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NOTICE 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-Second (32nd) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members 
(“Members”) of RODIUM REALTY LIMITED  will be held through Video Conferencing (VC) or other 
Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 12:00 Noon to transact the following 
businesses: 
 

Ordinary Business: 
 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2025, and reports of Auditors thereon. 

 
3. To appoint Mr. Rohit Dedhia (DIN: 02716686), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 

offers himself for re-appointment as a director and in this regard, pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

 
"RESOLVED THAT  in accordance with the provisions of  Section 152 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rohit Dedhia (DIN: 02716686), who retires by 
rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of  the Company.” 

 
4. Appointment of M/s. M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP (Firm Registration No. 107122W/W100672) 

as the Statutory Auditors of the Company . 
 
To consider and, if  thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of  Sections 139, 142 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of  the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder as 
amended from time to time (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for 
the time being in force) and based on the recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors, M/s. M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP (Firm Registration No. 107122W/W100672) be and 
are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a term of five 
consecutive years from the conclusion of  the 32nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) until the 
conclusion of the 37th AGM of the Company,  on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed 
upon between the Board of  Directors and the Statutory Auditors.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the Board or any duly constituted Committee of  the Board, be 
and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary 
and/or expedient in connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing 
resolution.” 



     
 

Special Business: 
 

5. Approval of ‘Rodium – Employee Stock Option Scheme 2025’ 
 
To consider and, if  thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of  Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable 
provisions, if  any, of  the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, the provisions 
of  the Securities and Exchange Board of  India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021, as amended and enacted from time to time read with all circulars and 
notifications issued thereunder (“SBEB Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange Board of  
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR 
Regulations”), the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, the relevant provisions of 
Memorandum and Articles of  Association of  the Company and subject to such other approvals, 
permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications 
as may be prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, the consent of  the members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the introduction of  ‘Rodium – Employee Stock 
Option Scheme 2025’ (“ESOP 2025” or “Scheme”) and implementation through an irrevocable 
employee welfare trust namely ‘Rodium Employees Welfare Trust ’ (“Trust”) to be set up by the 
Company, the salient features of which are furnished in the Explanatory Statement annexed to 
this notice, and authorizing the Board of  Directors of  the Company (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any Committee, including the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee) to create, offer, issue, grant and allot from time to time, in one or 
more tranches, not exceeding 4,00,000 employee stock options (“Options”) to the eligible 
employees of  the Company, exclusively working in India or outside, exercisable into not more 
than 4,00,000 equity shares of  face value of  ₹ 10/- each fully paid-up (“Shares”), to be sourced 
from fresh issuance of shares by the Company, where one Option would convert into one equity 
share upon exercise. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  such Shares shall be transferred by the Trust to the grantees 
upon exercise of  Options in accordance with the terms of  the Scheme and shall rank pari passu in 
all respects with the then existing Shares of  the Company.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  in case of  corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus 
issues, merger, sale of  division, etc., additional Options may be granted and the ceiling of  total 
number of  Options and shares shall be deemed increased accordingly. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  in case of  sub-division or consolidation of  equity shares, the 
number of shares and acquisition price shall stand adjusted proportionately, without affecting the 
rights of the eligible employees.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the trustees of the Trust shall ensure compliance with SBEB 
Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and all applicable laws, including maintaining proper books 
and disclosures. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the Company and the Trust shall conform to applicable 
accounting policies under SBEB Regulations. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the Board be and is hereby authorized to modify, alter, amend, 
suspend or terminate the Scheme subject to applicable laws and to do all necessary acts and 
things to give effect to this resolution.” 
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6. Approval for provision of funds by the Company for purchase of shares by the Trust under 
‘Rodium – Employee Stock Option Scheme 2025’ 
 
To consider and if  thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of  Section 67 of  the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 16 of  the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 3(8) 
of  SBEB Regulations, LODR Regulations, and other applicable laws, consent of  the members be 
and is hereby accorded to authorize the Board (including any Committee) to grant a loan, 
provide guarantee or security, in one or more tranches, to the irrevocable employee welfare trust 
namely ‘Rodium Employees Welfare Trust ’ (“Trust”), to enable the Trust to acquire fully paid-
up equity shares of  face value ₹ 10/- each by way of  primary acquisition, for implementation of  
the ‘Rodium – Employee Stock Option Scheme 2025’ (“ESOP 2025” or “Scheme”). 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the loan disbursed shall be used only for the Scheme as per 
SBEB Regulations. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the loan shall be interest-free and repayable from exercise 
proceeds, sale/transfer of shares, or other income of  the Trust. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT  the Board is authorized to do all acts, deeds, and things 
necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
 
 

 
 

By order of  the Board of  Directors 
                                                                      For Rodium Realty Limited 

 
 
 

sd/- 
Riddhi Soni 

Company Secretary 
 
Registered Ofce: 
CIN: L85110MH1993PLC206012                                                                                    
501, X’Cube, Plot No. 636                                                                               
Opp. Fun Republic Theatre,                   
Off  Link Road, Andheri (West),          
Mumbai- 400053 
Tel: 91 22 4231 0800    
Website: www.rodium.net  
Email ID: cs@rodium.net 
 
Date: September 08, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 
 



     
 
 
NOTES: 
 

1. Conducting of AGM through 

VC/OAVM:  Ministry of  Corporate 

Affairs (MCA) vide its General 

Circulars nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 

20/2020, 2/2022, 11/2022 and 09/2023 

dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, 

May 5, 2020, May 5, 2022 and 

December 28, 2022, September 25, 2023 

and latest being 09/2024 dated 

September 19, 2024 (“MCA Circulars”) 

respectively, read with SEBI circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD-

2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 

2024 (collectively, the “said Circulars”), 

allowed companies to hold shareholders 

meeting through video conferencing or 

other audio visual means (“VC”) 

dispensing requirement of physical 

presence of members at a common 

venue, and other related matters with 

respect to such meetings. In accordance 

with the said circulars, the 32nd AGM of 

the Company shall be conducted 

through VC/OAVM. National 

Securities Depositories Limited 

(‘NSDL’) will be providing facility for 

voting through remote e-voting, for 

participation in the AGM through 

VC/OAVM facility and e -voting during 

the AGM. The procedure for 

participating in the meeting through 

VC/OAVM is explained at Note No. 14 

below and is also available on the 

website of  the Company at 

www.rodium.net.  

 
2. Appointment of Proxies and Authorised 

Representative(s): As the AGM shall be 
conducted through VC/OAVM, the 
facility for appointment of  Proxy by the 
Members is not available for this AGM 
and hence the Proxy Form and 
Attendance Slip including Route Map are 
not annexed to this Notice. 

 
Members of  the Company under the 
category of Institutional Investors are 
encouraged to attend and vote at the 
AGM through VC. Corporate members 
intending to authorize their 
representatives to participate and vote at 
the meeting are requested to send a 
certified copy of  the Board resolution / 
authorization letter ((PDF/JPG Format) 
to the Scrutinizer by email to 
bndesai4u@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to cs@rodium.net and 
evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 
3. Explanatory Statement: An Explanatory 

Statement relating to certain items of  
Ordinary Business i.e. Item No. 4 and 
items of Special Business, i.e. Item Nos. 5 
and 6, to be transacted at the AGM is 
annexed hereto. 
 

4. Quorum of AGM: Participation of 
members through VC will be reckoned for 
the purpose of  quorum for the AGM as 
per Section 103 of  the Companies Act, 
2013 (Act). 

 
5. Book Closure: The Register of Members 

and Share Transfer Books will remain 
closed from Wednesday , September 24, 
2025 till Tuesday, September 30, 2025 
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of 
Annual General Meeting. 
 

6. Re-appointment of Director: At the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting, Mr. 
Mr. Rohit Dedhia , Director of  the 
Company shall retire by rotation under 
the provisions of  the Act and being 
eligible, offers himself  for re-appointment. 
The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of  Directors of  
the Company have recommended the re-
appointment. 
 
Details as required Regulation 36(3) of  the 
Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India in respect of  the Directors seeking 
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re-appointment at the AGM are annexed 
hereto with this Notice. 

 
7. Dispatch of Annual Report: In 

accordance with the circulars issued by 
MCA and SEBI, the financial statements 
(including Report of Board of Directors, 
Auditor’s report or other documents 
required to be attached therewith), such 
statements including the Notice of  AGM 
are being sent in electronic mode to 
Members whose e-mail address is 
registered with the Company or the 
Depository Participant(s). 
 

8. Availability of Notice of AGM & 
Annual Report soft copy: The Notice of 
AGM along with Annual Report for the 
financial year 2024-2025, is available on 
the website of  the Company at 
www.rodium.net , on the website of  Stock 
Exchange i.e. BSE Limited and the AGM 
notice is also available on the website of 
NSDL (agency for providing the Remote 
e-voting facility) at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com .  
 

9. Procedure for inspection of documents: 
The Register of  directors and key 
managerial personnel and their 
shareholding, maintained under Section 
170 of  the Act, and the Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which the 
directors are interested, maintained under 
Section 189 of  the Act, will be available 

electronically for inspection by the 
members during the AGM.  
 
All documents referred to in the 
accompanying Notice shall be available 
for electronic inspection from the date of 
circulation of this Notice up to the date of  
AGM, i.e. September 30, 2025, basis the 
request being sent on email to 
cs@rodium.net. 

 
10. Members whose email address is not 

registered can register the same in the 
following manner for obtaining the copy 
of Annual Report: We urge members to 
support our commitment to 
environmental protection by choosing to 
receive the Company’s communication 
through email. Members holding shares in 
demat mode, who have not registered 
their email addresses are requested to 
register their email addresses with their 
respective depository participants, and 
members holding shares in physical mode 
are requested to update their email 
addresses with the Company’s RTA, 
Cameo Corporate Services Limited 
(Cameo) at 
https://investors.cameoindia.com/ to 
receive copies of  the Annual Report 2024-
25 in electronic mode. Members may 
follow the process detailed below for 
registration of  email ID to obtain the 
Annual Report and update of  bank 
account details for further 
correspondence. 

 
Type of 
holder 

Process to be followed 

 Registering email address & mobile 
Number 

Updating bank account details 

Physical •  by visiting URL at 
https://investors.cameoindia.com/ 
the web module maintained by 
Cameo; or  
 

•   Send a written request to the RTA 
of  the Company at 
investor@cameoindia.com by 
providing Folio Number, Name of 
the Member, Copy of  share 
Certificate (front & back), PAN(Self- 
attested copy of PAN Card), 

•  Send a written request to the RTA of  the 
Company at investor@cameoindia.com 
by the providing the following 
information and documents: 
 
- Folio Number, name of  the member. 
- Copy of  share Certificate (front & 

back). 
- Copy of self-attested PAN card of the 

shareholders including joint holders. 
- Copy of  self-attested AADHAAR 

card of  the shareholders including 
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AADHAAR (Self-attested copy of  
Aadhaar card).  

joint holders. 
-  Bank a/c details of  the first/sole 

shareholder, as per the Bank Mandate 
format available on company’s 
website at https://rodium.net/wp-
content/uploads/2025/02/PAN-
BANK-MANDATE -KYC-
UPDATION.pdf  

- Original cancelled cheque leaf  with 
the name of  the first/sole shareholder 
printed on it or copy of  bank 
passbook showing name & account 
details of  the account holder attested 
by the bank. 

Demat Please contact your DP and register your email address and bank account details in 
your demat account, as per the process advised by your DP.  

 
11. Intimation regarding change in bank details: Members whose shareholding is in dematerialized 

form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details such as bank account 
number, name of the bank and branch details, MIRC code and IFSC code, mandates, 
nominations, power of  attorney, change of  address, change of name, e-mail address, contact 
numbers, etc., to their Depository Participant (DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be 
automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will help the Company and Company’s 
RTA Cameo to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to intimate such changes to Company’s RTA Cameo. Members are encouraged to utilize 
the Electronic Clearing System (ECS) for receiving dividends. 
 

12. Mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN): The Securities and Exchange 
Board of  India (SEBI) vide its circular dated April 20th, 2018 has mandated the submission of  
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding 
shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form can submit their PAN to the Company or Company’s RTA Cameo.  

 
13. Securities can be transferred only in dematerialised form: As per Regulation 40 of  SEBI Listing 

Regulations, as amended, securities of  listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised 
form with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in case of  request received for transmission or 
transposition of  securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 
and for ease of  portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
consider converting their holdings to dematerialised form. 
 

14. Instructions for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM and remote e-voting (before and 
during the AGM) are given below:  
 

A. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM  
 

i. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through 
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned below 
for Access to NSDL e-voting system. After successful login, you can see link of  
“VC/OAVM” placed under “Join Meeting” menu against the Company’s name. You are 
requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for 
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of  Company 
will be displayed. Please note that the Members who do not have the User ID and 
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Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same 
by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the Notice to avoid last minute 
rush. 
 

ii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

iii. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
iv.  Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 

Laptops connecting via mobile hotspot might experience audio/video loss due to 
fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or 
LAN connection to mitigate any glitches. 

 
v.  The facility of  joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall open 15 minutes before the 

time scheduled for the AGM and will be available for Members on first come first served 
basis. Facility for joining AGM will be closed on expiry of  15 minutes from schedule time 
of  the AGM.  
 

vi. The facility of  participation at the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be available for 1000 
members on first come first served basis. However, this will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committe e, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of  
first come first served. 
 

vii. Members, who need assistance before or during the AGM, may: 
•  Send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or 022 - 4886 7000  

 
B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS TO ASK QUESTIONS/SEEK CLARIFICATION WITH 

RESPECT TO ANNUAL REPORT: 
 

i. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address 
mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, copy of PAN, mobile number 
at cs@rodium.net and evoting@nsdl.co.in from Saturday, September 20, 2025 (9:00 a.m. 
IST) to Friday, September 26, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST) (both days inclusive). Those Members 
who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the AGM.  
 

ii. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of  speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM.  
 

iii. Members intending to require information about accounts to be explained in the meeting 
are requested to inform the Company at least seven days in advance of  the Annual General 
Meeting. 
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C. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 

GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 

(i) The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, September 26, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends 
on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 
Register of  Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Tuesday, 
September 23, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders 
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of  the Company as 
on the cut-off date, being September 23, 2025. 

 
(ii) Pursuant to the provisions of  Section 108 of  the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of  SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations  2015 
(as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of  Corporate Affairs, the Company 
is pleased to provide the facility to its members to exercise their right to vote on the 
resolutions proposed to be passed at AGM by electronic means through the electronic 
voting (“e-voting”) facility provided by the NSDL.  

 
(iii) The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of  Beneficial Owners 

as on Tuesday, September 23, 2025, i.e., the date prior to the commencement of  book 
closure, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this 
Notice. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off  date should treat this Notice of 
AGM for information purpose only. 

 
(iv) In addition, the facility for voting through electronic voting system shall also be made 

available during the AGM. Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by 
remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast their vote through e-voting during the AGM. 
Members who have voted through remote e -voting shall be eligible to attend the AGM, 
however, they shall not be eligible to vote at the meeting. Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to access the remote e-voting facility provided by the Company 
through NSDL e-voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ . The voting rights of 
Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date. 

 
(v) Any person holding shares in physical form, and non-individual shareholders who acquire 

shares of the Company and become members of the Company after the Notice is sent and 
holding shares as of  the cut-off  date, i.e. September 23, 2025, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if  he / she is already 
registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then he / she can use his / her existing user ID 
and password for casting the vote. In case of individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode, who acquire shares of  the Company and become members of  the Company 
after the Notice is sent and holding shares as of  the cut-off  date i.e. September 23, 2025, 
may follow steps mentioned in the Notice under “Instructions for e-voting”. 

 
D. MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO FOLLOW THE INSTRUCTIONS BELOW TO CAST THEIR 

VOTES THROUGH E-VOTING: 
 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of  “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
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STEP 1: ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs in order to access e-voting 
facility. 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of  NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On 

the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to 

enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of  NSDL for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

2. If  you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 

click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of  NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/  either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of  e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 

site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e -

Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi 

/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click 

on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 

username & password.  

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the e -voting option, the user 

will be able to see e-Voting page of  the e-Voting service provider for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links 

provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the 

user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. If  the user is not 

registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

3. If  the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. Alternatively, the user can 

directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and 

PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. 

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 

& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress 

and also able to directly access the system of  all e-Voting Service Providers.  

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the log in credentials of  your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 

logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 

wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e -Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 
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Important Note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use Forgot User 
ID and Forgot Password option available at abovementioned website.  
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL: 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 
022 - 4886 7000  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 
22 55 33  

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www .evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if  you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 

your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.  

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e., Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if  your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example, if  your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 
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12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example, if  folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If  you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote.  

b) If  you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 

password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change 

your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If  your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 

to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 

i.e. a .pdf  file. Open the .pdf  file. The password to open the .pdf  file is your 8 digit 

client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 

number for shares held in physical form. The pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 

your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If  your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process 

for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6. If  you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If  you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com .  

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com . 

c) If  you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 

name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 

e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 
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8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.  

9. After you click on the “Login” button, home page of e -Voting will open. 

 
STEP 2: CAST YOUR VOTE ELECTRONICALLY AND JOIN GENERAL MEETING ON NSDL 
E-VOTING SYSTEM:  
 
A. How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status . 
 

2. Select “EVEN” of  company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you 
need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.  
 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 
 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 
 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  
 
B. Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of  shareholder, 

scanned copy of  the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of  
PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of  Aadhar Card) by email to 
cs@rodium.net. 
 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID 
or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of  Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to cs@rodium.net. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in 
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at Step 1 (A) i.e., 
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode. 
 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 
4. In terms of  SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.     
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.  
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E. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM 

ARE AS UNDER: - 
 

1. The procedure for e-voting on the day of  the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting. 

 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e -Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
AGM. 
 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e -Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.  

 

4. The details of  the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote 
e-voting. 

 
GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS: 

 
15. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 

to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com  to reset the password. 
 

16. The voting rights shall be as per the number of equity shares held by the Member(s) as on Tuesday, 
September 23, 2025 being the cut-off  date. Members are eligible to cast vote electronically only if 
they are holding shares as on that date. 

 
17. The Company has appointed Mr. Bhavesh Naginbhai Desai, Practicing Advocate (Registration 

no MAH/711/2019) of M/s. B. Desai & Associates, as the Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  The Members desiring to vote through remote e-
voting are requested to refer to the detailed procedure given hereinafter.  

 
18. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of  voting at the AGM, first count the votes 

cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and within 2 
working days of  conclusion of  the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of  the total votes cast 
in favour or against, if  any, and submit to Managing Director or a person authorised by him in 
writing. 

 
19. The results of the electronic voting shall be declared to the Stock Exchange “BSE Limited” where 

shares of  Company are listed not later than 48 hours or two working days of the conclusion of  
AGM. The results along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall also be placed on the website of the 
Company at www.rodium.net  

 
20. The venue of the me eting shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of  the Company at Plot No. 

636, 501, X'cube, Off New Link  Road, Andheri (West) Mumbai – 400053, Maharashtra, India. 
      
21. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, and Rule 19(1) of  the Companies (Share Capital and 

Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members holding shares in physical form may file nomination in the 
prescribed Form SH.13 with Company’s RTA Cameo. In respect of  shares held in dematerialize 
form, the nomination may be filed with the respective Depository Participants. 

 
22. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.  
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,  2013  

Item No. 4: 

The Members of  the Company at the 27th AGM held on September 30, 2020 had approved the 
appointment of  M/s SCA & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101174W) as the 
Statutory Auditors of  the Company to hold office for a term of  5 (five) consecutive years from the 
conclusion of said AGM till the  conclusion of the 32nd AGM.  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board), at its meeting held on August 13, 2025, considering 
the experience and expertise and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed to 
the Members of  the Company, appointment of  M/s. M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 107122W/W100672), as Statutory Auditors of  the Company in place of  M/s. 
SCA & Associates. The proposed appointment is for a term of  5 (five) consecutive years from the 
conclusion of  32nd AGM till the conclusion of  the 37th AGM on payment of  such remuneration as may 
be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors, from time to time. 
 
Pursuant to Section 139 of  the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules framed thereunder, the 
Company has received written consent from M/s. M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP and a certificate that they 
satisfy the criteria provided under Section 141 of the Act and that the appointment, if made, shall be in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of  the Act and Rules framed thereunder. As required under the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,  M/s. M. M. Nissim & Co. 
LLP, has confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of  ICAI.  
 
None of  the Directors or other Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or interested 
(financially or otherwise) in this Resolution. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at 
Item No. 4 for the approval of  Members. 
 
Item No 5 & 6: 
 
The Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘ESOP’) is a tool to motivate the employees of  the Company for 
their contribution towards the growth of the Company, to foster a spirit of  entrepreneurial mindset, and 
to retain them for ensuring sustained growth. ESOP enables the alignment of  personal goals of  the 
employees with organisational objectives by allowing their participation in the ownership of  the 
Company.  
 
ESOP has become a necessary tool to attract good external talent and many of the recruits who already 
enjoy ESOP’s in their existing organizations seek a similar participative compensation. 
 
Keeping the aforesaid objectives in mind and based on the recommendation of  the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (’NRC’), the Board of  Directors at their meeting held on August 13, 2025, 
formulated and approved the ‘Rodium Employees Stock Option Scheme 2025’ (‘ESOP 2025’), subject to 
the approval of  the members, in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 including any  statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof  (hereinafter referred to as ‘SEBI Regulations’) and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof. 
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ESOP 2025 shall be administered and implemented through a Trust (hereinafter referred to as ‘Trust’). 
The Trust shall acquire equity shares of the Company by subscribing to fresh issue of equity shares by the 
Company (‘Primary Acquisition’).  Towards the said acquisition and implementation of  the ESOP 2025, 
the Company proposes to provide financial assistance by way of  an interest free loan (if  permissible) or by 



 
In terms of Regulation 6 of SEBI Regulations, for offer of the ESOP 2025 to the employees of  the 
Company, approval of  the members by way of  Special Resolution is required. Further, approval of 
members is required for provision of financial assistance by the Company to the Trust for acquisition of 
equity shares of  the Company.  
 
Accordingly, the Resolu tions contained at Item Nos. 4 & 5 set out in this Notice are being placed for 
approval of  the Shareholders of  the Company. 
 
I. The salient features of the ESOP 2025 are as under:  
 
a) Brief description of the ESOP 2025: 

 
ESOP 2025 shall be implemented through an Irrevocable Trust proposed to be setup in accordance 
with provisions of  the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and as per the requirements prescribed under SEBI 
Regulations.  
 
ESOP 2025 shall apply only to the employees, working in India or outside India, including any 
Director, whether whole-time or otherwise (other than the employees or Directors who are Promoter 
or person belonging to the Promoter Group, Independent Directors of  the Company and Directors 
holding directly or indirectly more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the  Company).  
 
The NRC of  the Company shall act as Compensation Committee for the supervision of ESOP 2025 
and the Trust shall administer ESOP 2025

 
under the

 
guidance of  the NRC. All questions of 

interpretation of  ESOP 2025
 
shall be

 
determined by the NRC or Trust as per the terms of ESOP 

2025.
 
ESOP 2025

 
shall be deemed to have come into force on the date of receipt of

 
shareholders’ 

approval.
  

 
The objectives of  the ESOP 2025

 
are:

 
 
•
 

To motivate the employe es / directors with incentives and reward opportunities;
 

•
 

To achieve sustained growth of the Company and the creation of  shareholder
 
value by aligning 

the interests of  the employees / directors which will lead to
 
long-term wealth creation; and 

 
•
 

To create a sense of  ownership and participation amongst the employees /
 
directors or otherwise 

increase their proprietary interest.
 

 b)
 

Total number of options to be granted:
 

 The total number of  stock options to be granted under the ESOP 2025
 
shall not

 
4,00,000 equity 

shares. Each option shall be convertible into
 
one equity share of Rs 10/-

 
(Rupees Ten

 
Only) each 

fully paid-up.
 
In case of  any corporate action(s) such as rights issue, bonus issue, merger,

 
demerger, 

sale of  division, expansion of capital, change in capital structure and
 
others, if  any, additional 

employee stock options of  the Company shall be granted
 
to the employees for the purpose of making 

a fair and reasonable adjustment
 
to the stock options granted to them and accordingly, t he above 

ceiling in terms of
 
number of  equity shares shall be deemed to be increased in proportion to the

 additional equity shares issued in the aforesaid corporate action(s).
  

providing guarantee or security for the loan granted by any Bank or Financial Institution or by way of  
any other permitted means, in one or more tranches, to the Trust, in accordance with SEBI Regulations, 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and other applicable laws.   

 In case the equity shares of  the Company are either sub-divided or consolidated,
 
then the number of 

equity shares to be transferred by the Trust and the price of
 
acquisition payable by the option grantees 

under ESOP 2025
 
shall automatically

 
stand augmented or reduced, as the case may be, in the same 

proportion, as the
 
present face value of  Rs 10/-

 
(Rupees Ten

 
only) per equity share shall bear to the

 revised face value of  the equity shares of  the Company after such sub-division or
 
consolidation, 

without affecting any other rights or obligations of  the said option
 
grantees and the ceiling in terms of 

number of  equity shares specified above shall
 
be deemed to be adjusted accordingly .
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c) Identification of classes of employees entitled to participate in the ESOP 2025: 

 
Following classes of  employees are entitled to participate in the ESOP 2025: 
 
(i) an employee as designated by the company, who is exclusively working in India or outside India;  
(ii) a director of the company, whether a whole -time director or not, including a non-executive 

director other than the employees or Directors who are Promoter or person belonging to the 
Promoter Group, Independent Directors of  the Company and Directors holding directly or 
indirectly more than 10% of  the outstanding equity shares of  the Company 
 

The stock options to be granted to the employees would be based on eligibility criteria (including but 
not limited to performance, merit, grade, conduct and length of  service of  the employee) determined 
by the NRC, in its absolute discretion, from time to time. 
 

d) Requirements of vesting, period of vesting and maximum period within which options shall be 
vested: 
 
There shall be a minimum period of one year between the grant of stock options and vesting of  stock 
options. The stock options granted to any employee shall vest, in one or more tranches, within the 
vesting period in the manner as set forth in the grant letter subject to maximum period of 5 years 
from the date of  grant or such lesser period as may be decided by the NRC at its sole discretion from 
time to time. 
 
Subject to the terms of  the ESOP 2025, the vesting of  stock options shall be time based and/or linked 
to Company’s Performance (based on the parameters as may be determined by NRC) as mentioned 
in the grant letter. The vesting of  Stock Options shall be governed by the terms and conditions as 
provided under the ESOP 2025.  
 

e) Exercise Price/Pricing formula: 
 
The exercise price of  stock options shall be INR 50/- (Indian Rupees Fifty) per option.  
 

f) Exercise Period and the process of Exercise: 
 
The stock options which have been granted and vested shall be exercised by the employee within the 
exercise period in the manner as set forth in the grant letter subject to maximum of  1 year from date 
of  vesting. For the purpose of  exercise of vested stock options, the employee is required to pay 
exercise amount along with perquisite tax and submit an exercise letter to the Company/Trust. 
 
The vested stock options will lapse if  not exercised within the specified exercise period. 
 
 

g) Appraisal Process for determining the eligibility of the employees to ESOP 2025: 
 
The stock options to be granted to the employees would be based on eligibility criteria (including but 
not limited to performance, merit, grade, conduct and length of  service of  the employee) determined 
by the NRC, in its absolute discretion, from time to time. 
 

h) Maximum number of stock options to be issued per employee and in aggregate: 
 
Maximum number of  stock options that can be granted per employee during the tenure of the ESOP 
2025 shall not exceed 35,000 stock options. Further, the maximum number of stock options, in 
aggregate, that may be granted pursuant to ESOP 2025 shall not exceed 4,00,000 stock options. 
 
The above numbers will be subject to adjustment with regards to various corporate actions which the 
Company may come out with.  
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i) Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per employee under ESOP 2025: 

 
The maximum quantum of  benefits underlying the stock options granted to an employee can be 
construed to be an amount equal to the appreciation in the value of  the Company’s equity shares 
determined as on the date of  exercise of  stock options, on the basis of  difference between the stock 
option Exercise Price and the Market Price of the equity shares on the exercise date.  
 

j) Whether the ESOP 2025 is to be implemented and administered directly by the Company or 
through a Trust: 
 
The ESOP 2025 will be implemented through an Irrevocable Trust proposed to be setup in 
accordance with provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and as per the requirements prescribed 
under SEBI Regulations.  
 

k) Whether the ESOP 2025 involves new issue of shares by the Company or secondary acquisition or 
both: 
 
The ESOP 2025 will be implemented through a Trust involving new issue of  equity shares by the 
Company.   
 

l) Amount of loan to be provided for implementation of the ESOP 2025 by the Company to the 
Trust, its tenure, utilization, repayment terms, etc.: 
 
The Board or the Committee of  the Board shall decide on the amount of  loan including by way of  
providing guarantee or security for the loan granted by any Bank or Financial Institution or by way 
of  any other permitted means, its tenure and terms thereof  to be provided to the Trust for the purpose 
of implementation of  the ESOP 2025. 
 
The funds provided will be utilized by the Trust, inter-alia, for fresh issue of  equity shares by the 
Company. The repayment terms shall be mutually determined  between the Board or the Committee 
of  the Board and the Trustees. 
 

m) Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition (subject to limits specified under the Regulations) 
that can be made by the Trust for the purposes of the ESOP 2025: 
 
Not Applicable 
      

n) A statement to the effect that the Company shall conform to the accounting policies specified in 
Regulation 15 of SEBI Regulations: 
 
The Company shall comply with the disclosure and accounting policies prescribed in Regulation 15 
of  SEBI Regulations and any other authorities as applicable, from time to time. 
 

o) Method of valuation of stock option by the Company: 
 
The Company shall use the Fair Value Method for valuation of  the stock options as prescribed under 
the Accounting Standards, as applicable and notified by appropriate authorities from time to time. 
 

p) Declarations: 
 
In case, the Company opts for expensing of  share-based employee benefits using the intrinsic value, 
the difference between the employee compensation cost so computed and the employee 
compensation cost that shall have been recognized if  it had used the fair value of  the stock options 
shall be disclosed in the Directors’ Report and the impact of  this difference on profits and on Earning 
Per Share (EPS) of  the Company shall also be disclosed in the Directors’ Report. 
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q) Period of lock-in: 
 
The equity shares allotted upon exercise of  stock options under the ESOP 2025 are not subject to any 
lock in period. 
 

r) Terms & conditions for buyback, if any, of specified securities covered under SEBI Regulations: 
 
The Board in accordance with applicable laws shall lay down the procedure for  buy-back of  specified 
securities issued under ESOP 2025, to be undertaken by the Company at any time under the SEBI 
(Buyback of  Securities) Regulations, 2018, which shall also include: 
(i) permissible sources of financing for buy-back; 
(ii) any minimum financial thresholds to be maintained by the company as per its last financial 
statements; and 
(iii) limits upon quantum of  specified securities that the company may buy-back in a financial year 
 

II. The details required in the Explanatory Statement for the provision of money, under Section 67 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 16 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules, 2014, as amended, are as follows: 

 
a) Class of employees for whose benefit the ESOP 2025 is being implemented and money is being 

provided for purchase of shares: 
 
As mentioned in Clause I.(c) above.  

 
b) Particulars of the Trustee(s) or Employees in whose favour such shares are to be registered: 

 
The Trust will acquire equity shares by way of  primary issuance by the Company. The equity shares 
will be registered in the name of  all or any of  the Trustees of  the Trust to hold equity shares of  the 
Company for and on behalf  of the Trust. The equity shares acquired by the Trust shall be transferred 
to the employees on exercise of  vested stock options and registered in their respective names upon 
such transfer. 
 
 

     
c) The particulars of Trust and name, address, occupation and nationality of Trustees and their 

relationship with the Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), if any: 
 
i)  Particulars of Trust: 
 
An Irrevocable Trust is proposed to be set-up with the name ‘Rodium Employees Welfare Trust’ ’ or 
such other name as may be decided by NRC/Board, having its office at such place as may be decided 
by the Board. 
 
ii) Particulars of Trustee: 
 
The Trustee(s) of  the Trust would be appointed by the Board/NRC and in compliance with the 
applicable provisions of  the Act and the SEBI Regulations. A person shall not be appointed as a 
Trustee, if  he/she is a director, key managerial personnel or promoter of the Company or any relative 
of  such director, key managerial personnel or promoter or if  he/she beneficially holds 10% or more 
of  the paid-up share capital of  the Company.  
 

d) Any interest of Key Managerial Personnel, Directors or Promoters in such ESOP 2025 or Trust 
and effect thereof: 
 
As per the SEBI Regulations and terms of  ESOP 2025, the Promoters and Independent Directors of 
the Company are not entitled to any stock options. The key managerial personnel and non-promoter 
directors of  the Company may be deemed to be concerned or interested in ESOP 2025 to the extent 
of  the number of  stock options that may be granted to them pursuant to ESOP 2025. 
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e) The detailed particulars of benefits which will accrue to the employees from the implementation 

of ESOP 2025: 
 
The eligible employees shall be granted stock options under ESOP 2025 which would vest subject to 
vesting conditions. After vesting and on exercise of  the stock options, the Trust/ Trustees shall 
transfer corresponding number of  equity shares to the employees at the pre-determined exercise price 
as per the terms of the grant. 
 
The employees would get the benefit on sale of equity shares depending on sale price of such equity 
shares. 
 

f) The details about who would exercise and how the voting rights in respect of the shares to be 
purchased or subscribed under the ESOP 2025 would be exercised: 
 
The voting rights in respect of  the equity shares will be exercised by the employees on transfer of  
equity shares by the Trust to them upon exercise of  the stock options. The Trustees of  the Trust shall 
not vote in respect of  the equity shares held by the Trust. 
 
As the ESOP 2025 provides for issue of  shares to be offered to persons other than existing 
shareholders of  the Company, consent of  the shareholders is being sought pursuant to Section 62(1) 
and all other applicable provisions, if  any, of the Act and relevant SEBI Regulations. 
 
The draft copy of the ESOP 2025 and Trust deed are available for inspection at the  Company’s 
Registered Office during official hours on all working days. Alternately,  members may also send their 
requests to cs@rodium.net from their registered e-mail addresses mentioning their names, folio 
numbers, DP ID and Client ID during the voting period of  the Postal Ballot. 
      
None of  the Promoters and Independent Directors of  the Company and their relatives are concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise in the Resolutions stated at Item Nos. 5 & 6. Other Directors 
and Key Managerial Personnel may be deemed to be interested in the above resolutions to the extent 
of  their respective shareholding in the Company and number of  stock options which may be granted 
to them, if  any, pursuant to implementation of  the ESOP 2025. 
 
The Board accordingly recommends the passing of  the Special Resolutions set out at item Nos. 5 to 6 
in this Notice for approval of  members.  
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

 
Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 

[Pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings] 

 

  Mr. Rohit Dedhia 

 

Director Identification Number (DIN) 02716686 
Nationality Indian 
Date of Birth May 13, 1965 
Age 59 years 
Date of Appointment on the Board November 14, 2009 
Qualification B. Com, University of  Mumbai 
Nature of  Expertise in functional areas Having 25+ years of  experience in project 

execution, operation and financial management 
services. 
 

Number of  Board Meetings attended 8 out of  8 Meetings held during the Financial Year 
2024-2025 during the year 
 

Terms and Conditions of  Re-appointment The terms and conditions of  appointment shall be 
governed by the approval of  shareholders as set out 
in the Notice of  the Annual General Meeting. 
 

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 
2025 including shareholding as a beneficial owner 

3,19,466 Equity Shares 

Relationship with other Directors /Key 
Managerial Personnel 

Not related to Director / Key Managerial 
Personnel 

Directorships of  other board of  director of  listed 
entity as on March 31, 2025 

Nil 

Membership / Chairmanship* of Committees of 
other board of  other listed entity as on March 31, 
2024 

Member of  Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
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Statutory Disclosure 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
To the Members, 
 
The Board of  Directors are pleased to present the 32nd (Thirty-Second) Annual Report on the 
Business and Operations along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2025. 
 

1) Financial Results: 
 
The Summarized position of  these results are given below:                           (Rs. in Lakhs) 

 
The above data has been extracted from the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements prepared 

in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as notified under Section 133 of  the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards Rules, 2015) and the relevant provisions of the 

Act, as applicable. 

2) State of Company’s Affairs: 
 
During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has on a standalone basis, earned total revenue of 
Rs. 1326.35 Lakhs as against Rs. 2382.95 Lakhs during the previous financial year. The Company 
reported the Profit before Tax of Rs. 308.63 Lakhs during the current financial year as against Rs. 
39.30 Lakhs Profit before tax during the previous financial year. The Company reported the Net 
Profit of  Rs. 278.04 Lakhs during the current financial year as compared to Net Profit of  Rs. 19.29 
Lakhs during the previous financial year. 
 
During the financial year 2024-2025, the Company has on a consolidated basis, earned the total 
revenue of  Rs. 6264.75 Lakhs as against Rs. 4892.77 Lakhs during the previous financial year. The 
Company reported the Profit before tax of  Rs. 592.05 Lakhs as against Rs. 347.93 Lakhs Profit before 
tax during the previous financial year. The Company reported the Net Profit of  Rs. 344.07 Lakhs 
during the current financial year as compared to Net Profit of  Rs. 132.14 Lakhs during the previous 
financial year. 

Particulars Standalone Consolidated 

 Year ended 

March 31, 

2025 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2025 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024 

Revenue from operations 1003.71 1981.10 6155.54 4755.04 

Other income 322.64 401.85 109.21 137.73 

Total revenue 1326.35 2382.95 6264.75 4892.77 

Expenses 1017.72 2343.65 5672.70 4544.84 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 308.63 39.30 592.05 347.93 

Tax expenses 30.59 20.01 247.98 215.79 

Profit/(Loss) After tax 278.04 19.29 344.07 132.14 
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3) Review of operations and business: 
 
Your Company continues to be actively engaged in the Construction and Real Estate sector. The year 
under review marked a period of  steady progress and improved profitability, primarily driven by the 
near completion of  ongoing projects and the consequent increase in sales revenues. 

 
During the year, the Company successfully completed its flagship projects “Xenus – Where Life 
Resides” and “Xline – Smart, Serene, Spectacular”, both of  which have received their Occupation 
Certificates. In addition, operations commenced for another project, “Xone” in Kandivali, Mumbai,  
where part Occupation Certificate has been secured for the commercial units. 

 
Looking ahead, the Company has in its pipeline an upcoming development, “X-Heights – World of 
Delight”, also located in Kandivali. The project is currently in the regulatory clearance stage, and 
operations are expected to commence upon receipt of  the necessary approvals. Further details of  this 
project are provided in the section titled Management Discussion and Analysis Report, forming an integral 
part of  this Annual Report. 
 

4) Share Capital: 
 
There is no change in the share capital during the current financial year. Your Company has two 
classes of shares, viz. Equity Shares and Preference Shares. 
 
The Authorized Share Capital of  the Company as at March 31, 2025 comprises of  Rs.13,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Thirteen Crores Only) consisting of the following: (a) 60,00,000 (Sixty Lakhs) Equity Shares 
of  Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each amounting to Rs. 6,00,00,000/ - (Rupees Six Crores Only) and 
(b) 70,00,000 (Seventy Lakhs) 6% Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of  Rs. 
10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each amounting to Rs. 7,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Crores Only). 
 
The Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2025 comprise of 
Rs. 10,24,79,000/- Crore, (Rupees Ten Crore Twenty -Four Lakh Seventy-Nine Thousand Only) 
divided into 32,47,900 (Thirty-Two Lakh Forty-Seven Thousand Nine Hundred) equity shares of  Rs. 
10/- each, fully paid up, and 70,00,000 (Seventy Lakh) 6% Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible 
Preference Shares of  Rs.10/- each, fully paid up. The Company had forfeited shares amounting to Rs. 
4,85,400/- (Rupees Four Lakhs Eighty Five Thousand Four Hundred Only). 
 
During the year, there was no public issue, rights issue, bonus issue or preferential issue etc.  
 
The Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor has it 
granted any stock options during the year under review.  
 

5) Transfer to Reserves: 
 
The Company has not transferred any amounts to the reserves during the year under review.  
 

6) Deposits: 
 
In terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of  Deposit) 
Rules, 2014, during the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted any fixed 
deposits from the public. 
 

7) Dividend: 
 
The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 
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8) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments: 
 
The Company has complied with provisions of  Section 186 of  the Act, to the extent applicable with 
respect to Loans, Guarantees or Investments during the year.  
 
Details of  loans and guarantee given, Investments made and securities provided under Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are given under the Notes to the financial statements. 
 

9) Material Changes and Commitments affecting the financial position of the Company: 
 
There have been no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of  the 
Company which have occurred between March 31, 2025 and the date of  this Report, other than those 
disclosed in this Report. 
 

10) Material orders passed by the regulators/court/ tribunals impacting the going concern status and 
the Companies future operations: 
 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators/courts/tribunals which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 

11) Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis report has been separately annexed to the Annual Report 
and forms a part of the Annual Report. 
 

12) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): 
 
As per the provisions of  Section 135 of  the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(“CSR”) is not applicable to your Company as it does not satisfy any criteria prescribed. 
 

13) Auditors and their Reports: 
 
Statutory Auditor’s 
 
M/s. SCA and Associates, Chartered Accountants, who were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company for a term of  5 (five) consecutive years from the 27th Annual General Meeting of  the 
Company held on September 30, 2020, their term will conclude at the ensuing 32nd Annual General 
Meeting of  the Company. 
 
The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of  the Company forms part of  this 
Report. There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the 
Auditors in their Report and notes to the Accounts wherever given are self -explanatory hence do not 
require any clarification by the Directors of  the Company. 
 
Pursuant to recommendation by Audit Committee, the Board of Directors recommended the 
appointment of  M/s. M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, (Firm Registration No. 107122W/W100672), as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five consecutive years i.e. from 
financial year 2025-26 to Financial year 2029-30. 
 
Secretarial Auditor’s 
 
As required under provisions of  Section 204 of  the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of  Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed 
Mr. Kaushal Doshi, proprietor of M/s. Kaushal Doshi & Associates (CP No. 13143), Practicing 
Company Secretary, to act as Secretarial Auditor of  the Company and to undertake Secretarial Audit 
of  the Company.   
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The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the FY 2024-25 is annexed herewith as “Annexure 
A” and forms part of the Board’s Report. The Secretarial Report doesn’t contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark, however the comments given by the Secretarial Auditor are mentioned 
in detail in the Report. 
 

14) Secretarial Standards: 
 
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards 
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of  India.  
 

15) Matters related to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of  Section 152 of  the Companies Act, 2013 and Article of 
Association of  the Company, Mr. Rohit Dedhia  (DIN: 02716686) Whole-Time Director of  the 
Company retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible has 
offered himself  for re-appointment. The Board recommends his reappointment. The resolution for his 
reappointment is incorporated in the Notice of  the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and the brief  
profile and other information as required under Regulation 36(3) of  SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) relating to him forms part of the 
Notice of ensuing Annual General Meeting.  
 
During the year under review, based upon the recommendation of  Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and subject to the approval of  shareholders, Board has appointed Mr. Karan Rajendra 

Mehta (DIN: 10566820), Ms. Shachi Manish Shah (DIN: 10566841) and Mr. Dushyant Shyam 

Lilani (DIN: 06893481) as the Additional Directors in the capacity of Non-Executive, Independent 

Directors of  the Company for the first term of  five years commencing from 1st April, 2024. 

Further at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 28, 2024, Shareholders has appointed 

Mr. Karan Rajendra Mehta (DIN: 10566820), Ms. Shachi Manish Shah (DIN: 10566841) and Mr. 

Dushyant Shyam Lilani (DIN: 06893481)  as the Directors in the capacity of  Non-Executive, 

Independent Directors of  the Company for the first term of five years commencing from 1st April, 

2024. 

During the year under review, there have been no circumstances affecting their status as independent 
directors of  the Company. No Director of  the Company is disqualified under any law to act as a 
director.  
 
During the year under review, the non -executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and 
reimbursement of  expenses incurred by them for the purpose of  attending meetings of  the 
Board/Committee of  the Company. 
 
Further, Ms. Jyoti Singh tendered her resignation with effect from November 05, 2024 and Ms. 
Riddhi Soni was appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of  the Company with 
effect from January 17, 2025. 
 
During the year under review, the Board re-appointed Mr. Deepak Chheda, Mr. Harish Nisar and 
Mr. Rohit Dedhia  as the Managing Director and Whole Time Directors of  the Company respectively 
upon completion of their tenure. Further, their re -appointment was approved by the members of  the 
Company by means of Postal Ballot by voting through electronic means. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel: Mr. Deepak Chheda- Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Harish 
Nisar-Whole-Time Director, Mr. Rohit Dedhia -Whole-Time Director, Mr. Rohan Chheda- Chief  
Financial Officer and Ms. Riddhi Soni-Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of  the 
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Company in accordance with the provisions of  Sections 2(51), 203 of  the Act read with Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force). 
 
The Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on date of Board Report is 
as under: 
 

DIN/PAN  Full Name Designation 
Date of 

Appointment 

00419447 Deepak Dungarshi Chheda Managing Director 14/11/2009 
02716666 Harish Damji Nisar Whole-Time Director 14/11/2015 
02716686 Rohit Keshavji Dedhia  Whole-Time Director 14/11/2015 

06893481 
Dushyant Shyam Lilani  
 

Independent Director 01/04/2024 

10566820 Karan Rajendra Mehta Independent Director 01/04/2024 

10566841 Shachi Manish Shah Independent Director 01/04/2024 

AMIPC7701N Rohan Deepak Chheda 
Chief  Financial 
Officer 

14/11/2018 

CAQPS0951N 
Riddhi Mahendra Soni 
 

Company Secretary 17/01/2025 

 
16) Committees of the Board: 

 
Currently, the Board has three Committees: The Audit Committee, The Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. A detailed note on the 
composition of  the Board and its committees is provided in the Corporate Governance Report section 
of  this Annual Report. 
 

17) Disclosures given by the Directors: 
 
The Company has received various disclosures from the Directors as specified below: 
 

•  Form MBP-1: The Company received disclosure of  interest from all its Directors pursuant to Section 
184 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder in Form MBP-1. 

 
•  Declaration under Section 164: The Company has received declaration from all the Directors 

informing that they are not disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed or continuing as 
Directors pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
 

•  Declaration by Independent Directors: The Company has received necessary declaration from each 
Independent Director under section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 
that he/she meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 

18) Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 
 
Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:  
 

i. in the preparation of  the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if  any; 
 

ii. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
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of  affairs of the Company at the end of  financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year 
ended on the date; 

 

iii. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of  adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of  the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

iv.  the annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared on a 
going concern basis; 
 

v.  proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and 
were operating effectively.  
 

vi. proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.  
 

19) Number of Meetings of Board: 
 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Board met 8 (Eight) times i.e., (i) May 27, 2024 (ii) June 04, 
2024 (iii) August 14, 2024 (iv) September 03, 2024 (v) November 14, 2024 (vi) January 17, 2025 (vii) 
February 01, 2025 and (viii) February 24, 2025. The maximum interval between any two board 
meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.  
 
As required under Section 134(3) of  the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder, the 
composition and meetings of board of directors and other committee meetings were in line with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, details of  which alongwith 
composition, number of meetings of  all other Board Committees meeting held during the year under 
review and attendance at the meetings are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance, forming 
a part of  this Annual Report.  
 

20) Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration: 
 
The policy of  the Company on Directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters, as 
required under sub-section (3) of  Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is available on our website 
http://rodium.net/. There has been no change in the policy since the last financial year. We affirm 
that the remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of the Company.  
 

21) Annual Evaluation of Directors, Committee & Board: 
 
The performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, Committees 
thereof  and Chairman of the Company was carried out by Independent Directors. Pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) specified the manner of 
effective evaluation of the performance of  the Board, its Committees and individual Directors. 
Further, pursuant to Schedule IV of the Act and Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the evaluation of  Independent Directors was done 
by the Board of  Directors, the directors who were subject to evaluation did not participate as 
prescribed under Regulation 17(10) of  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Company has received declarations from each of  the Independent Directors confirming that they 
meet the criteria of independence as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
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22) Extract of Annual Return: 
 
Pursuant to section 92(3) read with Sec 134 (3) (a) of  the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 
2025 is available on the Company’s website on https://rodium.net/annual-return/ 
 

23) Corporate Governance: 
 
As per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), 2015, introduced pursuant to 
SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013 dated September 2, 2015, which became 
effective from December 1, 2015 read with Regulation 15(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements), 2015, Regulation 27(2)(a) is applicable to only those listed entities having 
paid-up Equity Share Capital exceeding Rs. 10 Crores and Net Worth exceeding Rs. 25 Crores. In 
light of  the same the Company has informed BSE Limited regarding the non-applicability of  
Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
 
Even though the provisions of  corporate governance as entailed under the aforementioned SEBI 
Regulation is not applicable, your Company has voluntarily complied with some of the criteria 
specified in Regulation 27 of  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, to the extent possible.  
 
A Report on Corporate Governance as per the provisions of  SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of  this Annual Report.  
 

24) Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy: 
 
Pursuant to Section 177 of  the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle 
Blower to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement. 
 
Under the Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower, the confidentiality of  those reporting violation(s) is 
protected and they are not subject to any discriminatory practices.  
 
The said Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower can be accessed at the following link:  
https://rodium.net/investors/codes and policies 
 

25) Rodium’s Code of Conduct for the Prevention of Insider Trading: 
 
The Insider Trading Policy of  the Company covering code of  practices and procedures for fair 
disclosures of  unpublished price sensitive information and code of conduct for the prevention of  
insider trading is available on our website https://rodium.net/investors/codes and policies 
 

26) Risk Management 
 
The Company has in place a process to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures. It has an appropriate risk management system in place for identification and assessment 
of  risks, measures to mitigate them, and mechanisms for their proper and timely monitoring and 
reporting. Presently, Regulation 21 of  the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 with respect to Risk Management Committee is not applicable to your Company.  
 

27) Particulars of Employees and Remuneration: 
 
The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration as per Section 
197(12) of  the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of  Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms a part of  the Board’s Report – “Annexure 
B”. 
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28) Disclosure Under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013: 
 
The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.  
 
The number of  complaints received during the year 2024-2025 and their status is given below: 
 
a. Number of  complaints of  sexual harassment received during the year Nil 

b. Number of  complaints investigated during the year Nil 

c. Number of  complaints disposed- off  during the year Nil 

d. Total no. of cases pending for more than 90 days Nil 

e. No. of  workshops or awareness programmes carried out Not Applicable 

f. Nature of  action taken by the employer or district officer Not Applicable 

g. Number of  complaints investigated during the year Nil 

h. Number of  complaints disposed- off  during the year Nil 

i. Total no. of cases pending for more than 90 days  Nil 

j. No. of  workshops or awareness programmes carried out Not Applicable 

k. Nature of  action taken by the employer or district officer Not Applicable 

 
29) No. of Employees in the Company as on the end of Financial year 

 
Female 3 

Male 8 

Transgender 0 

 
30) Maternity Benefit to employees 

 
The Company does not employ 10 or more persons, hence the provisions of  Maternity Benefit Act, 
1961 does not apply to your company.  
 

31) Related Party Transactions: 
 
All the transactions/contracts/arrangements of  the nature as specified in Section 188(1) of  the 
Companies Act, 2013 entered by the Company during the year under review with related party(ies) 
are in ordinary course of  business and on arm’s length and are placed before the Audit Committee 
and Board for review and approval. 
 



There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel  or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict 
with the interest of  the Company at large. 
 
The particulars of  contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) and 
applicable rules of  the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is provided as “Annexure C” to this 
Annual Report and forms part of  the Directors Report. 
 

32) Dematerialization: 
 
Your Company’s Equity Shares are available for dematerialization through National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. As on March 31, 2025, 
32,21,095 Equity Shares, constituting 99.18% of  the Equity Shares of  your Company, were held in 
dematerialized form. 
 

33) Listing: 
 
The Company’s Equity Shares are presently listed with the BSE Limited under Security ID- 
RODIUM, Security Code– 531822. 
 

34) Subsidiary Companies/LLP’s: 
 
Your Company is a partner in the following Subsidiary LLPs as of  March 31, 2025: 
 
i. “Rodium Housing LLP” (LLP Identification Number: AAO-9257)  

ii. “Readystage LLP” (LLP Identification Number: AAI-7135) 
iii. “81 Estate LLP” (LLP Identification Number: AAJ-6447) 
iv.  “Fluid Realty LLP” (LLP Identification Number: AAO-9376). 
v.  “Xperia Realty LLP” (LLP Identification Number: AAO-9372) 

vi. “Rodium Digital Inc” (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of  Rodium Realty Limited) 
 
Pursuant to provisions of  Section 129(3) and rule 5 of  Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 of  the Act, 
a statement containing the salient features of  the financial statements of  the Company’s subsidiary in 
Form AOC-1 is annexed herewith as “Annexure D”. 
 
Associate Companies: As of  March 31, 2025, no company is an associate of  the Company. 
 
Except provided herein, no other company became or ceased to be a Subsidiary / Associate / Joint 
Venture company of the Company.  
 

35) Consolidated Financial Statements: 
 
The audited financial statements of  the Company are drawn up, both on standalone and consolidated 
basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, in accordance with the requirements of  the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind-AS) notified under Section 133 of  the 
Act, read with relevant rules and other accounting principles The Consolidated Financial Statements 
have been prepared in accordance with Ind-AS and relevant provisions of  the Act based on the 
financial statements received from subsidiaries LLPs. 
 
The financial statements of  Subsidiary LLP’s as per the provisions of  Companies Act, 2013 are not 
attached along with the financial statements of the Company. Separate audited financial statement of 
each of  the subsidiaries is placed on the website of  the Company at web link  
https://rodium.net/separate-audited-financial-statements-of-each-subsidiary-of-the-listed-entity-in-
respect-of-a-relevant-financial-year/ 
 
In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Financial statements and other 
documents of the Subsidiary Company are not required to be sent to the members of  the Company. 
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However, the financial information of the Subsidiary Company is disclosed in the Annual Report 
wherever required. The Company will provide a copy of the Audited annual accounts in respect of its 
Subsidiary to any shareholder of  the Company who requests for it and the said Audited annual 
accounts will also be kept open for inspection at the Registered Office of your Company.  
 

36) Revision of Financial Statements or Board’s Report: 
 
There were no revisions of financial statements or Board’s Report as per the provisions of Section 131 
of  Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
 

37) Internal Financial Controls: 
 
The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented 
by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has 
been received from the Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company on the 
inefficiency or inadequacy of  such controls. 
 

38) Internal Control Systems: 
 
Adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature of  the Company’s business and size 
and complexity of its operations are in place and have been operating satisfactorily. Internal control 
systems comprising of  policies and procedures are designed to ensure reliability of  financial reporting, 
timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, 
procedure, applicable laws and regulations. Internal control systems are designed to ensure that all 
assets and resources are acquired economically, used efficiently and adequately protected.  
 

39) Maintenance of Cost Records as Specified by the Central Government under Sub-Section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013: 
 
The Provisions for the maintenance of  cost records for any of  the products/services of  the Company 
under sub-section (1) of  section 148 of  the Act and rules made thereunder as prescribed by the Central 
Government of  India is not applicable to your Company. 
 

40) Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than 
those which are reportable to the Central Government: 
 
No case of  fraud was reported by the Company’s Auditors during the year, pursuant to the provisions 
of  Section 143(12) of  the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

41) Conservation of energy, research and development, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo: 
 
The details of  conservation of  energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
are as follows: 
 
A. Conservation of energy 
 
There are no such particulars of  the Company which are required to be given in terms of Section 
134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of  Chapter IX Rules of  the Companies Act, 2013 regarding 
conservation of  energy. 
 
B. Research and Development (R&D) 
 
Expenditure on R & D for the year ended March 31, 2025 was NIL (previous year: NIL). 
 
C. Technology absorption 
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There are no such particulars of  the Company which are required to be given in terms of Section 
134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of Chapter IX Rules of  the Companies Act, 2013 regarding technology 
absorption. 
 
D. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Expenditures  
 
Total foreign exchange earnings & outgo for the current F.Y. 2024-2025 and previous F.Y. 2023-2024 
were NIL. 
 

42) Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report: Presently, the requirement of  publishing 
Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) under Regulation 34(2)(f) of  SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to your Co mpany.  
 

43) Unclaimed and Unpaid Dividends, and transfer of shares to IEPF: 
 
Members who have not yet received/claimed their dividend entitlements are requested to contact the 
Company or the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company.  
 
Pursuant to Section 124 of  the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“Rules”), all dividends 
remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years and also the shares in respect of  which the 
dividend has not been claimed by the shareholders for 7 consecutive years or more are required to be 
transferred to Investor Education Protection Fund in accordance with the procedure prescribed in the 
Rules. 
 
Kindly refer section on Corporate Governance, under head “Transfer of  unpaid/ unclaimed amounts 
to Investor Education and Protection Fund” for the list of  unclaimed and unpaid dividends lying with 
the Company. 
 

44) Insolvency Proceedings 
 
There is no application made by the Company or any proceedings initiated against the Company 
under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of  2016) the during the year. 
 

45) Valuation for One-time settlement 
 
During the financial year 2024-25, no event has taken place that give rise to reporting of  details w.r.t. 
difference between amount of  the valuation done at the time of onetime settlement and the valuation 
done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions. 
 

46) Cautionary Statement: 
 
Certain Statements in this Annual Report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 
estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of 
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed 
or implied. Important factor that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include raw 
material availability and its prices, regulatory hurdles in project approvals, changes in Government 
regulations, introduction of  new acts, tax structure, economic development of  the country and other 
incidental factors.   
 

47) Acknowledgements: 
 
Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the co -operation and assistance 
received from shareholders, debenture holders, debenture trustees, bankers, financial institutions, 
government authorities, regulatory bodies and other business constituents during the year under 

| Annual Report 2024-2025 

RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 



review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of  appreciation for the 
commitment displayed by all executives, officers and staff.  
 
By order of the Board, 
For Rodium Realty Limited 
 
 
     
Sd/-     Sd/- 
Deepak Chheda   Rohit Dedhia 
Managing Director   Whole-Time Director 
(DIN: 00419447)   (DIN: 02716686) 
  
Place: Mumbai    
Date: August 13, 2025   
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FORM	NO.	MR-3	
	

SECRETARIAL	AUDIT	REPORT	
FOR	THE	FINANCIAL	YEAR	ENDED	MARCH	31,	2025	

[Pursuant	to	section	204(1)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	Rule	No.	9	of	the	Companies	
(Appointment	and	Remuneration	Personnel)	Rules,	2014]	

To,	
The	Members,	
RODIUM	REALTY	LIMITED,	
Plot	No.636,	501,	X	Cube,	Off	New	Link	Road,	
Andheri	(West),	Mumbai	400053,	Maharashtra,	India	
	
We	 have	 conducted	 the	 secretarial	 audit	 of	 the	 compliance	 of	 applicable	 statutory	
provisions	 and	 the	 adherence	 to	 good	 corporate	 practices	 by	 Rodium	 Realty	 Limited	
(hereinafter	called	the	 “Company”).	 	The	Secretarial	Audit	of	the	company	was	conducted	
in	 a	 manner	 that	 provided	 us	 a	 reasonable	 basis	 for	 evaluating	 the	 corporate	
conducts/statutory	compliances	and	expressing	my	opinion	thereon.	
	
Based	on	our	veri�ication	of	the	Company’s	books,	papers,	minute	books,	forms	and	returns	
�iled	and	other	records	maintained	by	the	Company	and	also	the	information	provided	by	
the	 Company,	 its	 of�icers,	 agents	 and	 authorized	 representatives	 during	 the	 conduct	 of	
secretarial	audit,	we	hereby	report	that	in	our	opinion,	the	Company	has,	during	the	audit	
period	covering	the	�inancial	year	ended	on	31st	March,	2025	complied	with	the	statutory	
provisions	 listed	 hereunder	 and	 also	 that	 the	 Company	 has	 proper	Board-processes	 and	
compliance-mechanism	in	place	to	 the	extent,	 in	 the	manner	and	subject	 to	 the	reporting	
made	hereinafter:	
	
We	 have	 examined	 the	 books,	 papers, 	 minute	 books,	 forms	 and	 returns	 �iled	 and	 other	
records	maintained	by	Rodium	Realty	Limited	(“the	Company”)	as	given	for	the	�inancial	
year	ended	on	March	31,	2025	according	to	the	provisions	of:	
	
(i) The	Companies	Act,	2013	(the	Act)	and	the	rules	made	thereunder;	

	
(ii) The	 Securities	 Contracts	 (Regulation)	 Act,	 1956	 (‘SCRA’)	 and	 the	 rules	 made	

thereunder;	
	

(iii) The	Depositories	Act,	1996	and	the	Regulations	and	Bye-laws	framed	thereunder;	
	

(iv) Foreign	 Exchange	 Management	 Act,	 1999	 and	 the	 rules	 and	 regulations	 made	
thereunder	to	the	extent	of	Foreign	Direct	Investment,	Overseas	Direct	Investment	
and	External	Commercial	borrowings;	
	
	
	

(v) The	 following	 Regulations	 and	 Guidelines	 prescribed	 under	 the	 Securities	 and	
Exchange	Board	of	India	Act,	1992	(‘SEBI	Act’):-	
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a. The	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Substantial	Acquisition	of	Shares	

and	Takeovers)	Regulations,	2011; 	
	
b. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	Board	 of	 India	 (Prohibition	 of	 Insider	 Trading)	

Regulations,	2015;	
	
c. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Issue	 of	 Capital	 and	Disclosure	

Requirements)	 Regulations,	 2018;	 (Not	 applicable	 to	 the	 Company	 during	
the	Review	Period)	

	
d. The	Securities	 and	Exchange	Board	of	 India	 (Share	Based	Employee	Bene�its	

and	Sweat	Equity)	Regulations,	2021;(The	Company	has	not	 introduced	any	
such	scheme);	

	
e. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Issue	 and	 Listing	 of	 Debt	

Securities)	 Regulations,	 2008/;	 (The	 Company	 has	 not	 issued	 any	 Debt	
Securities	during	the	�inancial	year	under	review);		

	
f. The	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Registrars	to	an	Issue	and	Share	

Transfer	Agents)	Regulations,	1993	regarding	 the	Companies	Act	and	dealing	
with	client;	

	
g. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Delisting	 of	 Equity	 Shares)	

Regulations,	 2021;	 (The	 Company	 has	 not	 delisted/propose	 to	 delist	 its	
Equity	 Shares	 from	 any	 Stock	 Exchange	 during	 the	 �inancial	 year	 under	
review);		

	
h. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Buy	 back	 of	 Securities)	

Regulations	2018;	(The	Company	has	not	bought	back	/	propose	to	buy-back	
any	of	its	securities	during	the	�inancial	year	under	review);	

	
i. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Issue	 and	 Listing	 of	 Non-

Convertible	 and	 Redeemable	 Preference	 Shares)	 Regulations,2013/the	
Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	 India	(Issue	and	Listing	of	 Non-Convertible	
Securities)	 Regulations,	 2021;(Not	 applicable	 to	 the	 Company	 during	 the	
Review	Period);	

	
j. The	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Listing	Obligations	and	Disclosure	

requirement)	Regulations,	2015;		
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(vi) Other	Laws	speci�ically	applicable	to	the	Company	during	the	relevant	period	ended	

March	31,	2025:	
	
1. The	Indian	Contract	Act,	1872	
2. The	Transfer	of	Property	Act,	1882;	
3. The	Indian	Registration	Act,	1908;	
4. The	Speci�ic	Relief	Act,	1963;	
5. The	Indian	Stamps	Act,	1899;	
6. The	Rent	Control	Act;	
7. The	State	Laws	Governing	the	Real	Estate;	
8. Income	Tax	Act,	1961;	
9. The	Co-operative	Societies	Act,	1912;	
10. The	Contract	Labour	(Regulation	and	Abolition)	Act,	1970	
11. The	Payment	of	Wages	Act,	1936;	
12. The	Minimum	Wages	Act,	1948;	
13. Employees’	State	Insurance	Act,	1948	
14. Maharashtra	Ownership	Flats	(Regulation	of	the	promotion	of	construction,	sale,	

management	and	transfer)	Act,	1963;	
15. Real	Estate	(Regulation	and	Development)	Act,	2016;	
16. Housing	Board	Act,	1965;	
17. Building	and	Other	Construction	Workers’	(Regulation	of	Employment	and	

Conditions	of	Services)	Act,	1996.	
	

We	have	also	examined	compliance	with	the	applicable	clauses	of	the	following:	
	

a) Secretarial	Standards	in	respect	of	Meeting	of	Board	of	Directors	(SS-1)	and	General	
Meetings	(SS-2)	issued	by	The	Institute	of	Company	Secretaries	of	India.		
	

a) The	Listing	Agreement	entered	into	by	the	Company	with	Bombay	Stock	Exchange	
Limited	(BSE)	read	with	the	SEBI	(Listing	Obligations	and	Disclosure	Requirements)	
Regulation,	2015.	
	

During	the	period	under	review	the	Company	has	complied	with	the	provisions	of	the	Act,	
Rules,	Regulations,	Guidelines,	Standards,	etc.		
	
We	 further	 report	 that,	 the	 Board	 of	 Directors	 of	 the	 Company	 is	 duly	 constituted	 with	
proper	balance	of	Executive	Directors,	Non-Executive	Directors	and	Independent	Directors.	
The	changes	in	the	composition	of	the	Board	of	Directors	that	took	place	during	the	period	
under	review	were	carried	out	in	compliance	with	the	provisions	of	the	Act.		
	
Adequate	notice	is	given	to	all	directors	to	schedule	the	Board	Meetings,	agenda	and	notes	
on	 agenda	were	 also	 provided	 to	 Directors	 for	meaningful	 participation	 at	 the	meeting.	
Decisions	at	 the	meetings	of	Board	of	Directors	of	 the	Company	were	carried	through	on	
the	basis	of	majority.	
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We	 have	 relied	 on	 the	 representation	 made	 by	 the	 Company	 and	 its	 of�icers	 and	 for	
systems	and	mechanism	framed	by	the	Company	for	Compliances	under	other	Acts,	Laws	
and	Regulations	applicable	to	the	Company	as	Listed	above.	
	
We	further	report	that	during	the	audit	period	company	has	co-operated	with	me	and	have	
produced	 before	me	 all	 the	 required	 forms	 information,	 clari�ications,	 returns	 and	 other	
documents	as	required	for	the	purpose	of	our	audit.	
	
Thanking	you.	
	
Yours	faithfully, 	
	

For	Kaushal	Doshi	&	Associates	
Practising	Company	Secretary	

	
	
	

Kaushal	Doshi	
Proprietor	

FCS:	F10609/COP	No:	13143	
PR	Number:	802/2020	

UDIN:	F010609G000500835	
	
Date:	30th	May,	2025 	
Place:	Mumbai	

	
	
This	 report	 is	 to	be	 read	with	our	 letter	which	 is	 annexed	 as	 Annexure	A	and	 forms	an	
integral	Part	of	the	Report.	
	 	

commensurate	 with	 the	 size	 and	 operations	 of	 the	 Company	 to	 monitor	 and	 ensure	
compliance	 with	 applicable	 laws,	 rules,	 regulations,	 standards	 and	 guidelines.	 All	 the	
notices	 and	orders	 received	by	 the	 company	pursuant	 to	 the	 abovementioned	 laws	have	
been	adequately	dealt	with/	duly	replied/	complied	with.	
	
	
	

We	 further	 report	 that	 there	 are	 adequate	 systems	 and	 processes	 in	 the	 Company	
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ANNEXURE	–	A	
	

To,	
The	Members,	
Rodium	Realty	Limited	
Plot	No.	636,	501,	X'cube,	Off	New	Link	Road,		
Andheri	(West)	Mumbai	400053,	Maharashtra,	India.	
	

Our	report	of	even	date	is	to	be	read	along	with	this	letter	;	
	

1.	 Maintenance	 of	 Secretarial	 records	 is	 the	 responsibility	 of	 the	 management	 of	 the	
company.	Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	these	secretarial	records	based	on	
our	audit.		
	

2.	 We	 have	 followed	 the	 audit	 practices	 and	 processes	 as	 were	 appropriate	 to	 obtain	
reasonable	 assurance	 about	 the	 correctness	 of	 the	 contents	 of	 secretarial	 records.	 The	
veri�ication	was	done	on	test	basis	to	ensure	that	correct	facts	are	re�lected	in	secretarial	
records.	We	believe	that	the	processes	and	practices,	we	follow	provide	a	reasonable	basis	
for	our	opinion.		
	

3.	We	have	not	veri�ied	the	correctness	and	appropriateness	of	�inancial	records	and	books	
of	accounts	of	the	Company.		
	

4.	 Wherever	 required,	 we	 have	 obtained	 the	 management	 representation	 about	 the	
compliance	of	laws,	rules	and	regulations	and	happening	of	events	etc.	
	

	5.	 The	 compliance	 of	 the	 provision	 of	 corporate	 and	 other	 applicable	 laws,	 rules,	
regulations,	standards	is	the	responsibility	of	management.	Our	examination	was	limited	to	
veri�ication	of	procedures	on	test	basis.		
	

6.	 The	 Secretarial	 Audit	 Report	 is	 neither	 an	 assurance	 as	 to	 the	 future	 viability	 of	 the	
company	nor	the	ef�icacy	or	effectiveness	with	which	the	management	has	conducted	the	
affairs	of	the	Company.		
	

For	Kaushal	Doshi	&	Associates	
Practising	Company	Secretary	

	
	
	

Kaushal	Doshi	
Proprietor	

FCS:	F10609/COP	No:	13143	
PR	Number:	802/2020	

UDIN:	F010609G000500835	
	
Date:	30th	May,	2025 	
Place:	Mumbai	
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Statutory Disclosure 

 

ANNEXURE B 
 
Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
rules, 2014  
 
1. The percentage increase of remuneration of each Director, Chief  Financial Officer and 

Company Secretary during the financial year 2024-2025 ratio of  the remuneration of each 
Director to the median employees of  the Company for the Financial Year ended 2024-2025 and 
the comparison of  remuneration of  each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the 
performance of  the Company are as under: 
 

Sr. 

No 

Name of Director/KMP 

and Designation 

Remuneration/ 

Sitting fees of 

Director/ KMP 

for the F.Y. 

2024-2025 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

% Increase in 

Remuneration in 

the F.Y. 2024-2025 

Ratio of 

Remuneration of 

each Director/to 

the median 

remuneration of 

employees 

1. Mr. Deepak Chheda-

(CMD)   

20.40 Nil 6.03 

2. Mr. Harish Nisar- (WTD)   26.40 Nil 7.81 

3. Mr. Rohit Dedhia- (WTD) 12.60 Nil 3.72 

4. Mr. Dushyant Shyam 
Lilani  
Independent Director 

- Nil NA 

5. Mr. Karan Rajendra 

Mehta 

Independent Director 

- Nil NA 

6. Ms. Shachi Manish Shah 

Independent Director 

- Nil NA 

7. Mr. Rohan Chheda 

Chief  Financial Officer 

11.55 Nil 3.70 

8. Ms. Jyoti Singh 

Company Secretary 

(Resigned w.e.f. 

05.11.2024) 

2.70 Nil 1.06 

9. Ms. Riddhi Mahendra Soni 

Company Secretary 

(Appointed w.e.f. 

17.01.2025 

1.12 Nil  

 

2. In the financial year, there was an increase in the median remuneration of  employee. 

 

3. There were total 11 permanent employees on the payrolls of  the Company as on March 31, 

2025. 

| Annual Report 2024-2025 

RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 



             

 
4. Relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance: - The 

Total Revenue of  the Company has decreased by 49.34% during the current financial year as 

compared to the previous year, the Profit Before Tax for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025 increased by 685.32%. Further there has been no increase in remuneration for this year.  

 

5. Comparison of  Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel(s) against the performance of 

the Company: - 

 

 Mr. Deepak 

Chheda 

Mr. Rohit 

Dedhia- 

Mr. 

Harish 

Nisar- 

Mr. 

Rohan 

Chheda 

Ms. 

Jyoti 

Singh 

Ms. 

Riddhi 

Mahendra 

Soni 

Remuneration in 

FY 2024-2025 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

20.40 12.60 26.40 11.55 2.70 1.12 

Revenue (Rs. in 

Lakh) 

1003.71  

Remuneration of  

each KMP as of  

% of Total 

revenue 

2.03% 1.25% 2.63% 1.15% 0.26 0.11 

Profit Before Tax 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

308.63  

Remuneration of  

each KMP as a % 

of PBT 

6.66% 4.08% 8.55% 3.74% 0.87% 0.36% 

  

6. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of  employees other than managerial 

personnel in the last financial year i.e. 2024-2025 was 7%. 

7. The ratio of the remuneration of  the highest paid Director to that of  the Director of  the 

employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of  the highest paid director 

during the year – Not Applicable; and  

8. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.  

 

By order of the Board, 
For Rodium Realty Limited 
 
 
sd/-        sd/- 
Deepak Chheda      Rohit Dedhia 
Chairman & Managing Director    Whole-Time Director 
(DIN: 00419447)      (DIN: 02716686) 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: August 13, 2025 
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Statutory Disclosure 

ANNEXURE C 
 Form No. AOC-2  

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of  sub-section (3) of section 134 of  the Act and Rule 8(2) of  the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of  particulars of  contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of  the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at 
arm’s length basis 
 

Applicability 

(a) Name(s) of  the related party and nature of relationship 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
(c) Duration of  the contracts / arrangements/transactions 
(d) Salient terms of  the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if  any 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 
(f) Date(s) of  approval by the Board 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if  any 
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 

 
 
 
 

Not applicable 

 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis 
 

Name(s) of 
the related 
party and 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of the 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 
 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including the 
value(in 
rupees), if any: 

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, 
if any: 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any: 

Mr. Prerak 
Dedhia 
 
Relative of  
KMP 
 

Service/ 
Material 
Purchased 

25/05/2015- 
Ongoing 

Consultancy 
fees regarding 
financial 
matters. 
 
Rs. NIL 

25/05/2015 
 

NIL 

Mrs. Krupa 
Chheda 
 
Relative of  
KMP 

Service/ 
Material 
Purchased 

01/04/2010-
Ongoing 

As an 
Architectural/ 
Design 
Consultant of 
the Company 
Rs. NIL 

07/07/2010 
 
 

NIL 
 
 
 
 

 

M/s. C N A 
Architects 
 
Entities in 
which 
Directors  are 
Interested 

Service/ 
Material 
Purchased 

26/03/2010 
Ongoing 

Architects 
consultancy 
Fees 
Rs.20,00,000/- 

  
NIL 
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M/s. RDH 
Infraspaces 
 
Entities in 
which 
Directors are 
Interested 

Service/ 
Material 
Purchased 

30/03/2010- 
Ongoing 

Labour Contract 
Fees 
 
Rs. 23,89,062/- 

29/03/2010 NIL 

Mr. Rohan 
Chheda 
 
Relative of  
KMP 

Related party 
appointed to 
office or place 
of  profit in the 
company 

14/11/2018 -
Ongoing 

As CFO 
remuneration 
 
Rs.11,55,000/- 

14/11/2018 NIL 

Mr. Deepak 
Chheda  
 
KMP of  the 
Company 

Leasing of 
property 

1. 20/08/2010- 
Ongoing 
2. 21/07/2015 – 
Ongoing  

Leave and 
License 
 
Rs. 3,60,000/- 

10/04/2010 
 
10/05/2011 

NIL 

Mr. Harish 
Nisar 
 
KMP of  the 
Company 

Leasing of 
property 

21/07/2015 – 
Ongoing 

Leave and 
License 
 
Rs. 1,20,000/- 

10/05/2011 NIL 

Mr. Rohit 
Dedhia  
 
KMP of  the 
Company 

Leasing of 
property 

21/07/2015 – 
Ongoing 

Leave and 
License 
 
Rs.2,40,000/- 

10/05/2011 NIL 

Mr. Mehul 
Nisar 
 
Relative of  
KMP 

Leasing of 
property 

21/07/2015 – 
Ongoing 

Leave and 
License 
 
Rs.1,20,000/- 

10/05/2011 NIL 

M/s. Sigma 
Fiscals Private 
Limited 
Entity in 
which director 
is Interested 

Leasing of 
property 

1.20/08/2010- 
Ongoing 
2. 21/07/2015 – 
Ongoing 

Leave and 
License 
 
Rs. 3,60,000/- 

10/04/2010 
 
10/05/2011 

NIL 

 
 

By order of the Board of Directors, 
For Rodium Realty Limited 
 
 
 
sd/-       sd/- 
Deepak Chheda     Rohit Dedhia  
Managing Director     Whole-Time Director             
(DIN: 00419447)                (DIN: 02716686)  

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 13, 2025 
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Statutory Disclosure 
 

ANNEXURE D 
 

Form AOC-1 
 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 
companies/joint ventures 

 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of  section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 
 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 
(Information in respect of  each subsidiary to be presented)  

Amounts represented are in Rs. Lakhs) 
 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars Details Details Details  Details  Details  Details  

1.  Name of  
the 
subsidiary 

Rodium 
Housing LLP 

81 Estates 
LLP 

Ready 
Stage LLP  

Fluid Realty 
LLP  

Xperia 
Realty LLP  

Rodium 
Digital Inc  

2.  Reporting 
period for 
the 
subsidiary 
concerned, 
if different 
from the 
holding 
company’s 
reporting 
period 

Same as 
Holding 
Company 

Same as 
Holding 
Company 

Same as 
Holding 
Company  

Same as 
Holding 
Company  

Same as 
Holding 
Company  

01st  January 
to 31st  
December  

3.  Reporting 
currency 
and 
Exchange 
rate as on 
the last 
date of  the 
relevant 
Financial 
year in the 
case of  
foreign 
subsidiarie
s 

NA NA NA  NA  NA  USD  
 

1 USD = 
INR 85.10  

4.  Share 
capital 

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00  1.00  81.89  

5.  Reserves & 
surplus 

97.72 273.58 6.69 369.62  Nil  0.50  

6.  Total 
assets 

1,684.66 289.57 7.77 4,809.64  1.01  82.56  

7.  Total 
Liabilities 

1,684.66 289.57 7.77 4,809.64  1.01  82.56  
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8.  Investment
s 

Nil Nil Nil Nil  Nil  Nil  

9.  Turnover 807.50 Nil Nil 4,232.15  Nil  112.18  
 

10.  Profit/Los
s before 
taxation 

(483.10) (0.02) (0.04) 1,005.52  -  (10.16)  

11.  Provision 
for 
taxation 

(146.86)  -     -    364.25   -     -  

12.  Profit/Los
s after 
taxation 

(336.24) (0.02) (0.04) 641.25   -     (10.16)  

13.  Proposed 
Dividend 

NA NA NA NA  NA  NA  

14.  % of  
shareholdi
ng 

75% 75% 75% 75%  99%  100%  
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Management Discussion & Analysis Report 

 

I am pleased to present the Annual Report for FY 2024–25. I trust this message finds you and your 
families in the best of  health and spirits. 

Macroeconomic & Sector Outlook 

India’s macroeconomic environment remained broadly supportive in FY 2024–25. Real GDP growth 
is estimated around 6.5–7.0% for the year, keeping India among the world’s fastest-growing major 
economies. Importantly, inflation moderated into the mid-single digits (CPI ~4.8% by March 2025), 
which helped preserve consumer purchasing power and set the stage for potential policy rate cuts. 
This stable growth-and-inflation mix bolstered overall business confidence and was conducive to 
housing demand. 

Against this backdrop, the Indian real estate sector saw robust momentum. Housing sales across the 
top 8 cities hit a 12-year high in 2024, rising ~7% year-on-year. Strong economic growth and stable 
mortgage rates fueled better demand, especially for premium homes. Mumbai led in volumes – 
recording about 96,500 residential units sold (up ~4% YoY) – the highest among all metros. This 
broad-based recovery in residential real estate, coupled with favorable demographics and urbanization 
trends, underpins a positive sector outlook. Developers are increasingly optimistic, focusing on timely 
project execution and innovation in product offerings to cater to evolving consumer preferences (e.g. 
larger homes, integrated townships). Overall, the sector enters FY 2025–26 on a solid footing, with 
healthy end-user demand and improving investor sentiment. 

Mumbai Residential Market Performance (FY 2024–25) 

Mumbai’s housing market continued its growth trajectory through FY 2024–25, building on the 
previous year’s record activity. Annual residential transactions in the city reached multi-year highs – 
nearly 96,470 units sold in 2024 – reflecting sustained buyer interest across segments. Demand was 
buoyed by a mix of  affordable and mid-income buyers as well as an uptick in luxury purchases, in 
line with the nationwide “premiumisation”. Stable home loan rates (following earlier RBI hikes) and 
new project launches in key suburbs kept the momentum strong. Notably, Mumbai’s Western and 
Central suburbs saw the bulk of  new supply and sales, as homebuyers showed preference for 
peripheral locations offering modern amenities and relatively better affordability than the city core. 
The Jogeshwari-Borivali belt led the surge, accounting for a significant share of  sales. With average 

prices rising around 6% to ₹27,500 per sq ft, inventory overhang has reduced, signalling a healthy, 
balanced market. 

Kandivali Micro-Market: In particular, the Kandivali belt (part of  the western suburbs) emerged as a 

vibrant micro-market during FY 2024–25. Kandivali caters to a broad spectrum – from budget-
conscious buyers to premium segment customers – and this diversity was reflected in local market 
performance. Residential property prices in Kandivali appreciated healthily over the year, supported 
by new infrastructure and redevelopment projects. Kandivali East, for instance, saw an average price 

surge of  ~26% YoY (to around ₹22,600 per sq.ft.), while Kandivali West registered a 6% YoY rise 

with average rates near ₹20,760 per sq.ft.. New premium developments in the area now command 

prices upwards of  ₹30,000 per sq.ft. – with some under-construction projects in Mahavir Nagar 

quoting ₹32,000–38,000 per sq.ft.– underscoring the willingness of  buyers to invest for quality and 
location. At the same time, the micro-market continues to offer affordable options (smaller units or 
older buildings) that attract first-time homebuyers, ensuring sustained transaction volumes. Improved 
connectivity (e.g. the Mumbai 



Redevelopment in MMR: A Key Growth Strategy 

Redevelopment is increasingly at the forefront of  Mumbai Metropolitan Region (MMR)’s growth 
strategy, especially in land-constrained residential pockets. Mumbai’s housing stock is ageing – over 
50% of  buildings are 30+ years old, many with structural dilapidation and outdated layouts. 
Redevelopment offers a win-win solution by replacing these old structures with modern, taller 
buildings, thereby increasing housing supply and upgrading living standards without expanding the 
city’s footprint. It enables existing residents to obtain safer, amenity-rich homes (often in the same 
neighborhood), while developers get access to prime urban land for new projects. In FY 2024–25, 
redevelopment continued to gather pace across the city, supported by proactive regulatory changes. 
The government has provided regulatory impetus – including smoother approvals and more favorable 
FSI norms under the Development Control Regulations 2034 – which has made redevelopment 
projects more financially viable for builders. Incentives like relaxed parking requirements and fast-
track clearances for cluster redevelopments have further eased execution. 

Looking ahead, India’s real estate sector is projected to expand its output to USD 1.3 trillion by 2034, 
up from the current USD 650 billion. This growth is primarily driven by increased residential 
demand, alongside developments in commercial, retail, hospitality, and warehousing sectors, which 
are all responding to the needs of  the growing population. 

Keeping in mind the factors of  redevelopment, Your Company has successfully launched the 
following redevelopment projects. 

 
X’heights – World of Delight, Rodium will launch X’heights, an iconic 42-storey skyscraper that 
will encapsulate the epitome of  modern living. X’heights will feature a blend of  exquisite design and 
premium finishes, establishing itself  as a true symbol of  opulence. Every corner will reflect 
meticulous attention to detail and an unwavering commitment to quality, promising a lifestyle that 
will be as luxurious as it is comfortable. For those who will seek a harmonious blend of  luxury, 
comfort, and modernity, X’heights will be the ultimate destination 
 
 “X’one – Luxury Like None” in Kandivali. It has continued to strive to create comfortable yet 
affordable spaces for the families of  the city. This project is nestled in the prime location of  Kandivali 
(West), standing as a masterpiece of  architectural ingenuity, a blend of  luxury and practicality, where 
every detail has been meticulously crafted to exceed customer’s expectations. It is set against the 
backdrop of  the serene Shankar Mandir and Jain Derashar. This project enjoys a unique blend of  
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spiritual tranquillity and urban convenience. This is not just home; it’s a statement of  your refined 
taste and aspirations.   
 
“X’line and X’enus projects have been successfully completed by the Company in the current year. 
 

We believe new and existing projects results into strong balance sheets and the projects are poised to 
grow faster, given the limited period of  opportunity to contract projects at low costs and their pace of  
growth depends on the success of  the existing projects (cash flows), ability to grow (balance sheets), 
intent (growth track records), execution skills and pricing flexibilities. 

Key Opportunities 

•  Urbanization & Housing Demand:  

India’s rapid urbanization trends ensure long-term opportunity for residential real estate. The 
country’s urban population continues to swell (projected to exceed 40% of  total population by 
2030), adding millions of  new city dwellers each year. This megatrend is especially relevant in 
Mumbai – as more people migrate or form new households in the metro area, the demand for 
housing (across affordable and premium segments) remains structurally robust. Our company 
is well-positioned to tap into this growing urban housing requirement through strategic 
redevelopment projects in the city. 

•  Evolving Work & Lifestyle Trends:  

The post-pandemic shift toward hybrid work models has subtly reshaped housing preferences, 
which presents an opportunity. With an estimated 58% of  Indian employees now preferring a 
mix of  remote and office work, many homebuyers are seeking larger, flexible homes to 
accommodate home-office setups. This trend has bolstered demand for well-designed 
residential spaces in suburban markets like Kandivali, where buyers can get bigger apartments 
(with amenities like dedicated work nooks or study rooms) at relatively reasonable prices. Our 
focus on redevelopment (often yielding larger apartment sizes and modern layouts) aligns 
well with these evolving consumer needs, potentially driving higher absorption for our 
projects. Additionally, increased time spent at home has heightened the value placed on 
amenities and community infrastructure, which we integrate into our premium 
redevelopment offerings to attract discerning buyers. 

•  Policy Support & Self-Redevelopment Initiatives 

The regulatory climate is turning increasingly supportive of  redevelopment activities. The 
Maharashtra government’s new Housing Policy 2025 explicitly emphasizes redevelopment of  
old buildings and slums, and notably pushes for self-redevelopment of  cooperative housing 

societies. A dedicated funding allocation of  ₹2,000 crore and the creation of  a single-window 
facilitation cell for society-led projects are expected to accelerate redevelopment approvals 
and execution. Moreover, authorities plan to streamline approvals via single-window 
clearance and even offer subsidized loans (around 4% interest) for societies opting to rebuild 
on their own. All these measures will expand the pipeline of  viable redevelopment projects in 
MMR. As a specialist in society redevelopment, the company can leverage these policies – 
partnering with housing societies or advising on self-redevelopment – thereby tapping a large 
latent market. According to industry estimates, over 25,000 buildings in MMR are eligible for 

redevelopment (worth ~₹30,000 crore in project value). This represents a vast opportunity in 
the coming years, supported by government incentives and rising homeowner awareness. 
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Key Risks & Challenges 

•  Regulatory Approvals & Delays 
 
While policy support has improved, obtaining the myriad approvals for redevelopment 
projects in MMR can still be a protracted process. Projects often require clearances from 
multiple agencies (municipal corporations, environmental authorities, etc.), and any 
procedural inefficiency can delay project timelines. In older housing societies, securing 
requisite consent from cooperative members is another hurdle – disagreements over terms or 
developer selection can stall redevelopment starts. Despite a push for single-window systems, 
the clearance process remains complex; in fact, many societies have been hesitant to 
undertake redevelopment precisely due to the lengthy approval bureaucracy involved. For our 
company, such regulatory delays could impact project schedules and carrying costs. We 
mitigate this by diligent project planning, compliance, and stakeholder management, but this 
risk remains a factor that could affect revenue recognition and investor returns if  not carefully 
managed.  

 

•  Funding & Liquidity Constraints 

Real estate development is capital-intensive, and redevelopment projects in particular entail 
upfront costs (for land/society premiums, temporary tenant accommodations, construction) 
with cash inflows only coming after new sales. Financing challenges can thus pose a risk. 
Higher interest rate environments or tight credit availability can strain developers’ balance 
sheets. Notably, the cost of  funding rose over the past year, increasing the financial burden on 
developers – financing costs have been up, heightening risk for projects that generate no 
revenue until completion. Smaller developers in Mumbai have at times struggled with this, 
leading to stalled projects. While our company maintains prudent leverage and has access to 
diverse funding sources, an industry-wide liquidity crunch or sustained high borrowing costs 
could slow down project execution and growth plans. We continue to monitor 
macroeconomic factors (interest rate trends, lender sentiment) and maintain adequate capital 
buffers to navigate this risk. 

•  Construction Cost Pressures 

The past year saw elevated construction costs, which can compress profit margins if  not 
managed. In 2024, average construction expenses for residential projects rose roughly 10–
11%, driven by a steep jump in labor wages (labor costs up ~25%) and enhanced 
specifications (as developers pivot to higher quality, amenity-rich projects). Although core 
material prices (cement, steel) were relatively stable or even slightly down, the surge in overall 
input costs has made project budgeting more challenging. For redevelopment, where sale 
prices are often capped by local market dynamics, rising costs can erode viability. 
Additionally, volatility in commodity prices or supply chain disruptions could further inflate 
costs. The company mitigates this risk through value engineering, bulk procurement 
arrangements, and contingency provisions in project budgets. Nonetheless, sustained 
construction inflation remains a risk factor that we closely watch, as it could necessitate 
pricing adjustments or impact housing affordability in the price-sensitive segments we serve. 

 

Outlook 

Despite these challenges, the company remains confident in its strategic direction. We believe our 
focus on residential redevelopment in Mumbai’s key micro-markets – backed by strong market 
fundamentals and prudent risk management – will continue to deliver sustainable growth. The 
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management is committed to navigating the above risks while 
capitalizing on emerging opportunities, thereby creating long-
term value for our stakeholders in FY 2025–26 and beyond. 

COMPLETED PROJECTS 
 
“X’cube”  
Integrating Eminence and Efficiency 
 
CRISIL 5-Star Rated Commercial Development located 
in Andheri (West), X'cube offers exotic spaces catering 
to the needs of  restaurants, showrooms, office exhibition 
areas & customizing to the needs of  MNCs, Corporate 
houses, Professionals & Exhibitors. An advance and 
unmarked rendition. The structure has been made 
environmentally sensitive by emphasizing on the 
conservation of  natural resources. X’cube successfully 
makes a bold visual statement 
 
 
 
 
“X’trium” 
 A Symphony of Elegance and Class 
 
CRISIL 5-Star Rated Commercial Development 
located on the commercial artery. With a passion for 
achieving supremacy, X’trium promises 
ergonomically designed spaces with word-class 
infrastructure to house Commercial offices, Banquet 
halls and Residential hotels. Every floor at these eco-
techno environs is meticulously planned making them 
not just commercial spaces but refreshing surrounds. 
Now featuring additional floors, Xtrium offers 
enhanced convenience and capacity, catering to the 
growing demands of  dynamic businesses and events, 
while maintaining its core essence of  elegance and 
efficiency.  
 
 
 
“X’czar”  
Residences that will make you proud 
 
Structurally grandiose and majestic, X'czar will 
undoubtedly be the envy of  the quaint neighbourhood of  
J.V.P.D. A residential space which will be a symbol of  
magnificence at its best Serving you with the most 
stupendous and dazzling of  services and offerings that 
you would only have dreamt of. Setting high standards 
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of  living, enjoying life to the peak and lavish living at 
its best, are some of  the things that X'czar stands for. 
 
 
 
“X’point”  
Reside Relax Rejuvenate 
 
In the perspective of  creating & designing spaces, for 
every owner to love, to be  proud of and be happy to 
live in. With such expectations we create, one after 
another, exclusive and unique living spaces here by 
introducing X-POINT. The Project is a mix of retail 
spaces and residences that comes along with a rare 
vision to transcend the expectations of  occupant. 
Arriving at the site one is first greeted with a truly 
elegant double height lobby forming a welcoming 
gesture, this is a place to come home to. 
 
 
 
 
 
“X’enus” 
Where Life Resides 
 
X’enus by Rodium is not just an ordinary block – on – 
block building. It is a beautiful space that is designed 
keeping your needs and goals in mind X'enus 
personifies the best experience of  affluent lifestyle 
replete with unparalleled conveniences. With all the 
luxuries and amenities of  5 stars to the basic housing 
needs, we’ve prepared a breath – taking space that you 
will be proud to call your home. 
 
 
 
 
“X’line” 
Redefining Kandivali’s Skyline 
 
After the success of  Rodium X’point, we are have 
completed another iconic landmark to redefine the 
skyline of  Kandivali. Located in the bustling suburbs 
of  Kandivali West, Rodium Xline offers you a lifestyle 
most people can only dream of. We are creating a 
project that has thoughtfully designed homes and 
delightful amenities. At Rodium Xline, we intend to 
deliver another successful project and develop another 
iconic landmark in Kandivali. 
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ONGOING PROJECTS 

 
“X’one” 
Luxury Like None 
 
The Rodium Xone Project, nestled in the prime local 
of  Kandivali West, stands as a masterpiece of 
architectural ingenuity, a blend of  luxury and 
practicality, where every detail has been meticulously 
crafted to exceed your expectations. Set against the 
backdrop of the serene Shankar Mandir and Jain 
Derasar, the project enjoys a unique blend of  
spiritual tranquillity and urban convenience. This is 
not just a home; it’s a statement of  your refined taste 
and aspirations. 
 
 
UPCOMING PROJECTS  
 
“X’heights” 
World of Delight 
 
Rodium presents Building X’heights, an iconic 42-
storey skyscraper that encapsulates the epitome of  
modern living. X’heights is a blend of  exquisite 
design and premium finishes, making it a true symbol 
of  opulence. The attention to detail and commitment 
to quality are evident in every corner, promising a 
lifestyle that is as luxurious as it is comfortable. For 
those seeking a harmonious blend of luxury, comfort, 
and modernity, X’heights is the ultimate destination. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
X’meadows” 
Smart Homes For Smart Living 
 
Your Company is seeking the opportunities in MMR 
Region, the largest market for sales of  residential units 
in the country. X’meadows is designed with a master 
plan incorporating an interesting interplay of  open and 
semi-open spaces that weave in the elements of  nature. 
From commanding 14 storey towers, infinite 
panaromic vistas & airy homes to all modern & 
recreational ammenties we welcome you to sense the 
serenity, connect with nature and experience the 
tranquility. 



 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

Rodium Realty Limited has a well-established internal control system to manage business operations, 
financial reporting and other compliance needs. The business performance vis-à-vis plan is monitored 
periodically, and regular internal audits are performed to ensure sustenance of  the internal control 
systems. 

The Company has a robust and well embedded Internal Control systems in place, adequate for the 
size of  the Company and the nature of  its business. The Primary function of  our internal control 
systems is to ensure efficiency in business operations, safeguarding of  Company’s assets, adherence to 
policies and procedures, protecting and detecting errors and frauds, compliance with applicable laws 
and ensuring the reliability of  financial statements and reporting. This provided assurances to the 
Audit Committee regarding the adequacy and efficacy of  internal controls, advises management on 
the changing risks that matter and is aligned with the business objectives.  

Progress to plan and key findings are reviewed by the Audit Committee each quarter. Further, the 
Audit Committee also monitors the status of  management actions following the internal audit 
reviews.  

RISKS AND CONCERN: 

•  Statutory Approvals: 

The real estate sector in India is heavily regulated by the central, state and local governments. 
Real estate developers are required to comply with a number of  laws and regulations, 
including policies and procedures established and implemented by local authorities in 
relation to land acquisition, transfer of  property, registration and use of  land. These laws 
often vary from state to state. Several of  your Company’s projects are in preliminary stages of  
planning and any delay in obtaining approvals could warrant revised scheduling of  project 
timelines. 

•  Industry Cyclicality  

The real estate market is inherently a cyclical market and is affected by macroeconomic 
conditions, changes in applicable governmental schemes, changes in supply and demand for 
projects, availability of  consumer financing and illiquidity. However, any future significant 
downturn in the industry and the overall investment climate may adversely impact business. 

•  Climate Change-  
The sector is already experiencing shifts due to climate change, the intensity of  which is 
expected to increase over the coming years. The challenges or risks can be broadly classified 
into two categories, physical and transitional. The former is on account of  acute and chronic 
physical effects of  climate change such as damage to infrastructure at construction sites or 
building projects, damages to logistics routes, reduced efficiency of  workforce due to 
heatwaves, etc. 
 

Several management and leadership team members including Board of  Directors periodically review 
the risk management policies and systems to incorporate any changes in the risk profile due to 
changes in the external environment and strategic priorities. The Board of  Directors and the Audit 
Committee of  the Manager is assisted by internal audit team in monitoring the risk profile and 
effectiveness of  mitigation plans to manage the identified business risks. The major risks identified by 
the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing 
basis.  

| Annual Report 2024-2025 

RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 



 
 

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:  
 
The financial overview comprises of  revenue primarily from sale of  completed property and 
proportionate revenue of  property under development. 
 

Standalone Financial Results of Rodium Realty Limited 

                                                                                                                                               (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 
These Separate financial statements (also known as Standalone Financial Statements) have been 
prepared in accordance with IND AS as prescribed under Section 133 of  the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 3 of  the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent 
amendments thereto. 

  

Particulars FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024 
INCOME AND GAINS   
Revenue from operations  1,003.71  1,981.10  
Other Income  322.64  401.85  
Total Income 1,326.35 2,382.95 
 
Cost of  Construction & Development  286.61  795.35  
Cost of  Finished Units 0.00 160.00 
Changes in inventories of  Finished Goods, Stock -in- 
trade and Work -in- progress 

(143.35)  906.01  

Employee Benefit Expenses  36.54  36.12  
Finance Costs  281.31   216.91  
Depreciation and Amortisation expense  8.08  10.07  
Other Expenses  548.53   219.19  
Total Expense 1,017.72 2,343.65 
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 308.63 39.30 
 
-Deferred Tax 31.24 (34.71) 
-Earlier year adjustments (0.65) 54.72 
Total Tax Expense 30.59 20.01 
Profit/ (Loss) For the Year 278.04 19.29 
 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss    
-Remeasurement of  defined benefit plans  0.12 5.70 
-Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to Profit or Loss 

(0.03) (1.43) 

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net 
of Tax 

0.09 4.27 

Total Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the 
year 

278.13 23.56 
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Consolidated Financial Results of Rodium Realty Limited 

                                                                                                                                               (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of  the Holding Company 
and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2025. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has 
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if  and only if  
the Group has: 
 
• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities of  the investee) 
• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 
• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 
 
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of  voting rights result in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of  the voting or similar rights of  an 
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power 
over an investee, including: 
• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of  the investee 
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights 

Particulars FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024 
INCOME AND GAINS  
Revenue from operations  6,155.54   4,755.04  
Other Income  109.21 137.73  
Total Income 6,264.75 4,892.77  
EXPENSE AND LOSSES 
Cost of  Construction & Development  4,666.86 4,100.73  
Cost of  Finished Units 0.00  160.00  
Changes in inventories of  Finished Goods, Stock -in- 
trade and Work -in- progress (51.05) (248.63) 
Employee Benefit Expenses 126.38 46.00  
Finance Costs 291.67 216.91  
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 42.26 10.30  
Other Expenses 596.58 259.53  
Total Expense 5,672.70 4,544.84  
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 592.05 347.93 
TAX EXPENSE 
-Current Tax 346.00  178.98  
-Deferred Tax (137.95)  (34.60) 
-Earlier year adjustments 39.93  71.41  
Total Tax Expense 247.98  215.79  
Profit/ (Loss) For the Year 344.07 132.14 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME         
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss    
-Remeasurement of  defined benefit plans  0.12 5.70 
-Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to Profit or Loss 

(0.03) (1.43) 

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net 
of Tax 

0.09 4.27 

Total Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the 
year 

344.16 136.41 
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• The size of  the group’s holding of  voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of  the holdings of  
the other voting rights holders 
 
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if  facts and circumstances indicate that 
there are changes to one or more of  the three elements of  control. Consolidation of  a subsidiary 
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control 
of  the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of  a subsidiary acquired or disposed of  
during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains 
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 
 
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions 
and other events in similar circumstances. If  a member of  the group uses accounting policies other 
than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar 
circumstances, appropriate adjustments, if  material, are made to that group member’s financial 
statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s 
accounting policies. 
 
The financial statements of  all entities used for the purpose of  consolidation are drawn up to same 
reporting date as that of  the Holding Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March.   
     

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS & RETURN ON 

NET WORTH: 

 

Particulars FY 2024-2025 FY 2023-2024 % Change Remarks for variance 
more than 25% 

Debtors Turnover 1.61  1.83  (12.01%) Not Applicable 

Inventory Turnover 0.48 0.44 8.85% Not Applicable 
Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio 

0.09 0.23 (60.86%) Increase in Earning 
for Debt Service 

Current Ratio 1.13 1.14 (1.08%) Not applicable 
Debt Equity Ratio 3.99 5.81 (31.42%) Decrease in Debt 
Net capital turnover Ratio 1.06 1.68 (37.00%) Reduction in 

Working Capital 
Net Profit Ratio  
  

0.28 0.01 2745.33% Increase in Profit 

Return on Capital 
employed  
  

0.35  
  

0.18 91.82% Increase in Profit 

Return on Investment. 
   

0.39 0.81 (51.79%) Decrease in 
Investment Income 

 

 

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT: 

 
Your Company has followed all the relevant Accounting Standards while preparing the financial 
statements. The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis considering the 
applicable provisions of  Companies Act 2013 except the following material items that have been 
measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS. Nevertheless, historical cost is generally based 
at the fair value of  the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 
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DISCLAIMER: 
 
The Company shall be registering its forthcoming projects at an appropriate time in the applicable 
jurisdictions I States under the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA} and 
Rules thereunder. Till such time, the forthcoming projects, none of  the images, material, projections, 
details, descriptions and other information that are mentioned in the Annual Report for the FY 2024 
2025, should be deemed to be or constitute advertisements, solicitations, marketing, offer for sale, 
invitation to offer, or invitation to acquire within the purview of  the RERA. 
 
The Company uses carpet areas as per RERA in its customer communication. However, the data in 
saleable area terms has been presented in the Annual Report for the FY 2024-2025 to enable 
continuity of  information to investors and shall not be construed to be of  any relevance to home 
buyers /customers. 
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Statutory Disclosure 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), 

the Company presents the Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial year ended 31st March, 

2025 containing the matters detailed in the said Regulations with respect to Corporate Governance 

requirements. 

 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY:  

 

The philosophy of the Company in relation to Corporate Governance is to ensure transparency in all 
its operations, make disclosures and enhance shareholders value without compromising in any way in 
complying with the laws and regulations. Maintaining high standards of  Corporate Governance has 
been fundamental to the business of  your Company since its inception. The Company has committed 
itself  to the philosophy of  good Corporate Governance in all its dealings, utmost integrity in its 
conduct and in compliance with the highest standards of  corporate values and ethics. 
 

The Company believes in maintaining high standards of  quality and ethical conduct with 
transparency and accountability in business functioning and operations. The Company recognizes 
that the shareholders are ultimately the persons who are catalyst to the economic activities and also 
the ultimate beneficiaries thereof.  
 
The compliance with the corporate governance provisions as specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and 

clause clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para-C, D and E of Schedule V is 

not applicable to your Company as the Company does not satisfy the applicability criteria as given 

under Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(Listing Regulations). However, your company believes in maintaining the highest standards of 

Corporate Governance, and hence your Company has voluntarily complied with some of  the criteria 
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as specified in Regulation 27 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, to the extent possible. A report on these is detailed below.   
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES 

 
1. COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS/ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS/ 

DIRECTORSHIPS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES 

/NAMES OF LISTED ENTITIES AND CATEGORY O F DIRECTORS AS ON MARCH 

31, 2025: 

The Board of  the Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 

Directors with 50% of the Board Members comprising Independent Directors. The composition 

of  board is in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”). The Board composition along with 

their attendance during the year and number of other directorships in other companies and 

memberships of  the Committees of  the Board of  such Companies as on March 31, 2025 are 

given below.  

Name
 

Category
 

Attendance
 

Directorships(A)/Mandatory 
Committee(B) Memberships

   

    

No. of 

board 

meetin

gs held 

during 

the 

year

 

No. of

 board

 meetings

 attended

 

Last

 AGM

 atten

dance

 

Director-

 ship in 

public

 compani

es (A)

 

Director-

 ship in

 private

 compani

es

 

Mem-
 bership

 of man-

 datory

 commit

tees

 

Chair-

manship

s
 of

 man-

 datory

 committ

ees (B)

 
Mr. Deepak 

Chheda

 
(Chairman & 

Managing 

Director)

 

Executive 

Director -

Promoter

 

8

 

8

 

Yes

 

1

 

3

 

-

 

-

 

Mr. Harish 

Nisar

 

(Whole-Time 

Director)

 

Executive 

Director -

Promoter

 

8

 

8

 

Yes

 

1

  

-

 

-

 

-

 Mr. Rohit 

Dedhia

 

(Whole-Time 

Director)

 

Executive 

Director -

Promoter

 

8

 

8

 

Yes

 

1

 

-

 

-

 

-

 Mr. Karan 

Rajendra 

Mehta

 

(Independent 

Director)

 

Non-

 

Executive 

Director

 

8

 

8

 

No

 

1

 

-

 

1

 

3

 

 

Mr. 

Dushyant 

Shyam Lilani

 

(Independent 

Director)

 

Non-

 

Executive 

Director

 

8

 

7

 

No

 

1

 

-

 

1

 

-

 

Ms. Shachi 

Manish Shah

(Independent 

Director)

Non-

Executive 

Director

8 8 Yes 1 1 1 -
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(A)- Including Rodium Realty Limited 

(B)- Committees considered are Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee including that of  Rodium Realty Limited. 

•  None of  the Directors are disqualified under Section 164(2) and Section 184(1) of  the Act; 

•  All the Directors have provided timely disclosures and declaration as per the requirements of  the 

SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Companies Act, 

2013, SEBI (Prohibition of  Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of  

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 and other relevant laws;  

•  None of  the Directors hold office in more than 10 public companies Section 165(1) of  the Act; 

•  None of  the Directors are Directors in more than seven (7) Listed Companies; 
•  None of  the Independent Directors serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 (Seven) 

Listed Companies; 
•  The Managing Director is not serving as an Independent Director in any other listed company; 
•  None of  the Directors are member in more than ten (10) committees or acts as chairperson in 

more than 5 (Five) Committees (Committees being Audit Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee as per Regulation 26(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations), across all 

public companies in which he/she is a Director. The necessary disclosures regarding committee 

positions have been made by all the Directors; 
•  the Independent Directors’ Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of  Corporate Affairs 

(‘IICA’).  
•  The Independent Directors of the Company are in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 

16(1)(b) of  the Listing Regulations. In opinion of Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the 

conditions specified in Listing Regulation and are independent of  the management.  

 
a) No. of Board Meetings and dates of Board Meetings: 

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, the Board met 8 (Eight) times i.e., on (i) May 27, 2024 (ii) 

June 04, 2024 (iii) August 14, 2024 (iv) September 03, 2024 (v) November 14, 2024 (Adjourned 

meeting – November 16, 2024) (vi) January 17, 2025 (vii) February 01, 2025 and (viii) February 

24, 2025 respectively.  

The gap between two Meetings did not exceed 120 days. The necessary quorum was present for 

all the Board Meetings. 

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company including the representatives of Internal Auditor and 

Statutory Auditor are invited to attend the Board Meetings so as to provide additional inputs on 

the items being discussed by the Board. 
 

b)
 

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:
 

A separate meeting of  Independent Directors was held on February 24, 2025, which was attended 

by the Independent Directors -
 
Mr.

 
Karan Mehta, Mr. Dushyant Lilani and Ms. Shachi Shah.

  

The Independent Directors Separate Meeting was held to –
 

i.
 

review the performance of  Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
 

ii.
 

review the performance of  the Chairperson of the Company, considering the views of 

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors;
 

iii.
 

Assess the quality, quantity, and timeliness of  flow of information between the 

Company’s management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 

reasonably perform their duties.
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Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for conducting Familiarization Programme for 

Independent Directors. 

None of  the Independent Directors has any pecuniary relationship, transaction or association 

with the Company, which adversely affect their independence.  

2. PROCEDURE OF BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETING AND CORE COMPETENCIES:  

The agenda papers with relevant notes and material documents relating to matters for perusal of 

the Board/ Committee are circulated in advance, so as to facilitate discussion and informed 

decision-making in the meeting. 

 

The routine business brought to the relevant meetings include, inter alia, the following: 

 

•  Annual business plans, budgets and strategy.  

•  Quarterly results and update on operations. 

•  Financial results for the relevant period along with limited review/audit report thereon. 

•  Oversight of the performance of the business. 

•  Minutes of various committee meetings of  the Company and minutes of  board meetings of 

subsidiary companies. 

•  Review of  comments or suggestions given by Internal Auditors. 

 

The following is the list of  core skills /expertise/ competencies identified by the Board of  

Directors required in the context of  the Company’s business and sector for the Company to 

function effectively: 

 

•  Industry and Sector Experience  

•  Understanding of  Business and market expertise 

•  Strategy and Planning 

•  Finance and Risk 

None of  the Executive Directors, Members of  the management or Key Managerial Personnel 

were present for this meeting. 

The Company is availing an exemption under Regulation 15(2) SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

 

•  People and Talent Understanding 

•  Entrepreneurship 

 

Name of directors with their skills / expertise / competence: 

Director 

Names/ 

Skills 

Industry 

and Sector 

Experience 

Finance 

& Risk 

Understanding 

of Business 

and market 

expertise 

People & 

Talent 

Understandi

ng 

Entrepreneur

ship 

 

Strategy and 

Planning 

Mr. Deepak 

Chheda 

Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Mr. Harish 

Nisar 

Y Y Y - - Y 
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Mr. 

Dushyant 

Lilani 

Y Y - Y - Y 

Mr. Karan 

Mehta 

Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Ms. Shachi 

Shah 

Y Y - Y Y Y 

 

3. Subsidiary Monitoring Mechanism: 

The Company does not have any Private Limited company as its subsidiary, but the Company 

still adopts the practice of  Subsidiary Monitoring Mechanism for monitoring its Limited 

Liability Partnership (LLPs) subsidiaries inter alia by the following means: 

 

a) Financial Statements of  the such LLPs are reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Audit 

Committee of the Company.  

 

b) A statement containing all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by such LLPs 

are placed before the Board for its review.  

 

c) The minutes of  the Partners of  the Subsidiary LLPs are reviewed by the Board. 

Mr. Rohit 

Dedhia 

Y Y Y Y Y Y 

 
The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a 

mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behavior.  

 

4. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

As of  March 31, 2025 the Board has three Committees: 

 

•  Audit Committee 

•  Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

•  Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

The role and the composition of  these Committees including number of  meetings held during 

the financial year and participation of  the members at the meetings of  the Committees, during 

the year are as under: 
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 ,  – 

January 17, 2025 and (v) February 1, 2025  

 

The invitees to the meeting are the Chief Financial officer, Internal Auditor & Statutory Auditor 

in respect of  business transaction related to them. The Company Secretary of  the Company acts 

as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The Minutes of the Audit Committee are noted at the 

Board Meetings. 

 

The Composition/Category and the attendance of  members of  the Audit Committee at the 

committee meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2025 is as follows: 

 

Sr. 

no. 

Name of Director Category No. of 

Meetings held 

No. of Meetings 

attended 

1. Mr. Karan Mehta (Member & 

Chairman) 

Independent Director 5 5 

2. Mr. Dushyant Lilani (Member) Independent Director 5 5 

3. Ms. Shachi Shah (Member) Independent Director 5 5 

 

The interval time between any two Audit Committee meetings was not more than 120 days: The 

minutes of the Audit Committee are noted at the Board Meetings. The Audit Committee 

meetings were for the FY 2024-2025 were held at the Registered Office of the Company.  

 

Members of the Audit Committee are eminent professional with expertise in the fields of  

Taxation, Accounting and Corporate Laws.  

 

A. Audit Committee:  

 

The composition of  the Audit Committee of  the Company is in line with the provisions of 

Section 177 of  the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of  the Listing Regulations. The 

Company’s Audit Committee comprises 3 (Three) Independent Directors. 

 

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times on (i) May 27, 2024 (ii) 

August 14, 2024 (iii) November 14 2024 (Adjourned meeting November 16, 2024) (iv) 

 
Terms of reference of the Audit Committee: The broad terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, amongst 

others, are as under:- 

 

•  Oversight of  the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of  its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  

•  Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of  appointment of  auditors of 

the Company; 

•  Approval of  payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered, if  any, by the 

statutory auditors; 

•  Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report 

thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

➢ Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included 

in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of  sub-section 3 of  section 134 of  the Act. 

➢ Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.  

➢ Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of  judgment by 

management. 
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•  Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to 

the Board for approval; 

•  Prior approval of  all related party transactions; 

•  Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of  audit 

process; 

•  Scrutiny of  inter-corporate loans and investments; 

•  The audit committee shall review the information required as per Listing Regulations. 

 

The management is responsible for the Company’s internal control and financial reporting process. 

The Statutory Auditors are responsible for performing the quarterly (limited review) and yearly 

statutory audit of  the Company’s financial statements in accordance with the prevailing accounting 

and auditing standards and for issuing a report thereon. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and 

Section 142 of  the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and as amended from time 

to time. 

 

The Company has appointed M/s. HJT & Associates, Chartered Accountants Firm Registration No. 

0136459W as Internal Auditor of  the Company for the Financial Year 2024-2025, to review the 

internal control systems of the Company and to report thereon. 

 

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N&R Committee) of the Company is constituted in 

accordance with the provisions of  Section 178 of  the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee comprises of  three (3) Independent Directors. The Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee met on November 14, 2024, January 17, 2025 and February 24, 2025. 

➢ Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of  audit findings. 

➢ Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

➢ Disclosure of  any related party transactions. 

➢ Modified opinion in the draft audit report. 

 
The Composition/Category and the attendance of members of  the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee at the committee meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2025 is as follows; 

 

The terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, includes 

 

•  Formulating the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director 

•  Ensuring that the level and composition of  remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to 

attract, retain and motivate directors of  the quality required to run the Manager successfully; 

Sr. 

no. 

Name of the Director Category No. of 

Meetings held 

No. of Meetings 

attended 

1 Mr. Karan Mehta (Member & 

Chairman) 

Independent Director 3 3 

2 Mr. Dushyant Lilani 

(Member) 

Independent Director 3 3 

3 Ms. Shachi Shah (Member) Independent Director 3 3 



•  To review organization structure from time to time  

 

Performance Evaluation 

 

In accordance with the provisions of  the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI LODR 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation 

of  Independent Directors. The evaluation process consists of  questionnaires which are based on the 

guidance note issued by The Institute of  Company Secretaries of  India (ICSI) and SEBI 

 

For the purpose of  performance evaluation, structured questionnaires, covering various aspects of  the 

evaluation such as adequacy of  the size and composition of  the Board and Committee thereof  with 

regard to skill, experience, independence, diversity, attendance and adequacy of  time given by the 

Directors to discharge their duties, Corporate Governance practices, ability to challenge view of 

others in a constructive manner, knowledge acquired with regard to the Company’s business, 

understanding of  industry and global trends, etc. were circulated to the Directors for the evaluation 

process. 

 

The performance evaluation of  the Chairman and Non-Independent Directors was carried out in their 

separate meeting of  Independent Directors held on February 24, 2025. The Directors expressed their 

satisfaction with the evaluation process.  

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Policy is available on our website at 

https://rodium.net/investors/ which contains the performance evaluation criteria for Board, its 

committees and Independent Directors. 

 

•  To assist the Board in determining and implementing the Company’s Policy on the 

remuneration of Executive Directors; 

•  Formulation of a performance evaluation methodology for evaluation of the Board, its 

committees and individual directors and reviewing the process from time to time; 

•  To review diversity benchmarks for the organization.  

Remuneration of Directors: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee oversees the remuneration to be provided to the 

Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel and the major points relating to Remuneration policy are 

as follows: 

 

(i) Remuneration structure of Independent Directors: 

 

a) Independent Directors receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending Board 

Meetings and Committee Meetings as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and approved by the Board and shareholders (wherever required) subject to 

ceiling/ limits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder or any 

other enactment for the time being in force. 

 

b) As of  March 31, 2025, none of the Non-Executive Director held any stock options. There was 

no other pecuniary relationship or transaction of  the Non-Executive Independent Directors 

vis-a-vis the Company.  
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e) The Independent Directors voluntarily waived off the sittings fees of  meetings held during the 

financial year 2024-2025.  

 

Below are the details of remuneration/ commission and fees paid to Directors for the Financial 

Year 2024-2025: 

   

Name of the Directors *Salary and 

Allowance (Rs.) 

Perquisites 

(Rs.) 

Stock Option 

(Rs.) 

Mr. Deepak Chheda                

Chairman and Managing Director 

20,40,000 Nil Nil 

Mr. Harish Nisar                 

Whole-Time Director 

26,40,000 Nil Nil 

Mr. Rohit Dedhia  

Whole-Time Director 

12,60,000 Nil Nil 

 

C. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 178 of  the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of  SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) 

comprises of  3 (three) Directors, and is chaired by an Independent Director. 

 
 

 

c) No other fees/ commission or and kind of  Monetary and Non-monetary benefit were 

paid/provided to them during the Financial Year under review. No tr ansactions have been 

entered into by the Company with the Non-Executive and Independent Directors. 

 

d) The Company has not granted any Perquisite or stock option to Non-Executive, Independent 

Directors. 

 

 
During the year under review, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met on February 01, 2025. 

 
The Composition/Category and the attendance of  members of  the Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee at the committee meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2025 is as follows; 

 

Sr. 

no. 

Name of the Director Category No. of 

Meetings held 

No. of 

Meetings 

attended 

1 Mr. Karan Mehta (Member & 

Chairman) 

Independent Director 1 1 

2 Mr. Dushyant Lilani 

(Member) 

Independent Director 1 1 

3 Ms. Shachi Shah (Member) Whole-Time Director 1 1 

 

Terms of reference of the Committee: Stakeholder Relationship Committee looks into redressal of 

the grievances of Security holders viz., shareholders’, investors’ complaints relating to transfer of  

shares, issue of  duplicate/ consolidated share certificates, review of  cases for refusal of  

transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of  dividends declared and 

all other securities holders related matters. It is also responsible for reviewing the process and 

mechanism of  redressal of investor complaints and suggesting measures of improving the existing 

system of redressal of  investor grievances. 



| Annual Report 2024-2025 

RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 

 

 

system and online redressal of  all the shareholders’ complaints. 

 

There were no pending complaints and/or requests for share transfer, dematerialization, etc. as on 

March 31, 2025. 
 

5. DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING: 
 

Director’s shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2025 was as under: 

 

6. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 

CERTIFICATION: 

As required by under Reg 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director & and the Chief  Financial Officer of  the Company 

Name of Directors No. of Equity Shares 

Mr. Deepak Chheda 10,17,252 

Mr. Harish Nisar 3,20,211 

Mr. Rohit Dedhia 3,19,466 

Mr. Karan Mehta Nil 

Mr. Dushyant Lilani Nil 

Ms. Shachi Shah 801 

 

During the year under review the Company has replied/ resolved all complaints, suggestions and 

grievances expeditiously. The Company endeavors to implement suggestion as and when received 

from investors. The Company is in compliance with SCORES (SEBI Complaints Redress System), 

which is initiated by SEBI for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web based redress 

 
have certified to the Board regarding the Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 

2025. The said Certificate is attached to this report. 

7. GENERAL BODY MEETING: 
 

i. Annual General Meeting: 

The details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as given below: 

Financial 

Year 

Day & Date Time Venue 

2023-2024 September 28, 2024 12:00 noon (IST) Through Video Conference (VC) 

2022-2023 September 28, 2023 03:00 p.m. (IST) Through Video Conference (VC) 

2021-2022 September 28, 2022 03:00 p.m. (IST) Through Video Conference (VC)  

 

ii. Special Resolutions that were passed in the last three Annual General Meetings are as 

follows: 

Date  Special Resolution Passed 

September 

28, 2024  

No special resolution was passed in this AGM. 

September 

28, 2023 

No special resolution was passed in this AGM. 

September 

28, 2022 

No special resolution was passed in this AGM. 
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The details of  the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of  the Company held during FY 2024-

2025 are as given below: 

Financial 

Year 

Day & Date Time Venue 

2024-2025 June 28, 2024 12:00 noon (IST) Through Video Conference (VC) 

 

iv.  Postal Ballot including e-voting: 

 

During FY 2024-2025, special resolutions passed through postal ballot are as given below: 

 

Date  Special Resolution Passed 

March 29, 

2025 

Reappointment of Mr. Deepak Chheda (DIN: 00419447) as Managing Director of the 

Company for the period of  three years 

March 29, 

2025 

Reappointment of  Mr. Harish Nisar (DIN: 02716666) as Whole-Time Director of  the 

Company for the period of  three years 

March 29, 

2025 

Reappointment of Mr. Rohit Dedhia (DIN: 02716686) as Whole -Time Director of  the 

Company for the period of  three years 

 

 

iii. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting: 

 

 

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

 

a) Website: 

Your Company maintains the website www.rodium.net   where in there is a separate dedicated 

section ‘Investor’ which provides up-to-date information to the shareholders on matters relating 

to details of  the Company, its performance including quarterly financial results, annual reports, 

press release, shareholding Pattern, outcome of Board etc. The Annual Report of  the Company 

is also available on the website and can be downloaded.  

Further any query /complaint/ information can be addressed to the Compliance Officer on the 

email id cs@rodium.net.  

b) Financial Results: Quarterly/Half yearly/Annual Results: 

 

The quarterly/half-yearly unaudited - financial results subjected to limited review, and the 

annual audited financial results (in short Financial Results) have been uploaded on Company’s 

website i.e. h�ps://rodium.net/financial-results/ under the Quarterly Results tab available under 

Investors on a regular basis. 

 

The Financial Results of  the Company i.e. Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annually are ordinarily 

published in the ‘Active Times’ and ‘Mumbai Lakhdeep’ and are also uploaded on BSE Listing 

center and hosted on the Company’s website www.rodium.net .    

 

During the Financial Year 2024-2025 no presentation was made to the institutional investors or 

to the analyst after declaration of  Financial Results. As per the requirements of  Regulations 33 & 

47 of  the Listing Regulations, the Financial Results/ are published in leading national 

newspapers as detailed here-in-below, on a regular basis.  
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During the Financial Year 2024-2025 no presentation was made to the institutional investors or 

to the analyst after declaration of Financial Results. 

 

d) Other information/Website: 

 

Various notices/other information mandated to be published as per the provisions of  the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations etc., are published in the newspapers, from time 

to time. 

 

BSE Corporate Compliances and Listing Centre {BSE Listing Centre} is a Web based 

application designed for Corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, 

corporate governance report, financial statement, among others, are filed electronically on BSE 

Listing Centre. 

 

c) News Releases, Presentations, etc.:  

 

Official news releases and media releases, etc. are displayed on the Company’s website 

www.rodium.net   and are also sent to the Stock Exchange. 

 

 
All the information which is required to be uploaded as per the provisions of  the Regulation 46 

of  the Listing Regulations or under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under are 

uploaded / updated on the Company’s website at regular intervals.  

 

e) Annual Report: 

 

Pursuant to the Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, read with Circular Nos. 

14/2020 dated April 08 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13 2020, 22/2020 dated June 15 2020, 

33/2020 dated September 28 2020, 39/2020 dated December 31 2020, 10/2021 dated June 23 

2021, 20/2021 dated December 08,2021, 03/2022 dated May 05 2022, 11/2022 dated December 

28 2022 and 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 respectively issued by the MCA and the 

Securities and Exchange Board of  India have permitted listed companies to send the Notice of  

the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) along with the Annual Report  and audited financial 

statements for the F.Y  2024-2025 is being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose 

email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. They are displayed on the 

Company’s website at www.rodium.net . websites of  the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com  

 

Designated Exclusive Email ID: 

 

The Company has following designated email IDs exclusively for investor servicing:  

 

- For queries on Annual Report – cs@rodium.net 

 

- For queries in respect of  shares in physical mode – investor@cameoindia.com. 
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2025. 

   

 

Venue: Since the Company is conducting meeting through VC / 

OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circular dated May 5, 2020, Registered 

office of the Company will be the deemed venue for the meeting. For 

details please refer to the Notice of  this AGM. 

Financial Year April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 

Date of Book Closure September 24, 2025 to September 30, 2025 

Listing on Stock 

Exchanges 

Equity Shares of  our company are listed on BSE Limited, (BSE), 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001. 

Details of  which are as follows:  

Scrip Code   : 531822 

Scrip ID               : RODIUM 

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

Company Registration 

Details 

The Company is registered in the State of  Maharashtra, India. 

The Corporate Identification Number allotted to Company is 

L85110MH1993PLC206012 

Registered office address Plot No. 636, 501, X'cube, Off  New Link Road, Andheri (West) 

Mumbai-400053, Maharashtra, India 

Date, Time and Venue 

of Annual General 

Meeting for FY 2024-

Tuesday, September 30, 2025 

 

Time: 12.00 noon

ISIN    : INE513E01024 

Company also has Unlisted 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 

Shares. 

Payment of Listing Fees 

 

Annual listing fee for the year 2025-2026 (as applicable) has been paid 

by the Company to BSE. 

Payment of Custodial 

Fees 

Annual custodial fee of  CDSL and NSDL for the year 2025-2026 has 

been paid by the Company. 

Recommendation of 

Dividend and Dividend 

Payment 

No dividend is recommended for the financial year 2024-2025, as the 

company reserves the profits for future events. 

Suspension of trading in 

securities 

There was no suspension of trading in securities of the Company during 

the year under review. 

Outstanding GDRs/ 

ADRs/ Warrants/ 

Convertible 

Instruments and their 

impact 

on Equity 

Your Company does not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs 

/Warrants / Convertible Instruments, including stock options. 

Registrar and Transfer 

Agents 

Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Subramanian Building, No.1 Club 

House Road, Chennai 600002, Phone: 044–28460390;  

Email id: investor@cameoindia.com 

Website: www.cameoindia.com  

Commodity Price 

Risk/Foreign Exchange 

Risk and Hedging 

The Company did not engage in any commodity price risk or foreign 

exchange risk and hedging activities for the Financial Year 2024-2025. 



  

10. STOCK MARKET PRICE DATA FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025.  

Month 

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

(In Rs. Per share) 

Month’s High Price Month’s Low Price 

April, 2024 72.00 56.19 

May, 2024 73.82 54.16 

June, 2024 77.00 70.91 
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that are re-lodged for transfer shall be issued only in demat mode. 

However, Members are not barred from holding shares in physical 

form. Members who are desirous of transferring shares (which are held 

in physical form) after April 01, 2019 can do so only after the shares are 

dematerialized. Transfers of equity shares in electronic form are 

effected through the depositories with no involvement of  the Company.
 

 

Plant Location The Company does not have any plant location.  

Share Transfer System As per Regulation 40 of  the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities 

of  listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form 

w.e.f. April 01, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission 

or transposition of  securities. Further, SEBI has fixed March 31, 2021 

as the cut-
 
off  date for re-lodgement of transfer deeds and the shares 

 
July, 2024 99.99 76.00 

August, 2024 127.95 87.41 

September, 2024 109.90 90.27 

October, 2024 110.56 91.08 

November, 2024  117.48 91.30 

December, 2024 177.85 120.00 

January, 2025  169.85 140.20 

February, 2025 203.95 166.70 

March, 2025 199.00 171.45 

 

11. SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISON TO INDEX – BSE SENSEX FOR 

THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025. 

 

 



| Annual Report 2024-2025 

RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 

  

 

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 202 5 

 

Category 

Code 

Category Of Shareholder No.  of 

Share 

holders 

Total 

number of 

Shares 

As a  

Percentage of 

Total 

(A+B+C) 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and 

Promoter Group 

   

(a) Indian 8 22,87,317 70.42% 

(b) Foreign - - - 

 Total Shareholding of Promoter and 

Promoter Group 

8 22,87,317 70.42% 

(B) Public Shareholding    

(a) Institutions - - - 

(b) Non-Institutions 1053 9,60,583 29.58%  
 Total Public Shareholding 1053 9,60,583 29.58% 

(c) Shares held by Custodians and 

against which Depositories Receipts 

have been issued 

- - - 

 Total (A +B+ C) 1061 32,47,900 100.00% 

 

12. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2025. 

 

Sr. No. Category Holders % of Share 

Holders 

No. of Shares 

Held 

% of Total 

Share Holding 

1. 10–5000 933 85.8326 68364 2.1049 

2. 5001–10000 47 4.3238 36610 1.1272 

3. 10001–20000 34 3.1279 47665 1.4676 

4. 20001–30000 17 1.5639 44020 1.3553 

5. 30001–40000 7 0.6440 27265 0.8395 

6. 

. 

40001–50000 8 0.7360 36438 1.1219 

7.  50001–100000 16 1.4719 142535 4.3885 

        8.  100001 & above 25 2.2999 2845003 87.5952 

 Total 

 

1087 100 32,47,900 100.0000 

 
 

13. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AS ON MARCH 31, 202 5 

 

The trading in the Equity shares of  the Company is in dematerialized form. The position of 

dematerialized shares as well as physical shares as on the 31st March, 2025 is as under:- 

  

Particulars No. of Shares % of total shares 

Shares in Physical mode 26805 0.8253% 

Shares in Demat mode (Both CSDL and NSDL) 3221095 99.1747% 
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Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund (“IEPF”). 

 

Further, all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unclaimed for seven 

consecutive years or more from the date of  transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be 

transferred to IEPF Authority. The said requirement does not apply to shares in respect of  which 

there is a specific order of  Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, restraining any transfer of the

shares. 

 

 

14. TRANSFER OF UNPAID/ UNCLAIMED AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION 

AND PROTECTION FUND 

 

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), 

dividend, if  not claimed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of  transfer to Unpaid 

 
The following table gives information relating to various outstanding dividends and the dates by 

which these can be claimed by the shareholders from the Company’s Registrar and Transfer 

Agent: 

 

Financial Year Date of Declaration Last date of claiming unpaid dividend 

2014-2015 26.09.2015 02.11.2022 

2015-2016 27.09.2016 02.11.2023 

2016-2017 22.09.2017 27.10.2024 

2017-2018 28.09.2018 03.11.2025 

2018-2019 27.09.2019 02.11.2026 

 

The complete details of  such shareholders whose unpaid dividend and shares are liable to be 

transferred to IEPF Authority has been uploaded on the Company’s website at 

https://rodium.net/investors/  

 

15. COMPLIANCE OFFICER: 

 

During the year, Ms. Jyoti Singh  resigned from the post of  Company secretary w.e.f. 

05.11.2024. The company has appointed Ms. Riddhi Soni as Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer of  the Company w.e.f. 17.01.2025. 

 

16. DISCLOSURES: 

 

➢ Materially Significant Related Party: All transactions entered into during the financial year 

2024-2025 with Related Parties as defined under the Act and the Listing Regulations were in the 

ordinary course of  business and on an arm’s length basis and do not attract the provisions of  

Section 188 of  the Companies Act, 2013. These have been approved by the Audit Committee. 

Suitable disclosures as required under Accounting Standard 18 (AS-18), has been made in the 

notes to the Financial Statements as well as in Form AOC-2, which forms a part of  the Board 

Report. None of  the transactions with the related parties is in conflict with the interest of the 

Company.  
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➢ Non-Mandatory Requirements: The Company has reviewed the non-mandatory requirements 

as specified in the Listing Regulations and it shall be adopted /complied by the Company on 

need basis and voluntary.  

 

➢ Details of non-compliance relating to capital markets during the past 3 years: The Company 

has complied with all requirements of  the Regulatory Authorities. No penalties / strictures were 

imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any 

matter related to capital market since the listing of the Company’s equity shares.  

 

➢ Accounting Treatment: The standalone and consolidated financial statements for financial year 

2024-2025 have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards 

(INDAS) and the provisions of  the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. 

 

➢ Compliance with Mandatory Requirements: As of  March 31, 2025, the Company was fully 

compliant with all applicable mandatory requirements of the provisions of  SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 

➢ Code of Conduct: The Company has its own Model Code of  Conduct which is applicable to its 

Board and Senior Management. The Company is committed in conducting its business and 

operations in conformity with the ethical standards and applicable laws, rules and regulations.  

The Company has also received declaration from its Board and Senior Management regarding 

the compliance with the said Code of Conduct for the financial year under review and a 

declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director is annexed to this report. 

 

The Model code of Conduct can be accessed on Company website at 

https://rodium.net/investors/  

 

➢ Certificate from Company Secretary in practice: A certificate from M/s Kaushal Doshi & 

Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership Number 10609 and CP No. 13143 in 

practice stating that none of  the directors on the board of  the Company have been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of  companies by SEBI/Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority is annexed to this report. 

 

➢ Recommendation of the committees: During the year under review, the Board has accepted all 

recommendations made by various Committees of  Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

The fees paid by the Company (on a consolidated basis) to the statutory auditors and its network 

firm during the financial year 2024-2025 is as under: 

 

 

 

 

 

Sr. no.  Service Provided Amount  

1 Audit fee 2,00,000/- 

2 Tax Audit fee 75,000/- 

3 Other Services 1,25,000/- 
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The Company has in place mechanisms to inform Board members about the risk assessment and 

mitigation procedures and periodical reviews to ensure that risk is controlled by the executive 

management through the means of  robust risk management framework. Company has also 

formulated Vigil Mechanism system whereby the employees can have direct access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee which also acts as a whistle blower policy. The Company 

affirms that no employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee.  

 

The said Policy is placed on the website of  the Company viz: https://rodium.net/investors/  

 

 

➢ Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of Board’s Report. All matters 

pertaining to industrial structure, developments, risks and concerns, internal control and 

adequacy, discussion on financial and operational performance etc., are discussed in the said 

Report. 

 

➢ Risk Management Framework/Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism  

 

 
➢ Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013 disclosure 

 

The Company is committed to creating and maintaining an atmosphere in which employees can 

work together, without fear of  sexual harassment, exploitation or intimidation. The Company 

has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has complied with provisions of  the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohi bition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

and the Rules framed thereunder. There was no case of  sexual harassment reported during the 

year under review.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

➢ Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit: 

 

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out quarterly audit to reconcile the total 

admitted Equity Share capital with National Securities Depository Services (India) Limited 

(NSDL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Physical Shares and the total 

issued and listed equity share capital. 

 

The Audits confirm that the total issued/paid-up equity share capital is in agreement with the 

total number of  equity shares in physical form and the total number of  dematerialized shares 

held in NSDL and CDSL. 

 

➢ Compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance Report: 

The Company has complied with the requirements of  Corporate Governance Report of  sub 

paras (2) to (10) mentioned in Para C of  Schedule V of  SEBI (LODR), 2015.  

a. Number of  complaints filed during the financial year Nil 

b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial 

year 

Nil 

c. Number of  complaints pending as on end of the financial 

year 

Nil 
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to the extent possible. 

 

By order of the Board of Directors, 

For Rodium Realty Limited 

 

Sd/-                         Sd/-          

Deepak Chheda     Rohit Dedhia  

Managing Director    Whole-Time Director 

(DIN: 00419447)      (DIN: 02716686) 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: August 13, 2025 

 

Further the compliance relating to Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of  Regulation 46(2) 

of  SEBI LODR is not applicable to your Company, since your Company does not have paid up 

equity share capital exceeding rupees ten crore and net worth exceeding rupees twenty-five 

crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year. However, your Company is co mmitted to 

good corporate governance in its true spirit has voluntarily complied with the certain regulations 
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CONFIRMATION OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT BY CHAIRMAN & MANAGING 

DIRECTOR 

 

I hereby affirm that the Company has adopted a Code of  Conduct for its Board members and 

senior management personnel and the same is available on the Company’s website.  

 

To the best of  my knowledge and belief, I confirm that the Company has, in respect of  the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025, received from the senior management personnel of  the 

Company and the members of  the Board, a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct 

as applicable to them. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board, 

For Rodium Realty Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Deepak Chheda 

Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN 00419447) 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: August 13, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



	

CERTIFICATE	OF	NON-DISQUALIFICATION	OF	DIRECTORS 	
	

(Pursuant	to	Regulation	34(3)	and	Schedule	V	Para	C	clause	(10)(i)	of	the	SEBI	(Listing	
Obligations	and	Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015)	

	

To,	
The	Members	of	
RODIUM	REALTY	LIMITED	
Plot	No.	636,	501,	X'cube,	Off	New	Link	Road,		
Andheri	(West),	Mumbai-	400053	

	

We	have	examined	the	relevant	registers,	records,	forms,	returns	and	disclosures	received	from	
the	Directors	 of	Rodium	Realty	 Limited	having	CIN:	L85110MH1993PLC206012	and	having	
registered	 of�ice	 at	 Plot	 No.	 636,	 501,	 X'cube,	 Off	 New	 Link	 Road,	 Andheri	 (West),	 Mumbai-	
400053		(hereinafter	referred	to	as	‘the	Company’),	produced	before	me/us	by	the	Company	for	
the	purpose	of	issuing	this	Certi�icate,	in	accordance	with	Regulation	34(3)	read	with	Schedule	
V	 Para-C	 Sub	 clause	 10(i)	 of	 the	 Securities	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Listing	 Obligations	 and	
Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.	

	

In	our	opinion	and	to	the	best	of	our	information	and	according	to	the	veri�ications	(including	
Directors	 Identi�ication	 Number	 (DIN)	 status	 at	 the	 portal	 www.mca.gov.in)	 as	 considered	
necessary	and	explanations	furnished	to	us	by	the	Company	&	its	of�icers,	We	hereby	certify	that	
none	of	the	Directors	on	the	Board	of	the	Company	as	stated	below	for	the	Financial	Year	ending	
on	31st	March,	2025	have	been	debarred	or	disquali�ied	from	being	appointed	or	continuing	as	
Directors	 of	 companies	 by	 the	 Securities	 and	Exchange	Board	 of	 India,	Ministry	 of	 Corporate	
Affairs,	any	such	other	Statutory	Authority.	

	

		Sr.	No			Name	of	Director	 DIN	 Date	of	appointment	
in	Company	

1	 Mr.	Deepak	Dungarshi	Chheda	 00419447	 14/11/2009	
2	 Mr.	Rohit	Keshavji	Dedhia	 02716686	 14/11/2015	
3	 Mr.	Harish	Damji	Nisar	 02716666	 14/11/2015	
4	 Mr.	Dushyant	Shyam	Lilani	 06893481	 01/04/2024	
5	 Mr.	Karan	Rajendra	Mehta	 10566820	 01/04/2024	
6	 Ms.	Shachi	Manish	Shah	 10566841	 01/04/2024	

	

Ensuring	the	eligibility	of	for	the	appointment	/	continuity	of	every	Director	on	the	Board	is	the	
responsibility	of	the	management	of	the	Company.	Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	
these	based	on	our	veri�ication.	This	certi�icate	is	neither	an	assurance	as	to	the	future	viability	
of	the	Company	nor	of	the	ef�iciency	or	effectiveness	with	which	the	management	has	conducted	
the	affairs	of	the	Company.	
	 	

For	Kaushal	Doshi	&	Associates,	
Practicing	Company	Secretaries	

	
	

Kaushal	Doshi	
Proprietor	

FCS:	F10609/COP	No:	13143	
PR	Number:	6946/2025	

UDIN:	F010609G000994163	
	
Date:	13th	August,	2025	
Place:	Mumbai	
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Kaushal Doshi & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretary 
A/39, Ashok Samrat, Daftary Road, Malad (E), Mumbai – 400 097 
Mobile No.: +91-9892 368 648/8879061581 

Email : doshikaushal20@gmail.com 

           



 

SCA AND ASSOCIATES                                                              
Chartered Accountants         

        
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITED  
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of RODIUM REALTY 
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, 
the Standalone Statement of Prot and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), Standalone 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, 
and Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements including Material Accounting Policies and Other 
Explanatory Information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and amended and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs (nancial position) of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, 
and its prot (nancial position including other comprehensive income), the changes in equity and 
its cash ows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specied under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the 
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fullled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 15 of the Standalone Financial Statements regarding non-provision of 
interest on unsecured loans as Management has obtained consent from the unsecured loan holders 
for waiver of interest for the current nancial year. 
Our opinion is not modied in respect of this matter. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signicance in 
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the nancial statements as a whole and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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S No Key Audit Matters Our Response 
1 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition involves 
signicant estimates related to 
measurement of costs to complete the 
projects. Revenue from projects is 
recorded based on the Company’s 
assessment of the work completed, 
cost incurred and accrued and the 
estimate of the balance costs to 
complete

 
the Project.

 
Considering the signicant estimate 
involved in measurement of revenue, 
we have considered measurement of 
revenue as key audit matter.

 

Our audit procedure included: 
1. Identifying and testing operating 

effectiveness of key controls over 
recording of project costs 
 

2. Assessing the cost incurred and accrued 
to date on the balance sheet by 
examining underlying invoices and 
signed agreements on a sample basis. 
Assessing contract costs to check no 
cost,

 
of revenue nature are incorrectly 

recorded
 
in the balance sheet.

 
 

3.
 

Comparing, on sample basis, revenue 
transactions recorded during the year 
with the underlying contracts, progress 
reports, invoices raised on customers 
and collections in bank accounts. Also 
checked the related revenue had been 
recognised in accordance with the 
Company’s revenue recognition 
policies.

  4.
 

Comparing the cost to complete 
workings with the budgeted costs and 
inquiring for variance.

 
 5.

 

Sighting company’s internal approvals 
on sample basis for changes in 
budgeted costs along with the rationale 
for the changes.

 

  

Inventories (Note 8

 

to the Standalone 
Financial Statements)

 As at March 31, 2025, the carrying 
value of the inventory of ongoing and 
completed real-estate projects is Rs. 
4,174.59

 

Lacs. The inventories are held 
at the lower of the cost and net 
realisable value (“NRV”). 

 
 
The determination of NRV involves 
estimates based on prevailing market 
conditions and considering

 

the stage 
of completion of the inventory, the 
estimated future selling price, cost to 
complete projects and selling costs.

 
We identied the assessment of the 
carrying value of inventory as a key 
audit matter due to the signicance of 
the balance to the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole and the 
involvement of estimates and 
judgement in the assessment.

 

Our audit procedures included, among 
others:

 1.

 

Evaluation

 

of the design and operation 
of internal controls related to testing 
recoverable amounts with carrying 
amount of inventory including 
evaluating Management processes for 
estimating future costs to complete 
projects. 

 
 

2.

 

As regards NRV, for a sample of 
selected projects, compared costs 
incurred and estimates of future cost to 
complete the project with costs of 
similar projects and compared NRV to 
recent sales or to the estimated selling 
price applied in assessing the NRV.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements 
and our Auditor’s Report thereon. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to communicate the matter with those charged with Governance. 
 
Management’s and Board of Directors Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
  
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a 
true and fair view of the nancial position, nancial performance (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and cash ows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
nancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s nancial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Standalone nancial statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
inuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial 
Statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 

 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,  
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal nancial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.  Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal nancial controls in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors. 
 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s and Board of Directors use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signicant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 
 

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and signicant audit ndings, including any signicant deciencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most signicance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters.  We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benets of such communication. 
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A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that: 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 
c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Prot and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 
d) In our opinion, the said Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors on April 01, 2025 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualied as on March 31, 2025 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls with reference to nancial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure B”.  

 
B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its nancial position in its 

Standalone Financial Statements – Refer Note 30 (h) to the Standalone Financial Statements;  
 

ii. The Company does not have long-term contracts for which there are material foreseeable 
losses  
 

iii. Unclaimed Dividend of Rs. 0.62 Lacs for the nancial years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund is pending to be transferred as on Balance 
Sheet date. 
 

iv. (a) As represented to us by the Management and to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been advanced or lend or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries”), with the understanding whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneciaries; and 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the 
matters specied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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(c) Based on such audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that causes us to believe that the above 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 
 

v. The Company has neither paid nor not declared any dividend for the year under audit.  
 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and in accordance with the 
requirements of the implementation guide on reporting of Audit Trail under Rule 11 (g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the Company has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded. Further, we have not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
with during the course of our audit. 

 

Additionally, the audit trial of prior years has been preserved by the company as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the 
respective years. 

 
C) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has 

paid and provided for remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the 
provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

 
For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 101174W) 

 
 
 
 

(Vasant M. Gala) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 037626 
UDIN:- 25037626BNJVTX1811 
Mumbai, May 30, 2025 
  

otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneciaries; and 
 

(b) As represented to us by the Management and to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
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ANNEXURE ”A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 
 
i) In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment: 

a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 
B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible 
Assets. 
 

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the 
records of the Company, the Assets have been physically veried by the management in 
accordance with a regular programme of verication, which in our opinion is 
reasonable, considering the size and the nature of its business. The frequency of 
verication is reasonable and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such 
physical verication. All discrepancies have been properly dealt with in the books of 
accounts; 
 

c) The Company does not own any immovable properties, hence Clause (i)(c) of Para 3 of 
the order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible 
Assets during the year. 
 

e) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the 
records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are 
pending against the Company as at March 31 2025 for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made 
thereunder 
 

ii) a)  Having regard to the nature of inventory, the physical verication by way of 
verication of title deeds, site visits by the Management and certication of extent of 
work completion by competent persons, are at reasonable intervals. In our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and 
procedure of such verication by the Management is appropriate having regard to the 
size of the Company and nature of its operations and no discrepancies of 10% or 
more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical 
verication of inventories when compared with books of account. 

 
b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in 
excess of Rs. 5 Crores, in aggregate, during the year, from banks and nancial 
institutions on the basis of lien of deposits. As informed, the Company is not required to 
le quarterly returns/ statements.  

  
iii) The Company has made investments in other entities. During the year the Company has 

provided guarantee, and granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, to Companies, 
Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any other parties. 

 
a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans and stood as 

corporate guarantor/provided security as a partner in LLP (Co-Borrower) as follows  
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(Rs. in Lacs) 

Particulars Guarantee/Security Loans 

Aggregate amount provided during the year   

For Subsidiaries  Nil  

Others  Nil 

Balance Outstanding as at Balance sheet date   

For Subsidiaries  5000  

Others  58.00 

 
b) In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees/security provided and loans given 

are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 
 

c) In respect of loans the repayment of principal is not stipulated and the loans are 
repayable on demand. The interest is overdue. 

 
d) Interest overdue on loans is as follows 

(Rs. in Lacs) 

No of Cases Interest Overdue Total Overdue 

3 47.79 47.79 

 
e) As the loans are repayable on demand, no loans have fallen due during the year. 

 
f) The following loans are repayable on demand as on March 31, 2025 

(Rs. in Lacs) 

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties 

Aggregate amount of loans repayable on 
demand 

58.00 0 0 

Percentage of Loans 100% 0 0 

 
iv) In our opinion the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the 

Act, with respect to investments made during the year. 
 

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 as amended. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of Para 3 of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 
 

vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, Central Government has not 
prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act. 
 

vii) In respect of statutory dues: 
(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 

Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added 
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been 
deposited by it with delays ranging between 1 to 6 months with the appropriate authorities. 
We have been informed that the provisions of the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 
are not applicable to the Company. 
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(b) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been 

deposited on account   of disputes as on March 31, 2025 
 

viii) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the records of 
the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were 
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 
of 1961) during the year. 

 
ix) (a)  According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.  

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 

procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any 
bank or nancial institution or government or any government authority. 

 
(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the 

Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the 
loans were obtained. 

 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 

performed by us, and on an overall examination of the nancial statements of the 
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the 
year for long-term purposes by the Company. 

 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the nancial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries. 

 
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed 

by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries. 

 
x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public 

offer (Including debt instruments), during the year and hence reporting under Clause (x) 
(a) of Para 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 
 

 
(b)

 
The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or 
fully convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year 
and accordingly provisions of clause (x)(b) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company

 
 

xi)
 

(a) 
 

On the basis of our examination of books and records of the Company and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or any material 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the Management.

 

Provident Fund, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, 
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

 
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, 

-
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xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly provisions of clause (xii) of Para 3 of 

the order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

xiii) On the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, we report that all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 
177 and 188 of the Act, and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial 
Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting standards. 

 
xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 

the size and the nature of its business. 
 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of 
our audit procedures. 

 
xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 

Company has not entered in to any non -cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with the directors and hence provisions of Sec 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company. 
 

xvi) (a)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, provisions of clause (xvi)(a) of Para 3 of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
(b) During the year, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or 

Housing Finance activities and accordingly, provisions of clause (xvi)(b) of Para 3 of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as dened in the Regulations 

made by the Reserve Bank of India and accordingly the provisions of clause (xvi)(c) of 
Para 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(d) As informed to us and as veried, the group does not have any CIC as a part of the 

group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of Para 3 of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and 

in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

 (b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been led in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year.  

 
 (c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints 

received by the Company during the year. 

 
-
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xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees ve hundred crore or more, or turnover of 

rupees one thousand crore or more or a net prot of rupees ve crore or more during the 
immediately preceding nancial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not 
applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of Para 3 
of the Order is not applicable for the year 

 

xxi) As these are standalone nancial statements, clause (xxi) of para 3 of the order is not 
applicable 
 

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 101174W) 

 
 
 
 

(Vasant M. Gala) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 037626 
UDIN:- 25037626BNJVTX1811 
Mumbai, May 30, 2025 

 
 
 
 

  

balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date.  We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company.  We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company 
as and when they fall due. 

which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 

 
xix) On the basis of the nancial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of nancial assets 

and payment of nancial liabilities, other information accompanying the nancial statements 
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITED.  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the internal nancial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of 
RODIUM REALTY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal nancial controls 
with reference to Financial Statements and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2025, based on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(ICAI). 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal nancial controls based on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efcient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable nancial information, 
as required under the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal nancial controls with 
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls.   Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal nancial controls with reference to Financial Statements were established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal nancial controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.  
Our audit of internal nancial controls with reference to Financial Statements includes obtaining an 
understanding of such internal nancial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 
A Company's internal nancial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of nancial reporting and the preparation 
of nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal nancial control with reference to Financial Statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the nancial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal nancial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal nancial control with reference to Financial Statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 101174W) 

 
 
 
 

(Vasant M. Gala) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 037626 
UDIN:- 25037626BNJVTX1811 
Mumbai, May 30, 2025 
 

 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal nancial controls system with reference to 
Financial Statements. 
 

of the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis 
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Particulars Note
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3 (a) 5.85                    10.13                                

Other Intangible Assets 3 (b) 1.59                    4.13                                  
Financial Assets

- Investments 4 573.38                541.03                              
- Other Financial Assets 5 1,338.71             797.48

                              
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 121.69                152.96

                              
Total Non-current Assets (A) 2,041.22             1,505.73

                           Current Assets

Inventories 8 4,174.59             4,031.24

                            Financial Assets

- Investments 4 32.78                  39.23

                                - Trade Receivables 9 1,249.13             978.58

                              
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 44.32                  82.01

                                
- Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 1.26                    558.50

                              
- Loans 12 60.85                  60.58

                                
- Others Financial Assets 5 215.68                226.24

                              
Current Tax Assets (Net) 37.83                  23.22

                                

Other Current Assets 7 2,475.94             3,513.45

                            

Total Current Assets (B) 8,292.38             9,513.05

                           
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 10,333.60           11,018.78

                         

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share Capital 13 344.50                344.50

                              

Other Equity 14 1,322.07             1,043.93

                            

Total Equity (A) 1,666.57             1,388.43

                           

LIABILITIES

Non-current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings 15 1,288.13             1,266.10

                            

Provisions 16 33.89                  29.28

                                

Total Non-current Laibilities (B) 1,322.03             1,295.38

                           

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings 15 5,355.07             6,803.98

                            

- Trade Payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 

small enterprises; and 17 10.98                  6.44

                                  

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 17 100.80                172.33

                              

- Other Financial Liabilities 18 1.26                    1.26

                                  

Other Current Liabilities 19 1,854.54             1,330.14

                            

Provisions 16 22.36                  20.81

                                

Total Current Laibilities (C) 7,345.01             8,334.97

(In Rupees Lacs)

                           

 Total Liabilities (B+C) 8,667.03             9,630.35

                           

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (A+B+C) 10,333.60           11,018.77

                         

Basis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies 2

                                                             

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686Vasant M. Gala

Partner                                                                 Riddhi Mahendra Soni

Mem.No.  037626 Company Secretary Rohan Chheda

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 A35252 Chief Financial Ofcer

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025
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Particulars Note

 Year Ended 31 March 

2025 

 Year Ended 31 March 

2024 

INCOME

Revenue from Operations 20 1,003.71                           1,981.10
                          

Other Income 21 322.64                              401.85

                             

TOTAL INCOME 1,326.35                          2,382.95

                          

EXPENSES

Cost of Construction and Development 22 286.61                              795.35

                             

Cost of Finished Units -                                   160.00

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and 

Work-in-Progress 23 (143.35)                            906.01

                             

Employee Benets Expense 24 36.54                                36.12

                               

Finance Costs 25 281.31                              216.91

                             

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 3 (a) & (b) 8.08                                 10.07

                               

Other Expenses 26 548.53                              219.19

                             

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,017.72                          2,343.65

                          

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 308.63                             39.30

                               

TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax  -

                                        

 -

                                        

Deferred Tax  31.24                               (34.71)

                             

Earlier Period Adjustments (0.65)                                54.72

                               

TOTAL TAX EXPENSE 30.59                               20.01

                               

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (A) 278.04                             19.29

                               

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 

Items that will not be reclassied subsequently to Prot or Loss

Remeasurements of net Dened Benet Plans 0.12                                  5.70

                                 

Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassied

 

subsequently to Prot or Loss (0.03)                                (1.43)

                               

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (B) 0.09                                 4.27

                                 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A+B) 278.13                             23.56

                               

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE (In Rupees) 30 (a)

Basic 8.56                                  0.59

                                 

Diluted 8.56                                  0.59

                                 

Basis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements

This is the Standalone Statement of Prot and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W

Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant M. Gala

Partner                                                                 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mem.No.  037626 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofcer 

(In Rupees Lacs)

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025

                           

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 A35252
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(In Rupees Lacs)

Particulars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX 308.63               39.30              

Adjustment for :

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 8.08                                 10.07                   

Finance Cost 281.31                             469.06                 

Interest Income (89.68)                             (124.16)
               

Dividend Income -
                                 

 (0.14)
                    

Remeasurements of Dened Benet Plans 0.12
                                

 5.70
                     

Gain on Sale of Investment (0.26)
                              

 -
                       

Balances Written Back/Off 13.26
                   

Foreign Exchange Loss 0.43
                     

Share of Prot in LLP (228.76)                           (235.92)
               

Fair Value Changes in Investments (2.63)
                              

 (31.82)               (26.08)                 112.22
            

CASH GENERATION FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE WORKING 
CAPITAL CHANGES

               276.81              151.52 

Adjustment for :

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (270.55)                           212.23

                 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (522.96)                           (22.84)

                 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 1,037.51                         (1,432.56)

            

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (143.35)                           906.01

                 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable (66.98)                             (12.24)

                 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions                                  6.15 1.42

                     

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 524.39                            564.21               766.90                 418.92

            

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 841.02               570.44

            

Taxes paid (net of refunds) (13.95)               27.05

              

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 827.07               597.49

            

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.25)

                              

 (6.24)

                    

Sale of Investments 22.70                              29.21

                   

Investment in Wholly Owned Subsidiary                                      -   -

                       

Movement in Current Capital of Investment in Subsidiaries 168.90                            (23.40)

                 

Loans (0.27)

                              

 28.74                   

Term Deposits with maturity more than 3 months                              557.24 8.94

                     

Dividend Income                                      -   0.14

                     

Interest Income 89.68                              128.83

                 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 837.00               166.23

            

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Repayments) / Proceeds from Loans (Net) (1,199.34)                        (318.67)

               

(Repayments) / Proceeds from other borrowings (227.56)                           39.53

                   

Repayments of Borrowings -

                       

Interest paid (281.31)                           (482.81)

               

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES           (1,708.20)            (761.95)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (44.14)               1.76

                

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 121.24               119.48

            

Cash & Cash Equivalents 82.01              44.18

              

Current Investments 39.23              75.30

              

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 77.10                 121.24

            

Cash & Cash Equivalents 44.32               82.01

              

Current Investments 32.78               39.23

              

Note to Cash Flow Statement: -                     -

                   

1. The above Standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in IND AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

This is the Standalone Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant M. Gala

 

Partner                                                                 

Mem.No.  037626 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofcer

A35252

Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025

                           



EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Number Amount Number

Authorised Share Capital 6,000,000.00        600.00                  6,000,000.00

Issued Share Capital 3,733,300.00        373.33                  3,733,300.00

Subscribed Share Capital 3,247,900.00        324.79                  3,247,900.00

Fully Paid-up Share Capital 3,247,900.00        324.79                  3,247,900.00                  

Forefeited Shares - Amount originally paid up on 4,85,400 Shares 19.71                    

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,247,900          344.50               3,247,900               

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -

Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 3,247,900          344.50               3,247,900                             

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 3,247,900          344.50               3,247,900                             

OTHER EQUITY (In Rupees Lacs) 

Capital Reserve
Retained 

Earnings

Remeasurements

of Dened

 Benet Plans

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 350.51                 421.41                 234.44                 14.01

Changes in Accounting Policy or Correction of Prior Period Errors - - - -

Restated balance as at 1st April 2023 350.51                 421.41                 234.44                 14.01

Prot for the Reporting year ending 31st March 2024 19.29

Other Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year ending 31 March 2024 4.27

Total Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year -                       -                       19.29                   4.27

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Dividends;

Balance at the end of the Reporting year ending 31st March 2024 350.51                 421.41                 253.73                 18.28

Changes in Accounting Policy or Correction of Prior Period Errors -                       -                       -                        -

Restated balance as at 1st April 2024 350.51                 421.41                 253.73                 18.28

Prot for the Reporting year ending 31st March 2025 278.04

Other Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year ending 31 March 2025 0.09

Total Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year -                       -                       278.04                 0.09

This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant M. Gala

Partner                                                                 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mem.No.  037626 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofcer

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 A35252

OTHER EQUITY Equity  

Component of 

Compound 

Financial 

Instrument

Reserves & Surplus

As at 

31 March 2025 

(In Rupees 

As at 

31 March 2024 

Amount

              600.00

              373.33

              324.79

              324.79

                    19.71

344.50

344.50

344.50

                         1,020.38

-

                         1,020.38

                   19.29

                           4.27

                           23.56

                         1,043.93

                              -

                         1,043.93

                 278.04

                           0.09

                           1,322.07

 

TOTAL

Lacs) 

 

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025
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NOTE 1

General Information
Rodium Realty Limited (the "Company" or "RRL", is primarily engaged in business of Real Estate construction,

development and other related activities. The Company is a public limited Company incorporated in India

having its registered ofce at 501, XCube, Plot No. 636, Opp. to Fun Republic Theater, Off Link Road, Andheri

West, Mumbai - 400 053, Maharashtra, India. The Company is listed on BSE Limited (BSE).

NO BASIS OF PREPARARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements & Key Accounting Estimates & JudgementsA

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis considering the applicable

provisions of Companies Act 2013 except the following material items that have been measured at fair value as

required by relevant Ind AS. 

a)      Certain Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at fair value 

b)      Any other item as specically stated in accounting policy.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting

policies are applied consistently to all periods presented in the Standalone Financial Statements

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in India Rupee (INR), which is also functional currency of the

Company. All the values are rounded off to the nearest Lacs (INR 00,000) unless otherwise indicated.

The Company reclassies comparative amounts, unless impracticable and whenever the Company changes the

presentation or classication o tems in its Financial statements materially. No such material reclassication has

been made during the year.

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 were authorised for

issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on  30th May, 2025

Statement of Compliance

These Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IND AS as prescribed under

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 and subsequent amendments thereto.

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of accounting policies which are described in (B) below, the management is required to make

judgment, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of Assets and Liabilities, Income and Expenses,

Contingent Liabilities and the accompanying disclosures that are not readily apparent from other sources. The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to

be relevant and are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from those estimates. The estimates and

underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the

period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and

future periods if the revision affects both current and future period.

The few critical estimations and judgments made in applying accounting  policies are:

Evaluation of Percentage Completion:

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025
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Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

For calculating the recoverable amount of Non-Financial Assets, the Company is required to estimate the value-

in-use of the asset or the Cash Generating Unit and the fair value less costs to disposal. For calculating value in

use the Company is required to estimate the cash ows to be generated from using the asset. The fair value of an

Assets is estimated using a valuation technique where observable prices are not available. Further, the discount

rate used in value in use calculations includes an estimate of risk assessment specic to the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets:       

The Company impairs Financial Assets other than those measured at fair value through prot or loss or

designated at fair value through other comprehensive income on expected credit losses. The estimation of

expected credit loss includes the estimation of probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and the

exposure at default (EAD). Estimation of probability of default apart from involving trend analysis of past

delinquency rates include an estimation on forward-looking information relating to not only the counterparty

but also relating to the industry and the economy as a whole. The probability of default is estimated for the

entire life of the contract by estimating the cash ows that are likely to be received in default scenario. The

lifetime PD is reduced to 12 month PD based on an assessment of past history of default cases in 12 months.

Further, the loss given default is calculated based on an estimate of the value of the security recoverable as on

the reporting date. The exposure at default is the amount outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Dened Benet Plans:

The cost of the dened benet plan and other post-employment benets and the present value of such

obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various

assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the

discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the

valuation and its long-term nature, a dened benet obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these

assumptions.  All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques

including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable

markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair

values. Judgments include considerations o nputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in

assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of Financial Instruments.

Determination of Revenues under the percentage completion method necessarily invloves making estimates,

some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to

completion, the expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion.

Estimates of project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to

estimates is recognised in the Financial statements for the period in which such changes are determined.

Income taxes 

Signicant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to

be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax Assets, management considers whether some portion or all

of the deferred income tax Assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax Assets is
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future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical

taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax

Assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benets of those deductible

differences. The amount of the deferred income tax Assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in

the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements are set out

in Para B below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented

B Material Accounting Policies

1 Property, Plant And Equipment 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’)

recognised as of transition date measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed

cost of the PPE.

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes purchase  

price (after deducting trade discount / rebate), non-refundable duties and taxes, cost of replacing the component

parts, borrowing costs and other directly attributable cost to bringing the asset to the location and condition

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

An item of PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benets are expected from use. Any

prot or loss arising on the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in

Statement of Prot and Loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is calssied as capital

advances under "Other Non-current Assets" 

dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences

become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax Liabilities, projected

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual value. Where the residual value of

an asset increases to an amount equal to or greater than the asset’s carrying amount, no depreciation charge is

recognised till the asset’s residual value decreases below the asset’s carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset

begins when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the intended manner. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is

classied as held for sale in accordance with IND AS 105 and the date that the asset is derecognised. 

Depreciation on the PPE, is provided over the useful life of Assets which is in line with the useful life indicated

in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on all Assets is provided on straight line basis.

Depreciation on property plant and equipment added/disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis

with reference to the date of addition/disposal. The Assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of

depreciation are reviewed at each Financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Description of the Asset                                                                                    Estimated Useful Life

Furniture and Fixtures                                                                                                   10 Years

Computers                                                                                                                          3 Years

Ofce Equipment                                                                                                             5 Years

2 Intangible Assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of Intangible Assets recognised as of transition

date measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost.

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition,

Intangible Assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Software (not being an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for internal use are treated as Intangible

Assets and is amortised over a period of 3 years on straight-line method over the estimated useful economic life.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benets are expected from

its use or disposal. Any prot or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is determined as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the

Statement of Prot and Loss.

3 Impairment of PPE and Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts o ts PPE and other intangible

Assets to determine whether there is any indication that these Assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the

Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (‘CGU’) to which the asset belongs.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired

and is written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of

Prot and Loss.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the

estimated future cash ows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specic to the asset. In determining fair

value less cost to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identied,

an appropriate valuation model is used.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the

revised estimate o ts recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or

CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss. 

4 Inventories

Work-in-progress - Real estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold

area of the real estate development projects under construction or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is

yet to be recognised. Real estate work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is inventorised. Indirect expenditure (including borrowing

costs) during construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is

incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction

period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Statement of

Prot and Loss.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly

observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,

the Company takes into account the characteristics of asset and liability if market participants would take those

into consideration. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these Financial Statements is

determined in such basis except for transactions in the scope of Ind AS 2, 17 and 36. Normally at initial

recognition, the transaction price is the best evidence of fair value.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use

when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a Non-Financial Asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate

economic benets by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques those are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufcient data

are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of

unobservable inputs. 

All Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone

Financial Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is signicant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signicant to the fair value measurement

is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signicant to the fair value measurement

is unobservable.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the

end of each reporting period. 

6 Financial Instruments 

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a Financial Asset of one entity and a Financial Liability

or Equity Instrument of another entity. The Company recognizes a Financial Asset or Financial Liability in its

balance sheet only when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to NRV and all abnormal losses o nventories are recognized as

expense in the Statement of Prot And Loss in the period in which such write-down or loss occurs. The amount

of any reversal of the write-down of inventories arising from increase in the NRV is recognized as a reduction

from the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period in which reversal occurs.

5 Fair Value Measurement

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of

Finished goods - Units : Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Financial Assets other than Investment in Subsidiaries  

Financial Assets of the Company comprise Trade Receivable, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances,

Investment other than equity shares, loans to employee / related parties / others and security deposits. 

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All Financial Assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of Financial Assets not recorded at fair

value through prot or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the Financial Asset.

However, Trade Receivables that do not contain a signicant nancing component are measured at Transaction

Price. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at fair value through prot or loss are expensed in Statement

of Prot and Loss. Where transaction price is not the measure of fair value and fair value is determined using a

valuation method that uses data from observable market, the difference between transaction price and fair value

is recognised in Statement of Prot and Loss on the date of recognition if the fair value pertains to Level 1 or

Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and in other cases spread over life of the Financial instrument using effective

interest method. 

a) Financial Assets

A Financial Asset inter-alia includes any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or contractual

obligation to receive cash or another Financial Asset or to exchange Financial Asset or Financial Liability under

condition that are potentially favourable to the Company.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries are recorded at cost less impairment. 

Subsequent Measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement Financial Assets are classied in three categories: 

·           Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost 

·           Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI 

·           Financial Assets at Fair Value through Prot or Loss 

Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost 

Financial Assets are measured at amortized cost if the Financials asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to hold Financial Assets in order to collect contractual cash ows and the contractual terms of the

Financial asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding. These Financials Assets are amortized using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’)

method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in nance

income in the Statement of Prot And Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement

of Prot And Loss . 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI (‘FVTOCI’)

Financial Assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the Financial asset is held

within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash ows and selling

Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. At initial recognition, an

irrevocable election is made (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity

Instruments other than held for trading purpose at FVTOCI. Fair value changes are recognized in the other

comprehensive income (‘OCI’). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and

reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Prot And Loss. On derecognition of the

Financial asset other than equity Instruments designated as FVTOCI, cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in OCI is reclassied to the Statement of Prot And Leport
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Prot or Loss (‘FVTPL’)

Any Financial Asset that does not meet the criteria for classication as at amortized cost or as Financial Assets at

fair value through other comprehensive income is classied as Financial Assets at fair value through prot or

loss. Further, Financial Assets at fair value through prot or loss also include Financial Assets held for trading

and Financial Assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through prot or loss. Financial Assets are

classied as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Financial Assets at fair value through prot or loss are fair valued at each reporting date with all the changes

recognized in the Statement of Prot And Loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a Financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the asset

expire, or when it transfers the Financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership and continues to control the Financial asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset

and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model on the following:

·           Financial Assets that are measured at Amortised Cost; and

·           Financial Assets measured at FVTOCI.

ECL is measured through a loss allowance on a following basis:- 

·          The 12 month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the

Financial Instruments that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date) 

·          Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over

the life of Financial Instruments)

The Company follows ‘simplied approach’ for recognition o mpairment on trade receivables or contract

Assets resulting from normal business transactions. The application of simplied approach does not require the

Company to track changes in credit risk. However, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime

ECLs at each reporting date,   from the date of initial recognition.

For recognition o mpairment loss on other Financial Assets, the Company determines whether there has been a

signicant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has increased signicantly, lifetime

ECL is provided. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company assesses the credit risk

characteristics on instrument-by-instrument basis.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash ows that are due to the Company in accordance with the

contract and all the cash ows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls) discounted at the original

EIR. 

Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/income in the

Statement of Prot And Loss. 

b) Financial Liabilities

The Company’s Financial Liabilities include loans And borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable,

accrued expenses and other payables etc.
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Initial Recognition and Measurement

All Financial Liabilities at initial recognition are classied as Financial Liabilities at amortized cost or Financial

Liabilities at fair value through prot or loss, as appropriate. All Financial Liabilities classied at amortized cost

are recognized initially at fair value net of directly attributable transaction costs. Any difference between the

proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of Prot

And Loss or in the CWIP, if another standard permits inclusion of such cost in the carrying amount of an asset

over the period of the borrowings using the Effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method.

Subsequent Measurement 

The subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities depends upon the classication as described below:-

Financial Liabilities classied as Amortised Cost

Financial Liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised

cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Interest expense that is

not capitalized as part of costs of Assets is included as Finance costs in the Statement of Prot And Loss. 

Financial Liabilities classied as Fair value through prot and loss (FVTPL)

Financial Liabilities classied as FVTPL includes Financial Liabilities held for trading and Financial Liabilities

designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial Liabilities are classied as held for trading if they are

incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial Liabilities designated upon initial

recognition at FVTPL only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 is satised. 

Derecognition

A Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged / cancelled / expired.

When an existing Financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modied, such an exchange or modication is treated as the

de recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective

carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Prot And Loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is

a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net

basis, to realise the Assets and settle the Liabilities simultaneously.

7 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it

is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outow of resources embodying economic benets will be required

to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are

determined based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet

date. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised

as a standalone asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that

reects, the risks specic to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the

passage of time is recognised as a nance costs. 
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Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous

contract is considered to exist when a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations

exceed the economic benets expected to be received from it.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of management/independent experts. These are

reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reect the current management estimate.

Contingent Assets are not recognized, however, disclosed in Financial statement when inow of economic

benets is probable.

8 Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of completed property and proportionate revenue of

property under development.

Completed Inventory Property

The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and that is satised at the point in

time when control transfers.

Inventory Property under Development

Contracts relating to the sale of property under development is considered as a single performance obligation

because it provides a signicant service o ntegrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed

property (the combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy

Revenue from Contracts with customers relating to property under development is recognised over time as it has  

concluded that, at all times, it has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date and it has

no alternative use for the said assset . Therefore, control transfers over time for these contracts

For contracts that meet the over time revenue recognition criteria, performance is measured using an input

method, by reference to the costs incurred to the satisfaction of a performance obligation (e.g., resources

consumed, labour hours expended, costs incurred, time elapsed) relative to the total expected inputs to the 

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers

in an amount that reects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.

Revenue from the sale of services is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer.

Use of signicant judgements in revenue recognition

• Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be

either a xed amount of consideration or variable consideration with elements such as discounts. Any

consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct

product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the

transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a signicant reversal in the amount of

cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in

time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benets as

services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment

for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of signicant risks and rewards to

the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. 
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Interest income on Financial Assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognised on a time-

proportion basis using the EIR method.

When a receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the

estimated future cash ows discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues

unwinding the discount as interest income.

Company collects and spends money towards maintainence of the completed projects where society is yet to be

formed or where the affairs of the maintenance of building constructed by them has not been handed over to the

society. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the bill is raised to the customer for collection of

maintainence charges.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement

of borrowings with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowings.

Borrowing cost pertaining to development o ong term projects are transferred to Construction work in

progress, as part of the cost of the projects upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare these projects for

its intended use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recongnised as expense in the period in which they are incurred

10 Employee Benets

Short-term Employees Benets

All short term employees benets such as salaries, wages, allowances, performance incentive, employee welfare

costs, exgratia are recognised during the period in which the employee render services and are measured at

undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the Liabilities are settled. 

 Post-employment benets 

The Company provides the following post-employment benets:

i) Dened benet plans such as gratuity and

ii) Dened Contribution plans such as provident fund.

Dened benets plans 

The cost of providing dened benet plans such as gratuity is determined on the basis of present value of

dened benets obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method with independent actuarial

valuation made at the end of each annual reporting period, which recognizes each period of service as given rise

to additional unit of employees benet entitlement and measuring each unit separately to build up the nal

obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the dened benet

obligation and the fair value of plan Assets. This cost is included in employee benet expense in the Statement of

Prot and Loss except those included in cost of Assets as permitted. 

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in

actuarial assumptions, the effect of change in Assets ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan asset

(excluding net interest as dened above) are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) except those

included in cost of Assets as permitted in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassied

to the Statement of Prot and Loss in subsequent periods. 
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11 Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the

Statement of Prot and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other

comprehensive income.

Current  Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable tax

rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses and

penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in nance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest

Income, if any, related to Income tax is included in Other Income

Dened Contribution Plans

Contributions to the Provident Fund are made at a pre-determined rate and charged to the statement of Prot

and Loss.

Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements) is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss except those included in cost of Assets as permitted

in the period in which they occur. 

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets and Liabilities in

the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable prot. Deferred tax

Liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax Assets are generally

recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the

extent that it is probable that future taxable prots will be available against which those deductible temporary

differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised. Such deferred tax Assets and

Liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of Assets and Liabilities in

a transaction that affects neither the taxable prot nor the accounting  prot. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax Assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that

it is no longer probable that sufcient taxable prots will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered. 

Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which

the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax Liabilities and Assets reects

the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date,

to recover or settle the carrying amount of its Assets and Liabilities. 

Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax Assets

against current tax Liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the

Company intends to settle its current tax Assets and Liabilities on a net basis. 

12 Current versus Non-current classication

The Company presents Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classication. 
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c

     

) 

d) The normal operating cycle in respect of operation relating to under construction real estate project depends

on signing of agreement , size of the project, phasing of the project , type of development, project complexities,

approvals needed And realisation of project into cash And cash equivalents and range from 3 to 5 years.

Accordingly project related Assets And Liabilities have been classied into current And non-current based on

operating cycle of respective projects.

13 Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the prot from continuing operations and total prot, both

attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year. 

C Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notication dated 24th March 2021, has amended Schedule III to the

Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosure requirements in Financial statements. The Financial statements

have been prepared after incorporating the amendments to the extent they are applicable

D Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifes new standards, ammendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025,

MCA has not notied any new standard or ammendments to existing standards applicable to the Company

Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are classied as Non-current Assets and Liabilities.

All other Assets are classied as non-current.

b)       A liability is current when:

�         It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

�         It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

�         It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

�        There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

All other Liabilities are classied as non-current.

a)      An asset is current when it is:

�         Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

�         Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

�         Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

�         Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for  at least twelve  

months after the reporting period.
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FA20

Particulars
Furniture and 

Fixtures

Ofce 

Equipment
Computers Total

Computer

 Software
Total

Gross Block

Opening Balance as at 01 April 2023 14.96                 13.92                   31.04                59.92                22.72                   22.72              

Additions -                    5.87                     0.37                  6.24                  -                      -                  

Disposals/Adjustments -                    -                       -                   -                   -                      -                  

Balance as at 31 March 2024 14.96                 19.79                   31.41                66.15                22.72                   22.72              

Additions -                    -                       1.25                  1.25                  -                      -                  

Disposals/Adjustments -                    -                       -                   -                   -                      -                  

Balance as at 31 March 2025 14.96                 19.79                   32.66                67.41                22.72                   22.72              

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance as at 01 April 2023 14.96                 13.02                   23.06                51.04                13.50                   13.50              

Depreciation / Amortisation for the year -                    0.69                     4.30                  4.98                  5.09                     5.09                

Disposals/Adjustments -                    -                       -                   -                   -                      -                  

Balance as at 31 March 2024 14.96                 13.71                   27.35                56.02                18.59                   18.59              

Depreciation / Amortisation for the year -                    0.91                     4.63                  5.54                  2.54                     2.54

Disposals/Adjustments -                    -                       -                   -                   -                      -                  

Balance as at 31 March 2025 14.96                 14.62                   31.98                61.56                21.13 21.13

Net Block

As at 31 March 2024 0.00                   6.08                     4.05                  10.13                4.13                     4.13                

As at 31 March 2025 0.00                   5.17                     0.68                  5.85                  1.59                     1.59                

(In Rupees Lacs) 

NOTE 3 (b) OTHER 

INTANGIBLES ASSETS

NOTE 3 (a).  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTE 4

INVESTMENTS (In Rupees Lacs) 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Non-Current Investments

Rodium Digital INC                   81.89                     81.89 

81 Estates LLP 248.72                221.10

Readystage LLP 7.30                    7.30

Fluid Realty LLP 181.06                103.11

Rodium Housing LLP 53.41                  99.12

Xperia Realty LLP 1.00                    1.00

491.49                431.63

Non Trade Unquoted - In Mutual Fund: (at Fair Value through Prot or Loss )

(i) CY - Nil Units (PY - 250 units) of Kotak -India Growth Fund of Rs. 1,00,000/- each. Paid up - 95,500/- (Refer Note 30(g)) -                      27.51

Grand Total 573.38                541.03

Aggregate Amount  of Unquoted Investments 573.38                541.03

Current Investments

Unquoted - Non Trade

 In Mutual Fund Units: (at Fair Value through Prot or Loss ) 32.78                  39.23

Grand Total 32.78 39.23

Aggregate Amount  of Unquoted Investment 32.78                  39.23

NOTE a. The Fixed Capital included in balances is as follows 

81 Estates LLP 0.75 0.75

Readystage LLP 0.75 0.75

Fluid Realty LLP 0.75 0.75

Rodium Housing LLP 0.75 0.75

Xperia Realty LLP 0.99 0.99

Particulars

Trade  - Unquoted In Subsidiary LLPs (At Cost)

 

(Refer Note below)

     1,00,000 (PY 1,00,000) shares having FV 1 USD/- fully paid

Trade  - Unquoted In Wholly Owned Subsidiary (At Cost)

Amount
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NOTE 7

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (In Rupees Lacs) 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Unsecured and Considered Good

S Advances to Suppliers (Other than Capital) -                      -                      122.92                121.61

A - 122.92                121.61

Unbilled Revenue -                      -                      2,113.36             3,116.18

L Prepaid Expenses -                      -                      11.66                  12.54

O Others (Refer Note 30(h)) -                      -                      228.00                263.12

B - - 2,353.02             3,391.84

Total (A+B) - - 2,475.94 3,513.45

NOTE 8
INVENTORIES (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

INWork-in-Progress 3,819.55             3,676.20

INFinished Units 355.04                355.04

Total 4,174.59 4,031.24

Particulars

Non-Current Current

NOTE b. The Current Capital included in balances is as follows 

81 Estates LLP 247.97 220.35

Readystage LLP 6.55 6.55

Fluid Realty LLP 180.31 102.36

Rodium Housing LLP 52.66 98.37

Xperia Realty LLP 0.01 0.01

NOTE 5

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (In Rupees Lacs) 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Carried at Amortised Cost : Considered Good 

LBank deposits with original maturity more than 12 months*              1,310-.3  0                   770.50                                                 -   

LSecurity Deposits 28.41

                  

26.98

                   

26.25 36.25

Others -

                      

-

                      

141.46 149.08

OInterest Accrued and due -

                      

-

                      

47.97 40.91

Total 1,338.71

             

797.48

                 

215.68 226.24
from bank

NOTE 6

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) - (NET) (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Retirement Benets                 (0.03)                  (1.43)

Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTPL Mutual Funds                  2.63                  (9.05)

A 2.60                    (10.48)

Deferred Tax Asset:

Expenses allowable on Actual Payments                 14.19 14.04

Intangibles                 (0.23) 3.35

Carried forward Loss               105.13 146.06

B 119.09                163.44

Total (A+B) 121.69                152.96

Particulars

Non Current Current
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(In Rupees Lacs) 

Ageing for Trade Receivables

Particulars Not due
Less than 6 

months

6 months -1 

year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

Years

As at 

31 March 2025

Undisputed Trade Receivables—Considered Good -                533.88          22.98           73.35                  9.21                    609.71                1,249.13

Undisputed Trade Receivables—Considered Good* -                (58.95)          (274.03)        (3.00)                  -                      (642.61)               (978.58)

*Figures in bracket are in respect of previous year

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

credit loss as at 31st March 2025. Consequently, no allowance for impairment has been recognised.

NOTE 9

TRADE RECEIVABLES (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

T Unsecured, Undisputed and Considered Good 1,249.13             978.58

Unsecured, Considered good -                      -

Unsecured Considered doubtful -                      -

Less: Impairment provision on Expected Credit Loss Model -                      -

Total 1,249.13             978.58

NOTE: The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on trade receivables using the simplied approach as per Ind AS 109. Based on internal 
assessment and external information relating to the customers, ageing, and collection history, the management has concluded that there is no material expected 

NOTE 10

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Cash on hand 30.22                         8.79                            

B Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 14.10                         54.68                          

Term Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months -                            18.54                          

Total 44.32                         82.01                          

NOTE 11

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

BDDeposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 

12 months*
-                            557.24                        

Dividend Account** 1.26                           1.26                       

Total 1.26                           558.50                        

*Pledge as security for working capital taken from bank

**Unclaimed Dividend of Rs. 0.62 Lacs for the nancial years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 required to be 

transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund is pending to be transferred.
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other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (‘Intermediaries’) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identied by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneciaries’). 

The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (‘Funding Party’) with the understanding that the 

Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied by or on 

behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneciaries

NOTE 12

LOANS (Unsecured, Considered Good) (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Carried at Amortised cost :

Loans to

Employees 2.85                           2.58                            

Others (Refer Note a below) 58.00                         58.00                          

Total 60.85                         60.58

a. The loans are repayable on demand

b. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

NOTE 13

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (In Rupees Lacs) 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised Share Capital 6,000,000           600.00                6,000,000                 600.00

                   

Issued Share Capital 3,733,300           373.33                3,733,300                 373.33

                   

Subscribed Share Capital 3,247,900           324.79                3,247,900                 324.79

                   

Fully Paid-up Share Capital 3,247,900           324.79                3,247,900                 324.79

                   

Forefeited Shares - Amount originally paid up on 4,85,400 Shares 19.71                  19.71

                    

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,247,900           344.50                3,247,900                 344.50

                   

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -

Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 3,247,900           344.50                3,247,900                 344.50

                   

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 3,247,900           344.50                3,247,900                 344.50

                   

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promoter Name No. % No. %

Deepak Chheda 1,017,252

              

31.32% 0.00% 1,017,252

              

31.32% 1.80%

Shailesh Damji Shah 588,521

                  

18.12% 0.00% 588,521

                  

18.12% 0.00%

Rohit Keshavji Dedhia 319,466

                  

9.84% 0.00% 319,466

                  

9.84% 0.00%

Harish Damji Nisar 320,211

                  

9.86% 0.00% 320,230

                  

9.86% 0.00%

Rohan Deepak Chheda 9,916

                      

0.31% 0.00% 9,916

                      

0.31% -0.40%

Paarth Deepak Chheda 9,627

                      

0.30% 0.01% 9,327

                      

0.29% -0.09%

Krupa Deepak Chheda 12,610

                    

0.39% 0.03% 11,489

                    

0.35% -0.09%

Sigma Fiscals Private Limited 9,714

                      

0.30% 0.05% 8,160

                      

0.25% 0.09%

As at 

31 March 2024 

 As at 

31 March 2025 

Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitle to one vote per share. In the event of 
liquidation of the Company, the holder of the equity share will be entitle to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to 
the number of equity shares held by the share holders.

 As at 

31 March 2025 
% Change 

during the year

As at 

31 March 2024
% Change during 

the year

Number % Number %

Deepak Chheda 1,017,252

              

31.32% 1,017,252

                     

31.32%

Shailesh Damji Shah 588,521

                 

18.12% 588,521

                        

18.12%

Harish Damji Nisar 320,211

                 

9.86% 320,230

                        

9.86%

Rohit Keshavji Dedhia 319,466

                 

9.84% 319,466

                        

9.84%

               

               

                    

                      

                    

               

Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than ve per cent shares 
 As at 

31 March 2024 

 As at 

31 March 2025 
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NOTE 14

OTHER EQUITY (In Rupees Lacs) 

Capital Reserve
Retained 

Earnings

Remeasurements

of Dened

 Benet Plans

Balance at the beginning of the Comparative Reporting year 350.51                421.41                234.44                14.01                       1,020.38

Changes in Accounting Policy or Correction of Prior Period Errors - - - - -

Restated balance as at 1st April 2023 350.51                421.41                234.44                14.01                       1,020.38

Prot for the Comparative year ending 31st March 2024 19.29                  19.29

Other Comprehensive Income for the Comparative Reporting year ending 31 March 2024 4.27                         4.27

Total Comprehensive Income for the Comparative year -                     -                     19.29                  4.27                         23.56

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Balance at the beginning of the Reporting year 350.51                421.41                253.73                18.28                       1,043.94

Changes in Accounting Policy or Correction of Prior Period Errors

Restated balance as at 1st April 2024 350.51                421.41                253.73                18.28                       1,043.94

Prot for the Reporting

 

year ending 31st March 2025 278.04                278.04

Other Comprehensive Income for the Reporting

 

year ending 31 March 2025 0.09                         0.09

                      

Total Comprehensive Income for the Reporting

 

year -                     -                     278.04                0.09                         278.13

                  

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Balance at the end of the Reporting year ending 31st March 2025 350.51                421.41                531.77                18.37                       1,322.07

               

Nature and Purpose of each component of equity

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument

Retained Earnings

Remeasurements of Dened Benet Plans

Capital Reserve

Particulars

It represents reserves acquired on acquistion of the Company

The Equity component part of compound nancial instrument issued by the Company which are 
classied as nancial liabilities and Equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement 
and the denations of nancial liability and equity instrument. 

Retained earnings are the prots that the Company has earned till date, less dividend payouts.

Gains/Losses arising on Remeasurements of Dened Plan at the end of each reporting period

Equity 

Component of 

Compound 

Financial 

Instrument

Reserves & Surplus

TOTAL
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NOTE 15
BORROWINGS (At Amortised Cost)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

NON CURRENT

Secured

Term Loans;

LT From Bank 747.73                                         770.32

                                  

Unsecured

Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments -

70,00,000 6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares

 

of Rs.10/- each                                          540.40                                   495.78 

Total 1,288.13                                           1,266.10

                                   

CURRENT

Secured

Working Capital Loan from Bank 981.45                                              1,067.37

                                   

Current Maturities of Long-term Debt 28.88                                                1,119.70

                                   

Unsecured

From Related Parties (Refer Note 30 (f)) 2,412.40                                           2,465.90

                                   

From Others 602.49                                              812.49

                                      

Interest Accrued on above 1,329.85                                           1,338.52

                                   

Total 5,355.07                                           6,803.98

                                   

Nature of Borrowings

1 Term Loan from Capri Global Capital Limited is secured by ;

a. First and Exclusive Charge by way of Registered Mortgage over the

Development Rights, Title, Interests of the Developer/ Borrower and all

the present and future structures there upon to the extent of the

Developer/Borrower's share.

b. First & Exclusive charge by the way of registered hypothecation over all

the present and future cash ows of the project including receivables from

sold area, recoverable from the bank guarantee in respect of the project.

c. The said loan is further secured by assignment o nsurance policies of

the adequate value for the project in favour of the Lender.                              

Term Loan from ICICI Bank 

Secured against Mortgage of Unit No 401 and 402, 4th oor, X-cube,

Mumbai, property owned by Promoters and their Relatives, of the

Company, 

1) Repayable in 48 months from the date of rst 

disbursement including moratorium period of 24 months. 

Interest is 16.35% p.a  (P.Y. - 16.35%).                   2) 

Repayable in 24 months from the date of first 

disbursement including moratorium period of 24 months. 

Interest is 16.35% p.a (P.Y. - 16.35%).

3) Entire loans have been repaid during the current year.

(In Rupees Lacs)

Repayable in 176 months from the date of first 

disbursement. Interest 9.55%(P.Y. 9.80%)

Interest Rate & Terms Of Repayment

6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares

2 Working Capital Loan from Indian Oversaes Bank

3 Loans from Related Parties and Others

Unsecured Loans from Related Parties and Others carries interest @ 12%. (Previous year 12%) and are repayable on demand. The 

unsecured loan holders have given their consent regarding waiver of interest for Financial Year 2024-25, on their unsecured loan 

except for two parties for whom interest provision is made. No provision has been made for the waived interest portion.

All other terms and conditions of the 70,00,000 6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of FV Rs 10/- fully paid 

will remain the same as of the 70,00,000 9% Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of FV Rs 10/- fully paid.  The 

original preference shares were for a term of 20 Years from 31st March, 2008 being the date of allotment, accordingly the 70,00,000 6% 

Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of FV Rs 10/- fully paid would mature on 31st March, 2028. The 

component part of compound nancial instrument is classied as nancial liability.

Working Capital Loan from Indian Overseas Bank is repayable on demand and is secured by way of lien over Term Deposits and 

further Personal Guarantee of Managing /Wholetime Directors. It carries interest rate of 7.15% p.a. (Previous Year 7.71%).
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NOTE 16

PROVISIONS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

STProvision for Employee Benets (Refer Note 30 (e)) 33.89 29.28                   22.36                    20.81

Total 33.89                               29.28                   22.36                    20.81

NOTE 17

TRADE PAYABLES (In Rupees Lacs) 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Outstanding due of Micro and Small Enterprises (MSME) (Refer Note 30 (c)) 10.98                    6.44

TPOutstanding due of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 100.80                  172.33

Total 111.78                  178.77

Ageing of Trade Payables

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
As at 

31 March 2025

i) MSME 10.98

                               

10.98

(ii) Others 67.08

                                

                    4.24 29.48 100.80

Total 78.06                               4.24                     29.48                    111.78

Ageing of Trade Payables

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
As at 

31 March 2024

i) MSME 6.44                                 -

                       

- 6.44

(ii) Others 50.75

                                

                  20.52 101.06 172.33

Total 57.20                               20.52                   101.06                  178.77

NOTE 18

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (In Rupees Lacs) 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

OLUnclaimed Dividends*

 

                     1.26 1.26

Total 1.26                      1.26

NOTE 19

OTHER LIABILITIES (In Rupees Lacs) 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

OLContract Liablities (Revenue received in advance)                1,534.54                          1,075.00 

OLStatutory Dues 76.53                    28.77

Employee Benets Payable 76.26                    56.44

OLOthers 167.19                  169.93

OL Total 1,854.54               1,330.14

*Unclaimed Dividend of Rs. 0.62 Lacs for the financial years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund is pending to be transferred

Particulars

Current

Particulars

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Current

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Non-Current Current

Current

Movement of contract liabilities is as under ;

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

As at beginning of the year 1,075.00               91.76

Recognised as  revenue from contracts with customers (81.64)                  (79.90)

Advance from customers received during the year 541.18 1063.14

Balance at the close of the year 1,534.54               1,075.00

During the year ended 31st March, 2025, the Company recognised Revenue of Rs. 81.64/- Lacs ( Previous year Rs. 79.90 Lacs) arising from opening 

unearned revenue (contract liabilities).
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NOTE 20

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

 

RO Income from Property Development 772.08                  1,788.96

               

Income from Sale of Shop -                        92.00

                    

Other Operating Revenues:

OI Maintenance and other Charges 231.63                  100.14

                  

Total 1,003.71               1,981.10

               

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows: (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

Gross Sales (Contracted Price) 772.08                  1,788.96

               

Reductions towards variable consideration -

                           

-

                        

Revenue recognised 772.08                  1,788.96

               

NOTE 21

OTHER INCOME (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

OIInterest Income 89.68                    124.16

                  

OIDividend Income on Current Investments -                        0.14

                      

OINet Gain on Sale of Investments classied as FVTPL 0.26                      4.39

                      

Share of Prot in Subsidiary (Net) 228.76                  235.92

                  

2.63                      35.96

                    

1.31                      1.28

                      

Total 322.64                  401.85
                  

NOTE 22

COST OF DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

COCost of Development Rights / Land Acquistion -                        85.95                    

COConstruction and Direct Cost 163.41                  379.07                  

Administration and General Expenses 120.74                  78.18                    

COBorrowing Costs 2.46                      252.15                  

Total 286.61                  795.35                  

Miscellenous Income

Net Gain on Fair Value Changes on Financial Assets classied as FVTPL

The Management determines that the segment information reported is sufcient to meet the disclosure objective 

with respect to disaggregation of revenue under IND AS 115 Revenue from Contract with Customers. Hence, no 

separate disclosures of disaggregated revenues are reported. (Refer Note 30 (b))
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NOTE 23

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  WORK-IN-

PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

Closing Stock:

     Finished Goods 355.04                  355.04
                       Work-in-Progress 3,819.55               3,676.20
               4,174.59               4,031.24

               Less:  Opening Stock:

     Finished Goods 355.04                  355.04

                       Work-in-Progress 3,676.20               4,582.21

               4,031.24               4,937.25

               
Total (143.35)

                

906.01

                  
NOTE 24

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

EBSalaries and Wages 28.61                    24.56

                    
EBContribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Other Funds 7.01                      7.87

                      

EBStaff Welfare Expenses 0.92                      3.69

                      Total 36.54                    36.12

                    NOTE 25

FINANCE COSTS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

INInterest on Loans and Deposits 87.72                    221.70

                  

INInterest on Working Capital Facilities 150.24                  196.21

                  

Other Borrowing Costs;

Interest on Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments 44.62                    41.04

                    

IN Others 1.19                      10.12

                    

283.77                  469.06

                  

Less: Amounts Capitalised to the cost of qualifying assets (2.46)                    (252.15)

                

Total 281.31                  216.91
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NOTE 26

OTHER EXPENSES (In Rupees Lacs) 

Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

OE1Power and Fuel 10.25                   7.51
                     

OE18Legal & Professional Charges 17.52                   17.02
                   

OE1 12.00                   12.00

                   

OE2Rates and Taxes 69.72                   2.69

                     

OE2Insurance 23.42                   16.98

                   

OE2Printing and Stationery 6.36                     4.38

                     

Repairs and Renewals:

OE15 Buildings 165.78                 90.66

                   

Compensation to Tenant 124.66                 -

                       

OE28Travelling and Conveyance 1.11                     4.27

                     

OE33Communication Expenses 1.21                     1.35

                     

Auditors' Remuneration:

OE22 Audit fee 2.00                     2.00

                     

Tax Audit fee 0.75                     0.75

                     

Other Services 1.25                     1.25

                     

4.00                     4.00

                     

Sales Promotion Expenses 0.07                     0.33

                     

OE25Commission -                       5.00

                     

NT1Bank Charges 0.64                     0.22

                     

Interest paid on Statutory Dues 4.15                     3.48

                     

Advertisement Expenses 1.50                     -

                       

GST Expense 29.35                   9.50

                     

OE2Miscellaneous Expenses 76.79                   39.79

                   

548.53                 219.19

Particulars

Rent (Refer Note 30 (d))

Total

NOTE 27

A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's Net Debt to Equity Ratios are as follows:

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Interest bearing Loans and Borrowings 1,317.01                     2,385.80

                    Less:  Cash and Short Term Deposits 44.32                          82.01

                         Net Debt 1,361.33                     2,467.82

                    

Equity 344.50                        344.50

                       Other Equity 1,322.07                     1,043.93

                    
Total Capital 1,666.57                     1,388.43

                    Capital and Net Debt 3,027.91                     3,856.25

                    Net Debt to Equity Ratio 44.96% 64.00%

For the purpose of Company's Capital Management, capital includes Issued Equity Capital, and Retained Earnings attributable to 

of the Company.  The primary objective of the Company's Capital Management is to maximise the Share Holder Value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and requirements of the nancial 

covenants and to continue as a going concern.  To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to 

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'Net Debt' to 'Equity'. For this purpose, net debt is dened as total borrowings less Cash & Bank 

Balances and Other Current Investments.
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B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

i) Market Risk

Interest Rate Risks

Exposure to interest rate risk

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Fixed-rate Instruments -                                  -                                 

Borrowings 5,313.36                     6,731.56                    

Fair value sensitivity analysis for xed-rate instruments

Commodity Price Risk

Currency risk is not material, as the Company's primary business activities are within India and does not have signicant exposure in foreign currency.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at xed rates exposes to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate 

prole of the Company's interest-bearing nancial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as follows.

The Company does not account for any xed-rate nancial assets or nancial liabilities at fair value through prot or loss. Therefore, a change in 

interest rates at the reporting date would not affect prot or loss.

The Company's activities are exposed to steel and cement price risks and therefore its overall risk management program focuses on the volatile nature 

of the steel and cement market, thus seeking to minimize potential adverse effects on the group's nancial performance on account of such volatility.

The Board reviews risk management policies.

Foreign Currency Risks

The Company’s principal Financial Liabilities comprise Loans and Borrowings, Trade and Other Payables. The main purpose of these Financial 

Liabilities is to nance the operations of the Company.  The principal Financial Assets include Trade and Other Receivables, Investments in Mutual 

Funds and Cash and Short term Deposits.

The Company has assessed market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk to its nancial liabilities.

Market Risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or cash ows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument, as a 

result of interest rates and other price risks. Financial instruments affected by market risks, primarily include loans & borrowings, investments and 

other receivables, payables and borrowings.

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate or cash ow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of 

xed interest bearing investments because of uctuations in the interest rate. Cash ow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash ows of oating 

interest bearing investments will uctuate because of uctuations in the interest rates.

ii) Credit Risk

The Company's exposure to credit risk is inuenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However credit risk with regards to 

trade receivable is almost negligible in case of its residential sale business as the same is done to the fact that in case of its residential sell business it 

Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a nancial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, 

and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.

The carrying amount of following nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and Other Receivables

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

More than 6 months 715.25                        919.63                       

Others 533.88                        58.95                         

1,249.13                     978.58                       

Cash and Bank balances

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents with banks which are having highest safety rankings and hence has a low credit risk.

does not handover possession till entire outstanding is received.

The ageing of trade receivbles is as follows:

The amounts reected in the table above are not impaired as on the reporting date.

Investments in Debt Securities, Limited Liability Partnerships, Loans to Related Parties and Project Deposits

The Company has investments in mutual funds, limited liability partnership rms and project deposits. The settlement of such instruments is linked to 

the completion of the respective underlying projects. Such Financial Assets are not impaired as on the reporting date.
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iii) Liquidity Risk

The Company has access to funds from debt markets through bank loan. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank xed deposit and debt based 

mutual funds.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difculty in meeting the obligations associated with its nancial liabilities that are settled by 

delivering cash or another nancial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufcient 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 

to the Company's reputation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash ows. This monitoring includes nancial 

ratios and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

NOTE 27

A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Contd.)

Exposure to Liquidity Risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of nancial liabilities at the reporting date.

Total
Within 12 

months
1-2 years 2-5 years

More than 5 

years

Financial Liabilities

Non Current

Borrowings 1,317.01                      1,317.01             28.88                  31.84                  656.89                599.40                

Current

Borrowings 981.45                         981.45                981.45                

Trade Payables 111.78                         111.78                111.78                

Others 1.26                             1.26                    1.26                    

Total
Within 12 

months
1-2 years 2-5 years

More than 5 

years

Financial Liabilities

Non Current

Borrowings 2,385.80                      2,385.80             1,119.70             28.88                  601.44                635.79                

Current

Borrowings 2,134.75                      2,134.75             2,134.75             -                      -                      -                      

Trade Payables 178.77                         178.77                178.77                -                      -                      -                      

Others 1.26                             1.26                    1.26                    -                      -                      -                      

March 31, 2024 Carrying Amount

Contractual cash ows

(In Rupees Lacs)

(In Rupees Lacs)

March 31, 2025 Carrying Amount

Contractual cash ows

Note 28

Fair Values and Hierarchy

(In Rupees Lacs)

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Financial Assets

- Investments 32.78                    66.74
                    

Level One

Level 1: This includes nancial instruments measured using quoted prices. The fair value of all mutual funds is valued 

using the closing NAV as at the reporting period

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the nancial instruments that are 

a) recognised and measured at fair value and b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the 

Standalone Financial Statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, 

the Company has classied its nancial instruments into the three levels prescribed in the Indian Accounting Standard.

Particulars Hierarchy

Fair Value/Carrying Value
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Fair value of nancial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost (In Rupees Lacs)

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Financial Assets

Loans 60.85                    60.58

                    

Security Deposits 54.66                    63.23

                    

Interest Accrued on Loans and Deposits 47.97                    40.91

                    

Bank Deposits 1,310.30               770.50

                  

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 6,643.20               8,070.09

               

NOTE 29

Fair Value/Carrying Value

The carrying amounts of Trade Receivables, Cash and cash Equivalents, Bank balances other than Cash and Cash 

Equivalents, Other Receivables, Trade Payables and Unclaimed Dividend are considered to be the same as their fair values 

due to the current and short-term nature of such balances.

The Company has no tax liability for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 and accordingly reconciliation of 

tax expense is not given.

Particulars

NOTE 30

ADDITION INFORMATION/EXPLANATIONS

a)

Year Ended 31 

March 2025

Year Ended 31 

March 2024

Prot after Tax Rs. Lacs 278.04                19.29
                  

Weighted Number of Equity Shares (Face Value Rs.10/-) Nos. 3,247,900            3,247,900
            

Earnings per share - Basic Rs. 8.56                    0.59
                    

Earnings per share - Diluted Rs. 8.56                    0.59
                    

b)

(i)Entity wide disclosure required by Ind AS 108 are as detailed below:

Year Ended 31 

March 2025

Year Ended 31 

March 2024

Real Estate Development & Services 1,003.71              1,981.10              

1,003.71              1,981.10              

(ii)  Revenue from Customers:

India 1,003.71              1,981.10              

Outside India -                         -                      
1,003.71              1,981.10

              

(iii) Non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets and nancial instruments)

India 1,346.15              811.75                
Outside India -

                         
-

                      
1,346.15              811.75                

(iv) Transactions with single external customer which amounts to 10% or more of the Company's Revenue. 
Year Ended 31 

March 2025

Year Ended 31 

March 2024

Bajaj Alliance Life Insurance Co Ltd 318.49                307.16

Bajaj Alliance GeneralInsurance Co Ltd 440.39                424.72

Note:-

c) Disclosures under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED'):

Year Ended 31 

March 2025

Year Ended 31 

March 2024

(i)  Principal amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the accounting year   10.98 6.44

d)

The details of liabilities to Micro and Small Enterprises, to the extent information available with the Company are given under. This has been relied upon by the 

auditors

Note: Other  information/ disclosures relating to payments made beyond appointed date, interest accrued & paid and cumulative i nterest are not applicable, being 

NIL.

The Company’s leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for ofce permises.  The leasing arrangements are for one year, and are usually renewable by 

mutual consent on agreed terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as rent.

Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted)

(i) The Company is engaged interalia in the "Real Estate Development and Services". These in the context of Ind AS 108  " Operating Segment" are considered to 

constitute one single primary segment. The Company does not have any operations outside India. Hence disclosure as envisaged in the Accounting Standard is not 

required.  Non-reportable segments have not been disclosed as unallocated reconciling item in view of their materiality. In vie w of the above, primary and secondary 

reporting disclosures for business/geographical segment are not applicable.

Particulars

Disclosures under Ind AS 108 - ""Operating Segment" 
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e) Disclosures as per IND AS - 19 - Employee Benets

During the year, the company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Year Ended
31 March 2025

Year Ended
31 March 2024

i) 0.74
                                       

0.75
                                       

iii)

The valuation results for the dened benet gratuity plan as at 31-3-2025 are produced in the tables below:

i) Changes in the Present Value of Obligation (In Rupees Lacs) 

Year Ended
31 March 2025

Year Ended
31 March 2024

50.09                                    48.68

                                    

3.51                                       3.78

                                       

2.77                                       3.33

                                       

1.15                                       0.43

                                       

(1.28)                                     (6.13)

                                     

56.25                                    50.09

                                    

ii) Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Year Ended
31 March 2025

Year Ended
31 March 2024

3.51                                       3.78

                                       

2.77                                       3.33

                                       

6.28                                       7.11

                                       

iii) Other Comprehensive Income

1.15                                       0.43

                                       

(1.28)                                     (6.13)

                                     

Components of dened benet costs recognised in other comprehensive income (0.12)                                     (5.70)

                                     

iv)

 

Actuarial

 

Assumptions

a. Financial Assumptions

The principal nancial assumptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below:

As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

6.49% 6.97%

1% 1%

b. Demographic Assumptions

As at 
31 March 2025

As at 
31 March 2024

IALM (2012-14) Ult IALM (2012-14) Ult

5% 5%

v) Amount, Timing and Uncertainty of Future Cash Flows

a. Sensitivity Analysis

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

58.85                                    53.91                                    51.26                                    46.36

                                    

1.05                                       0.96                                      0.02                                       (0.07)

                                     

54.65                                    57.38                                    47.05                                    50.47

                                    

0.97                                      1.02                                       (0.06)                                     0.01

                                       

  

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

Particulars

 

As at 31 March 2024

Discount Rate (- / + 1%)

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)

 

As at 31 March 2025

56.25

                                                                                      

Particulars

 

As at 31 March 2024

Dened Benet Obligation (Base) 50.09

                                                                                      

 

As at 31 March 2025

Signicant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the dened benet obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been 

determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity 

analysis is given below:

Mortality Rate

Attrition rates, based on age: (per annum)

              Up to 52 years

Particulars

Particulars

Actuarial (gains) / losses

   - change in nancial assumptions

   - experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

Return on Plan Assets excluding interest income

Discount rate (per annum)

Salary growth rate (per annum)

Year Ended
31 March 2024

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Current Service Cost

Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Dened Benet Liability / (Asset)

Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Particulars

Present Value of Obligation as at the end

   - change in nancial assumptions

   - experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

Benets Paid

Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning

Current Service Cost

Interest Expense or Cost

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

Dened benet obligation: (Unfunded)

Particulars

*Included in " Contribution to Provident and other Funds" (Note 24).

Particulars

Employer's contribution to Provident Fund*
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c. Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

- Funding arrangements and Funding Policy

The scheme is unfunded.

- Expected Contribution during the next annual reporting period 3.01 3.51

The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next year 

- Maturity Prole of Dened Benet Obligation 8.69 years 9.09 years

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) 5.25 5.37

- Expected cash ows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):

1 year 22.36 20.81

Particulars

f) Related Party Disclosures ( As per Ind AS 24: Related Party Disclosures) :

(a) Names of Related Parties and nature of relationship

Subsidiary Entities Rodium Housing LLP

81 Estates LLP

Readystage LLP

Xperia Realty LLP

Fluid Realty LLP

Key Management Personnel: Mr. Deepak Chheda - Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Harish Nisar - Whole-Time Director

Mr. Rohit Dedhia -  Whole-Time Director

Mr. Yogesh Shah - Independent Director

Mr. Vatsal Shah - Independent Director

Mr. Rohan Chheda - Chief Financial Ofce

Ms.Srushti Raghani (Upto 13.07.2023)

Ms.Jyoti Singh (Upto 5.11.2024)

Ms.Riddhi Mahendra Soni (From 17.01.2025)

Relatives of Key Management  Personnel: Ms. Grima Dedhia (Daughter of Mr. Rohit Dedhia)

Mr. Prerak Dedhia (Son of Mr.Rohit Dedhia)

Mrs.Krupa Chheda (Wife of Mr. Deepak Chheda)

Mr. Keshavji Dedhia (Father of Mr. Rohit Dedhia)

Mrs. Jaywanti Dedhia (Mother of Mr. Rohit Dedhia)

Mr. Mehul Nisar - (Son of Harish Nisar)

M/s. RDH Infraspaces (Formerly known as Rodium Realty & Construction)

M/s. C N A Architects

M/s. Sigma Fiscals Pvt Ltd

Uniwood Systems 

Uniwood Systems LLP

ARH Interior

(b) Transactions and outstanding with related parties (excluding reimbursements) (In Rupees Lacs) 

31/03/2025 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 31/03/2024

i) Subsidiaries

Investment/(Withdrawals) -                  (5.47)              573.38                513.52

             Share of Loss in LLP -                  0.01                -                     -

                  Share of Prot in LLP 228.76            235.92            -                     -

                  Interest on Capital 1.09               31.63              -                     -

                  Interest on Loan -                  2.77                -                     -

                  Other Receivable -                 (0.43)              -                     9.48

                Guarantees (Co-Borrower) -                 5,000.00         5,000.00             5,000.00

          ii) Key Management Personnel:

Remuneration

Directors 59.40              59.40              70.29                  51.81

               
Retirement Benefits 4.39                4.48                49.59                  45.20

               
Chief Financial Officer 11.55              12.51              0.67                    0.67

                
Company Secretary 3.82                4.99                0.45                    0.45

                

Companies/Firms in which Directors and 

relatives of Directors are interested:

Particulars Transactions
Outstanding 

(Payable)/Receivable

Rodium Digital Inc
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2 to 5 years 11.94

6 to 10 years 24.32

10.92

12.73

vi) Movement of Liability : Employee Benets

Opening balance 50.09 48.68

Add : Provision for the year 6.16 1.42

Less : Paid during the year

Closing Balance 56.25 50.10
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f) Related Party Disclosures ( As per Ind AS 24: Related Party Disclosures) :

Expenses on Rent, Fees and Charges. 1.20                1.20                6.83                    7.34                

Interest Payable -                  31.77                  31.77               

iv) Companies/Firms in which Directors and Relatives of Directors are interested:

Service Received 43.89              15.90              1.94                    2.77                

Expenses on Rent, Fees and Charges. 3.60                3.60                9.22                    17.96               

Interest Payable -                  -                  126.75                126.75             

Loan Taken /(Returned) (Net) -                  -                  333.76                333.76             

Cancellation of Flat/Shop -                  12.20              11.59                  11.59               

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties;

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the 

year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any 

impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2024: Rs. Nil). This assessment is undertaken each nancial 

year through examining the nancial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Outstanding Interest

Directors -                  -                  480.97                488.97             

Expenses on Rent, Fees and Charges.

Directors 7.20                7.20                31.31                  40.28               

Loan Taken /(Returned) (Net)

Directors 53.50              168.50            1,470.94                       1,524.44

f) Related Party Disclosures ( As per Ind AS 24: Related Party Disclosures) :

Sale of Flat

Directors -                  -                  -                     0.63                

iii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel:

Remuneration -                  -                  

Service Received -                  -                  12.60                  14.60               

Deposit Received -                  -                  33.25                  35.00               

Sale of Flat (Unbilled) -                  719.91            112.28                55.35               

Cancellation of Flat 45.00              -                  -                  

Unsecured Loans from Directors carries interest @ 12%. (Previous year 12%) and are repayable on demand. The Directors have given their 

consent regarding waiver of interest for Financial Year 2024-25, on their unsecured loan

g) Commitment

(i) Uncalled amount of Rs.Nil (Previous Year: Rs 4,500 ) on Nil Units (Previous year 250 units) of Kotak India Growth Fund - Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.11.25 Lacs)

h)

i)

Year Ended 31 

March 2025

Year Ended 31 

March 2024

5.00 5.00

5000.00 5000.00

j)
2024-25 2023-24 Variance Remarks

1.13        1.14         -1.08% Not Applicable

3.99        5.81         -31.42% Decrease in Debt

0.09       0.23        -60.86% Increase in Earning for Debt Service

0.33        0.01         2281.59% Increase in Prot

0.48        0.44         8.85% Not Applicable

1.61        1.83         -12.01% Not Applicable

2.92        2.19         33.34% Reduction in Payables

1.06        1.68         -37.00% Reduction in Working Capital

0.28        0.01         2745.33% Increase in Prot

0.35       0.18        91.82% Increase in Prot

0.39        0.81         -51.79% Decrease in Investment Income

*Earning for debt service= Prot before Tax + Depreciation + Finance Cost

(f) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio

(g) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio

(a) Current Ratio

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio

(d) Return on Equity Ratio

(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio

Income generated from Investments(k) Return on Investment.

(j) Return on Capital employed

(i) Net Prot Ratio

(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio

Revenue

Purchases

Revenue

Net Profit After Taxes

Earnings before interest and taxes

Current Assets

Total Debt

Earning for Debt Service*

Net Profit After Taxes

Sales

Average Trade Payables

Working Capital

Revenue

Capital Employed

Average Investments

During the year 2014-15, the Company had entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with one of the vendors for Purchase of Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) to be used in the Company’s upcoming 

projects. The Company had paid Rs. 2.28 Crores to the said vendor as advance as per the MOU. The party was unable to fulll its commitment as envisaged in the MOU even after repeated reminders by the Company. 

The Company has initiated the legal process for recovering the advance paid due to the breach of contract and fraud conducted on the Com pany. Pending outcome of the legal process, the amount paid has been reected

under Short Term Loans and Advances.

DenominatorRatios Numerator

Contingent Liabilities

Bank Guarantees given 

Corporate Guarantee (Co-Borrower)

Average Trade Reveivables

Current Liabilities

Shareholder's Equity

Debt service = Interest + Principal Repayments

Average Shareholder's Equity

Average Inventory
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o) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

i Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneciaries) or

ii Provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneciaries.

p)

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W

Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant M. Gala

Partner                                                                 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mem.No.  037626 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofcer

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 A35252

The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such 
as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

k)

l) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for hol ding any Benami property.

m) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the nancial year.

n)

i Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneciaries) or

The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act ,2013 during the nancial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries), other than mentioned in the financial statements, with the understandin

the Intermediary shall:

ii Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneciaries

g that 

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025
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Chartered Accountants

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Opinion 
1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of RODIUM REALTY 

LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its Subsidiaries (the 
Holding Company and its Subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group")  comprising of the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the Consolidated Statement of Prot and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements, including Material Accounting Policies and Other 
Explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”). 

 
2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us and based on consideration of report of other auditors of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards, 
of the consolidated state of affairs (nancial position) of the Group as at March 31, 2025, and 
their consolidated Prot (nancial performance including other comprehensive income), the 
consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash ows for the year ended on that 
date. 

 
Basis of Opinion 
3. We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing (SAs) specied under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fullled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

 
Emphasis of Matter 
4. We draw attention to Note No. 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding non 

provision of interest on unsecured loans as management has obtained consent from the 
unsecured loan holders for waiver of interest for the current nancial year. 
Our Opinion is not modied in respect of above matter. 

 
Key Audit Matters 
5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

signicance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. 
 



  

Sr. No   Key Audit Matters Our Response 

1 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue recognition involves 
signicant estimates related to 
measurement of costs to 
complete the projects. Revenue 
from projects is recorded based 
on the Group’s assessment of 
the work completed, cost 
incurred and accrued and the 
estimate of the balance costs to 
complete the Project. 
Considering the signicant 
estimate involved in 
measurement of revenue, we 
have considered measurement 
of revenue as key audit matter. 

Our audit procedure included: 
1. Identifying and testing operating effectiveness 

of key controls over recording of project costs 
2. Assessing the cost incurred and accrued to 

date on the balance sheet by examining 
underlying invoices and signed agreements on 
a sample basis. Assessing contract costs to 
check no cost of revenue nature are incorrectly 
recorded in the balance sheet. 

3. Comparing, on sample basis, revenue 
transactions recorded during the year with the 
underlying contracts, progress reports, 
invoices raised on customers and collections in 
bank accounts. Also checked the related 
revenue had been recognised in accordance 
with the Group’s revenue recognition policies. 

4. Comparing the cost to complete workings with 
the budgeted costs and inquiring for variance. 

5. Sighting Group’s internal approvals on sample 
basis for changes in budgeted costs along with 
the rationale for the changes. 

 Inventories (Note 7 to the 
Consolidated Financial 
Statements) 
As at March 31, 2025, the 
carrying value of the inventory 
of ongoing and completed real-
estate projects is Rs. 6,115.93 
Lacs. The inventories are held 
at the lower of the cost and net 
realisable value (“NRV”).  
The determination of NRV 
involves estimates based on 
prevailing market conditions 
and taking into account the 
stage of completion of the 
inventory, the estimated future 
selling price, cost to complete 
projects and selling costs. 
We identied the assessment of 
the carrying value of inventory 
as a key audit matter due to the 
signicance of the balance to 
the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole and the 
involvement of estimates and 
judgement in the assessment. 

Our audit procedures included, among others: 
1. We evaluated the design and operation of 

internal controls related to testing recoverable 
amounts with carrying amount of inventory 
including evaluating management processes 
for estimating future costs to complete 
projects.  

 
2. As regards NRV, for a sample of selected 

projects, compared costs incurred and 
estimates of future cost to complete the project 
with costs of similar projects and compared 
NRV to recent sales or to the estimated selling 
price applied in assessing the NRV. 
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Responsibility Report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

7. In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 

8. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information; we are required to communicate the matter with those charged with 
Governance. 

 
Management’s and Board of Director Responsibility and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements  
9. The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 

stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) with 
respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated nancial position, consolidated nancial performance, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash ows of the Group in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards, specied under 
Section 133 of the Act, read together with Rules thereon. The respective Board of 
Directors/Management of the Companies/Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP’s) included in 
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the nancial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, which have 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the 
Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

 
10. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of 

Directors/Management of the Companies/Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP’s) are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
11. The respective Board of Directors/Management of the Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP’s) 

are responsible for overseeing the nancial reporting process of the Group. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
6. The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the 

preparation of the other information.  The other information comprises the information 
included in the Holding Company’s Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance, Business 

| Annual Report 2024-2025 

RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 



  

13. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufcient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion,  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 
 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal nancial controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.  Under Section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Group has adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to these nancial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of 
Directors. 
 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s and Board of Directors use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signicant doubt 
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern 
 

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 
 

•  Obtain sufcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the nancial results of the 
entities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Results. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of 
Financial Results of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Results of 
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entity included in the 

to inuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most signicance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.  We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benets of such communication 

 
Other Matters 
14. The Consolidated Financial Statements includes the nancial statements of two Subsidiaries 

whose nancial statements reect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.  
6,496.30 Lakhs as at March 31, 2025, total revenue (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 
5,039.65 Lakhs and total net prot after tax (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 305.03 
Lakhs for the year ended on that date, which has been audited by an independent auditor. The 
independent auditors' report on Financial Statements of these entities have been furnished to 
us by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as 
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this entity, is based solely on 
the report of such auditor.  
 

15. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of four Subsidiaries, 
whose Financial Statements reect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 380.91 
Lakhs as at March 31, 2025, total revenue (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 112.18 
Lakhs and total net prot after tax (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 10.22 Lakhs for 
the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are 
unaudited and have been certied by the Management of Holding Company and our opinion 
on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these entities, is based solely on such Unaudited Financial Statements. 
In the opinion of the Management the results of said four subsidiaries are immaterial to the 
Group.  

 
16. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements below, is not modied in respect of the above matters with respect 
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

planned scope and timing of the audit and signicant audit ndings, including any signicant 
deciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 

Consolidated Financial Results, which has been audited by other auditors, such other 
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit 
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our 
responsibilities in this regard are further described in para “Other Matters”  
   

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
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c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss 

(including Other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
Consolidated Financial Statements.  

 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specied under Section 133 of the Act, read together with Rules 
thereon. 

 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 

Company on April 01, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company, none of the directors of the Holding Company is disqualied as on March 31, 
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.    

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls with reference to nancial 

statement of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure A”; and 

 
19. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us; 

 

i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated nancial position of the Group. Refer Note 28(h)(ii) to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

 

ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 

from our examination of those books and the report of the other auditor. 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account, as required by the law relating to preparation 

of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements, have been kept so far as it appears 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

17. According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the auditor report 
issued by the auditor of the Components included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, we report that CARO is applicable only to the Holding Company. We have 
not reported any qualications or adverse remarks in the CARO report of the Holding 
Company. 
 

18. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on the Comments in the Auditor’s Report of 
the Holding Company and on consideration of the Auditors Report of the Subsidiary Entities, 
read together with Other Matters Para referred to above, we report, to the extent applicable, 
that: 

 

 
iii) Unclaimed Dividend of Rs. 0.62 Lacs for the nancial years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 required 

to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund is pending to be transferred as on 
Balance Sheet date. 
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(c) Based on such audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances performed by us on the Holding Company, nothing has come to our 
notice that causes us to believe that the above representations under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement  

v) The Holding Company has neither paid nor not declared any dividend for the year 
under audit. 

 vi) Based on our examination of the Holding Company, which included test checks and in 
accordance with the requirements of the implementation guide on reporting of Audit 
Trail under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the Holding 
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which 
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded. Further, we have not come 
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our 
audit.   

Additionally, the audit trial of prior years has been preserved by the holding company 
as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled & 
recorded in the respective years. 

 20. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Holding 
Company has paid and provided for remuneration to its directors during the year in 
accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Act. 

 
For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration

 
No. 101174W)

 
 
 

 
 
(Vasant M. Gala) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 037626 
UDIN:- 25037626BNJVTZ4412 
Mumbai, May 30, 2025 
 

 
  

(b) The Managements of the Holding Company has represented to us that to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding Company, from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company 
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneciaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneciaries;  

 

 

iv) a) The Managements of the Holding Company have represented to us that to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or lend or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries”), with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of 
its subsidiaries, (“Ultimate Beneciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneciaries;   
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ANNEXURE ”A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
Opinion 
1. In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of 

and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal nancial controls with 
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements of RODIUM REALTY LIMITED (“the 
Holding Company”) as of that date. We report that Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable only to the Holding Company. 
 

2. In our opinion, the Holding Company have, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
nancial controls system with reference to the nancial statements and such internal nancial 
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over 
nancial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
3. The Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company are responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal nancial controls based on the internal control over 
nancial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(“ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal nancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efcient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective Company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable nancial 
information, as required under the Act. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal nancial controls with reference to 

the nancial statements of the Holding Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal nancial controls, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

 
5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal nancial controls with reference to the Financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal nancial controls with reference to the nancial statements 
includes obtaining an understanding of internal nancial controls with reference to the 
nancial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
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6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal nancial controls of the Holding Company. 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to nancial statements  

 
7. A Company's internal nancial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process 

designed to A company's internal nancial control with reference to Financial Statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of nancial 
reporting and the preparation of nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal nancial control with 
reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of nancial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the nancial statements 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to nancial statements  

 
8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls with reference to Financial 

Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal nancial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal nancial control with 
reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate 

 
For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 101174W) 
 
 
 
 
(Vasant M. Gala) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 037626 
UDIN:- 25037626BNJVTZ4412 
Mumbai, May 30, 2025 
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Particulars Note

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Other Intangible Assets

Financial Assets;

- Investments

- Other Financial Assets

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Total Non-current Assets (A)

Current Assets

Inventories

Financial Assets;

- Investments 

- Trade Receivables

- Cash and Cash Equivalents

- Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

- Loans

- Others Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets (B)

TOTAL ASSETS (A+B)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share Capital

Other Equity

Total equity attributable to equityholders of the Company (A)

Non-controlling Interest (B)

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Provisions

Total Non-current Laibilities (C)

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings 

- Trade Payables

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

- Other Financial Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

Provisions 

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Current Laibilities (D)

 Total Liabilities E=(C+D)

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (A+B+E)

Basis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W

Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant Gala

Partner                                                                 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mem.No.  037626 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofcer

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 A35252

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025

(In Rupees Lacs) 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

3 (a) 190.78                        11.83                                      

3 (b) 1.59                            4.13                                    

4 226.26                        27.51

5 1,384.02                     881.79                               

6 290.84                        153.04

2,093.49                    1,078.30

7 6,115.93                     6,032.69                               

4 32.78                          67.33

8 4,107.96                     1,706.09                               

9 588.48                        261.32                                    

10 1.26                            558.50                                    

11 836.96                        100.58                                  

5 297.98                        324.43                                  

37.83                          23.22                                  

12 2,522.76                     4,637.59                               

14,541.94                   13,711.75

16,635.43                   14,790.05

13 344.50                        344.50                                        

14 1,426.50                     1,070.43                                  

1,771.00                     1,414.93                                                             

14 157.21                        205.70                                    

15 5,056.57                     2,932.60                               

6 0.10                            0.23                                  

16 33.89                          29.28                                    

5,090.57                    2,962.11                                       

15 5,378.61                     6,887.98                               

17 10.98                          6.44                                      

17 638.09                        640.08                                  

18 1.26                            1.26                                      

19 3,159.47                     2,418.26                               

16 22.36                          20.81                                      

405.89                        232.48                                        

9,616.66                    10,207.31                               

14,707.22                   13,169.42                                                      

16,635.43                   14,790.05                                                      

                                  

2

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited
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Particulars Note

Year Ended 31 

March 2025

Year Ended 31 

March 2024

INCOME

Revenue from Operations 20 6,155.54                  4,755.04

Other Income 21 109.21                     137.73

TOTAL INCOME (A) 6,264.75                  4,892.77

EXPENSES

Cost of Construction and Development 22 4,666.86                  4,100.73

Cost of Finished Units -                           160.00

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress 23 (51.05)                     (248.63)

Employee Benets Expense 24 126.38                     46.00

                          

Finance Costs 25 291.67                     216.91

                        

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 3 (a) & (b) 42.26                       10.30

                          

Other Expenses 26 596.58                     259.53

                        

TOTAL EXPENSES (B) 5,672.70                  4,544.84

                     

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (A-B) 592.05                     347.93

                        

TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax  346.00                     178.98

                        

Deferred Tax  (137.95)                   (34.60)

                        

Earlier year Adjustments 39.93                       71.41

                          

TOTAL TAX EXPENSE 247.98                     215.79

                        

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 344.07                     132.14

                        

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 

Items that will not be reclassied to Prot or Loss

Remeasurements of Dened benet plans 0.12                         5.70

                            

Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassied to Prot or Loss (0.03)                       (1.43)

                          

 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (B) 0.09                         4.27

                            

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 344.16                     136.41
                        

Prot attributable to:

Owners of the Company 267.83                     53.50

                          Non-controling Interest 76.24                       78.64

                          
Other Comprehensice Income attributable to

Owners of the Company 0.09                         4.27

                            

Non-controling Interest -

                              

Total Comprehensive Income for the year iattributable to:

Owners of the Company 267.92                     57.77

                          

Non-controling Interest 76.24                       78.64

                          

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE (In Rupees) 28 (c)

Basic 10.59                       4.07

                            

Diluted 10.59                       4.07

                            

Basis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

This is the Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W

Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant Gala

Partner                                                                 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mem.No.  037626 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofce

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 A35252

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-
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Particulars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX 592.05                   347.93                    

Adjustment for :

Depreciation 42.26                     10.30                     

Finance Cost 291.67                   664.95                   

Interest Income (95.85)                    (94.39)                    

Dividend Income -                        (0.14)                     

Balance Written Back/Off -                        13.26                     

Gain on sale of investment (2.41)                     -                        

Remeasurements of Dened Benet Plans -                        5.70                       

Fair Value changes in Investments (2.63)                     233.04                   (26.08)                    573.60                    

 CASH GENERATION FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE WORKING 

CAPITAL CHANGES 
                    825.09                      921.53 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (2,401.87)               (313.95)                  

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (475.78)                  (74.66)                    

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 2,114.83                (2,093.04)               

 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (83.25)                    (248.63)                  

 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable 2.56                       180.12                   

 Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 6.15 1.42                       

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 727.69                   (109.67)                  1,907.52                (641.23)                   

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 715.42                   280.31                    

Taxes paid (net of refunds) (147.26)                  (53.49)                     

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 568.16                   226.82                    

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (220.38)                  (8.17)                     

Sale/Purchase of Investments (170.08)                  29.21                     

Loans (736.38)                  (11.26)                    

Term Deposits with maturity more than 3 months 557.24                   (75.36)                    

Dividend Income -                        0.14                       

Interest Income 95.85                     99.07                     

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (473.75)                  33.63                      

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of Borrowings 614.59                    423.17                   

Change in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (1.54)                     

Capital Contribution/Withdrawal in LLP (124.73)                  8.68                       

Interest paid (291.67)                  (678.70)                  

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 198.19                   (248.38)                   

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 292.60                   12.06                      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 328.65                   316.58                    

Cash and Cash Equivalents 261.32                 224.19                    

Current Investments 67.33                   92.39                      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 621.26                   328.65                    

Cash and Cash Equivalents 588.48                 261.32                  

Current Investments 32.78                   67.33                    

                         - -                          

Note to Cash Flow Statement: -                         

1. The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in IND AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W

Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Directo

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant Gala

Partner                                                                 

Mem.No.  037626 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofce

A35252

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-
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\ (In Rupees Lacs) 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised Share Capital 6,000,000     600.00           6,000,000        600.00

            

 

Issued Share Capital 3,733,300     373.33           3,733,300        373.33

            

Subscribed Share Capital 3,247,900     324.79           3,247,900        324.79

            

Fully Paid-up Share Capital 3,247,900     324.79           3,247,900        324.79

            

Forefeited Shares - Amount originally paid up on 4,85,400 shares -               19.71             -                  19.71

              

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 3,247,900     344.50           3,247,900        344.50

            

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -               -                 -                  -

                 

Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 3,247,900     344.50           3,247,900        344.50

                         

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -               -                 -                  -

                         

Balance at the end of the year 3,247,900     344.50           3,247,900        344.50

                         

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Capital 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Exchange

 

differences 

on 

Translation 

of Financial 
Statements of 

Remeasure

ments 

of Dened

 Benet Plans

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 350.51         421.41           224.54            0.33               14.02              1,010.80                         118.47

                   

Changes in Accounting Policy or Correction of Prior Period Errors

Restated balance as at 1st April 2023 350.51          421.41           224.54             0.33                14.02              1,010.80                         118.47

                    

Prot for the Reporting year ending 31st March 2024 53.50               53.50

                              

78.64

                     

Other Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year ending 31 March 2024 4.27

                

4.27

                                

Total Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year 350.51         421.41           278.04            0.33               18.29              1,068.57                         197.11

                   

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Add: Intergroup Transactions -

                  

-

                                  

8.59

                       

Add:  FCTR 1.87                1.87

                                

Add: Change in balance of Capital of Minority Interest -

                  

Balance at the end of the Reporting year ending 31st March 2024 350.51         421.41           278.04            2.20               18.29              1,070.43                         205.70

                   

Prot for the Reporting year ending 31st March 2025 267.83             267.83

                            

76.24

                     

Other Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year ending 31 March 2025 0.09

                

0.09

                                

-

                         

Total Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year 350.51         421.41           545.87            2.20               18.39              1,338.35                         281.94

                   

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Add: Intergroup Transactions 88.05                              -124.73

                  

Add:  FCTR

Add: Change in balance of Capital of Minority Interest

Balance at the end of the Reporting year ending 31st March 2025 350.51         421.41           545.87            2.20               18.39              1,426.50                         157.21

                   

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W
Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686
Vasant Gala

Partner                                                                 

Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mem.No.  037626

Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofcer

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025

A35252

 

Non-controling 

interest

Total

Total

Equity 

Component 

of 

Compound 

Financial 

Instrument

OTHER EQUITY

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-
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NOTE 1 Group Information

NOTE 2

Name
Country of 

incorporation

Proportion of 

ownership interest  
Financial Statement as on  Accounting Period covered for consolidation

Rodium Housing LLP India 75.00% 31-Mar-25 April 1st, 2024 – March 31st, 2025

Rodium Digital Inc USA 100.00% 31-Mar-25 April 1st, 2024 – March 31st, 2025

81 Estates LLP India 75.00% 31-Mar-25 April 1st, 2024 – March 31st, 2025

Readystage LLP India 75.00% 31-Mar-25 April 1st, 2024 – March 31st, 2025

Fluid Reality LLP India 75.00% 31-Mar-25 April 1st, 2024 – March 31st, 2025

Xperia Reality LLP India 99.00% 31-Mar-25 April 1st, 2024 – March 31st, 2025

The Group is primarily engaged in business of real estate construction, development and other related activities. 

The consolidated nancial statements comprise of the nancial statements of the Holding Company and the following subsidiaries as on March 31st, 2025

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise nancial statements of Rodium Realty Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiaries 
(collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2025.

The consolidated nancial statements comprise the nancial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2025. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specically, the Group
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar
rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights
• The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of
a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated nancial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
Consolidated nancial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated nancial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments, if material,
are made to that group member’s nancial statements in preparing the consolidated nancial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.
The nancial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Holding Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March 2025

Consolidation Procedure:
a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash ows of the Holding Company with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses
of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated nancial statements at the acquisition date.
b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Holding Company’s investment in each subsidiary and the Holding Company’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.
c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash ows relating to transactions between entities of the group (prots or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and Property, Plant and Equipment, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that
requires recognition in the consolidated nancial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of prots and losses resulting
from intragroup transactions.
Prot or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Holding Company of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a decit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the nancial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash ows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
• Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
• Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
• Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
• Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
• Recognises the fair value of any investment retained
• Recognises any surplus or decit in prot or loss
• Reclassies the Holding Company’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to prot or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities



A Basis of preparation of Financial Statements, Key Accounting Estimates & Judgements

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis considering the applicable provisions of

Companies Act 2013 except the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by

relevant Ind AS. Nevertheless, historical cost is generally based at the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

a)      Certain Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at fair value.

b)      Any other item as specically stated in accounting policy.

The Consoildated Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting

policies are applied consistently to all periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in India Rupee (INR), which is also functional currency of the

Group. All the values are rounded off to the nearest Lacs (INR 00,000) unless otherwise indicated.

The Group reclassies comparative amounts, unless impracticable and whenever the Group changes the

presentation or classication o tems in its nancial statements materially. No such material reclassication has

been made during the year.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2025 were authorised for issue

in accordance with a resolution of the directors on  30th May, 2025.

Statement of Compliance

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IND AS as prescribed under

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 and subsequent amendments thereto.

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of accounting policies which are described in note (B) below, the management is required to

make judgment, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of Assets and Liabilities, Income and

Expenses, Contingent Liabilities and the accompanying disclosures that are not readily apparent from other

sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant and are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from those estimates. The

estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period

of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future period.

Evaluation of Percentage Completion:

Determination of Revenues under the percentage completion method necessarily invloves making estimates, some

of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to completion,

the expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion. Estimates of project

income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is recognised in

the Financial statements for the period in which such changes are determined.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

For calculating the recoverable amount of Non-Financial Assets, the Group is required to estimate the value-in-use

of the asset or the Cash Generating Unit and the fair value less costs to disposal. For calculating value in use the

Group is required to estimate the cash ows to be generated from using the asset. The fair value of an assets is

estimated using a valuation technique where observable prices are not available. Further, the discount rate used in

value in use calculations includes an estimate of risk assessment specic to the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets:       
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The Group impairs Financial Assets other than those measured at fair value through prot or loss or designated at

fair value through other comprehensive income on expected credit losses. The estimation of expected credit loss

includes the estimation of probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD).

Estimation of probability of default apart from involving trend analysis of past delinquency rates include an

estimation on forward-looking information relating to not only the counterparty but also relating to the industry

and the economy as a whole. The probability of default is estimated for the entire life of the contract by estimating

the cash ows that are likely to be received in default scenario. The lifetime PD is reduced to 12 month PD based on

an assessment of past history of default cases in 12 months. Further, the loss given default is calculated based on an

estimate of the value of the security recoverable as on the reporting date. The exposure at default is the amount 

Dened Benet Plans:

The cost of the dened benet plan and other post-employment benets and the present value of such obligations

are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may

differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary

increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term

nature, a dened benet obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured

based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the

Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where

possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgments

include considerations o nputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about

these factors could affect the reported fair value of Financial Instruments.

 Income taxes 

Signicant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be

paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax Assets, management considers whether some portion or all of

the deferred income tax Assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax Assets is

dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences

become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax Liabilities, projected

future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable

income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax Assets are

deductible, management believes that the Group will realize the benets of those deductible differences. The

amount of the deferred income tax Assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if

estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements are set out

in Para B below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented

B Material Accounting Policies

1 Property, Plant And Equipment 

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’) recognised as

of transition date measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost of the PPE.
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PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes purchase

price (after deducting trade discount / rebate), non-refundable duties and taxes, cost of replacing the component

parts, borrowing costs and other directly attributable cost to bringing the asset to the location and condition

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

An item of PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benets are expected from use. Any prot

or loss arising on the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Prot

and Loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is calssied as capital advances

under "Other Non-current Assets" 

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual value. Where the residual value of an

asset increases to an amount equal to or greater than the asset’s carrying amount, no depreciation charge is

recognised till the asset’s residual value decreases below the asset’s carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset

begins when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the intended manner. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is

classied as held for sale in accordance with IND AS 105 and the date that the asset is derecognised. 

Depreciation on the PPE, is provided over the useful life of Assets which is in line with the useful life indicated in

Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on all Assets is provided on straight line basis. Depreciation

on property plant and equipment added/disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference

to the date of addition/disposal. The Assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed

at each Financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Description of the Asset                                                                                    Estimated Useful Life

Tangible:

Furniture and Fixtures                                                                                                   10 Years

Computers                                                                                                                       3 Years

Ofce Equipment                                                                                                             5 Years

2 Intangible Assets

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of Intangible Assets recognised as of transition date

measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost.

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, Intangible  

assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Software (not being an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for internal use are treated as Intangible

Assets and is amortised over a period of 3 years on straight-line method over the estimated useful economic life.

An item of Intangible Asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benets are expected from its

use or disposal. Any prot or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of

Prot and Loss.
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3 Impairment of tangible (PPE) and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts o ts PPE and other intangible assets

to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the

Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (‘CGU’) to which the asset belongs. When the

carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the

estimated future cash ows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specic to the asset. In determining fair value less cost

to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identied, an appropriate

valuation model is used.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the

revised estimate o ts recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior

years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss. 

4 Foreign Currency Transactions

In preparing the nancial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency are

recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,

monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary

items denominated in foreign currency are reported at the exchange rate ruling on the date of transaction.

5 Inventories

Work-in-progress - Real estate projects (including land inventory): Represents cost incurred in respect of unsold

area of the real estate development projects under construction or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet

to be recognised. Real estate work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is inventorised. Indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs)

during construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is incidental

thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is

neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Statement of Prot and Loss.

Finished goods - Units : Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to NRV and all abnormal losses o nventories are recognized as

expense in the Statement of Prot And Loss in the period in which such write-down or loss occurs. The amount of

any reversal of the write-down of inventories arising from increase in the NRV is recognized as a reduction from

the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period in which reversal occurs.
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6 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or

estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes

into account the characteristics of asset and liability if market participants would take those into consideration. Fair

value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these Financial Statements is determined in such basis

except for transactions in the scope of Ind AS 2, 17 and 36. Normally at initial recognition, the transaction price is

the best evidence of fair value.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a Non-Financial Asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate

economic benets by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques those are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufcient data are

available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 

All Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated

Financial Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is signicant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signicant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signicant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the

end of each reporting period. 

7 Financial Instruments 

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a Financial Asset of one entity and a Financial Liability or

Equity Instrument of another entity. The Group recognizes a Financial Asset or Financial Liability in its balance

sheet only when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

a) Financial Assets

A Financial Asset inter-alia includes any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or contractual

obligation to receive cash or another Financial Asset or to exchange Financial Asset or Financial Liability under

condition that are potentially favourable to the Group.

Financial Assets 

Financial Assets of the Group comprise trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances, Investment

other than equity shares, loans to employee / related parties / others and security deposits. 
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Initial recognition and measurement

All Financial Assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of Financial Assets not recorded at fair

value through prot or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the Financial Asset.

However, Trade Receivables that do not contain a signicant nancing component are measured at Transaction

Price. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at fair value through prot or loss are expensed in Statement of

Prot and Loss. Where transaction price is not the measure of fair value and fair value is determined using a

valuation method that uses data from observable market, the difference between transaction price and fair value is

recognised in Statement of Prot and Loss on the date of recognition if the fair value pertains to Level 1 or Level 2

of the fair value hierarchy and in other cases spread over life of the Financial instrument using effective interest

method. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement Financial Assets are classied in three categories: 

·           Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost 

·           Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI 

·           Financial Assets at Fair Value through Prot or Loss 

Financial Assets measured at Amortized cost 

Financial Assets are measured at amortized cost if the Financials Asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to hold Financial Assets in order to collect contractual cash ows and the contractual terms of the

Financial Asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding. These Financials Assets are amortized using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’)

method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in nance income

in the Statement of Prot And Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Prot

And Loss . 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI (‘FVTOCI’)

Financial Assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the Financial Asset is held

within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash ows and selling Financial

Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. At initial recognition, an irrevocable

election is made (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments other than

held for trading purpose at FVTOCI. Fair value changes are recognized in the other comprehensive income (‘OCI’).

However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss

in the Statement of Prot And Loss. On derecognition of the Financial Asset other than equity instruments

designated as FVTOCI, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassied to the Statement of

Prot And Lospor

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Prot or Loss (‘FVTPL’)

Any Financial Asset that does not meet the criteria for classication as at amortized cost or as Financial Assets at

fair value through other comprehensive income is classied as Financial Assets at fair value through prot or loss.

Further, Financial Assets at fair value through prot or loss also include Financial Assets held for trading and

Financial Assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through prot or loss. Financial Assets are

classied as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Financial Assets at fair value through prot or loss are fair valued at each reporting date with all the changes
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The Group derecognises a Financial Asset only when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the asset expire,

or when it transfers the Financial Asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to

another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and

continues to control the Financial Asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated

liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model on the following:

·           Financial Assets that are measured at amortised cost; and

·           Financial Assets measured at FVTOCI.

Derecognition

ECL is measured through a loss allowance on a following basis:- 

·           The 12 month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the

Financial Instruments that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date) 

·          Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over

the life of Financial Instruments)

The Group follows ‘simplied approach’ for recognition o mpairment on trade receivables or contract Assets

resulting from normal business transactions. The application of simplied approach does not require the Group to

track changes in credit risk. However, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each

reporting date,   from the date of initial recognition.

For recognition o mpairment loss on other Financial Assets, the Group determines whether there has been a

signicant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has increased signicantly, lifetime ECL

is provided. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group assesses the credit risk

characteristics on instrument-by-instrument basis.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash ows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract

and all the cash ows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls) discounted at the original EIR. 

Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/income in the

Statement of Prot And Loss. 

b) Financial Liabilities

The Group’s Financial Liabilities include loans And borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, accrued

expenses and other payables etc.

Initial recognition and measurement

All Financial Liabilities at initial recognition are classied as Financial Liabilities at amortized cost or Financial

Liabilities at fair value through prot or loss, as appropriate. All Financial Liabilities classied at amortized cost are

recognized initially at fair value net of directly attributable transaction costs. Any difference between the proceeds

(net of transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of Prot And Loss or

in the CWIP, if another standard permits inclusion of such cost in the carrying amount of an asset over the period of  

the borrowings using the Effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method.

Subsequent measurement 

The subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities depends upon the classication as described below:-
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Financial Liabilities classied as Amortised Cost

Financial Liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost

at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or

premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Interest expense that is not capitalized

as part of costs of assets is included as Finance costs in the Statement of Prot And Loss. 

Financial Liabilities classied as Fair value through Prot and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial Liabilities classied as FVTPL includes Financial Liabilities held for trading and Financial Liabilities

designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial Liabilities are classied as held for trading if they are

incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial Liabilities designated upon initial recognition

at FVTPL only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 is satised. 

Derecognition

A Financial Liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged / cancelled / expired.

When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or

the terms of an existing liability are substantially modied, such an exchange or modication is treated as the de

recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying

amounts is recognized in the Statement of Prot And Loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

8 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is

probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outow of resources embodying economic benets will be required to

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are

determined based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a

standalone asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that

reects, the risks specic to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage

of time is recognised as a nance costs. 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous

contract is considered to exist when a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations exceed

the economic benets expected to be received from it.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of management/independent experts. These are

reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reect the current management estimate.

Contingent Assets are not recognized, however, disclosed in Financial statement when inow of economic benets

is probable.

| Annual Report 2024-2025 

RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 



9 Revenue Recognition

The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of completed property and proportionate revenue of property

under development.

Completed inventory property

The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and that is satised at the point in time

when control transfers.

Inventory Property under Development

Contracts relating to the sale of property under development is considered as a single performance obligation

because it provides a signicant service o ntegrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed

property (the combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy

Revenue from Contracts with customers relating to property under development is recognised over time as it has

concluded that, at all times, it has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date and it has no

alternative use for the said asset . Therefore, control transfers over time for these contracts

For contracts that meet the over time revenue recognition criteria, performance is measured using an input method,

by reference to the costs incurred to the satisfaction of a performance obligation (e.g., resources consumed, labour

hours expended, costs incurred, time elapsed) relative to the total expected inputs to the completion of the property

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in

an amount that reects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those services. Revenue from

the sale of services is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer.

Use of signicant judgements in revenue recognition

• Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be

either a xed amount of consideration or variable consideration with elements such as discounts. Any

consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct

product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the

transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a signicant reversal in the amount of cumulative

revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satised at a point in time or

over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benets as services are

rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for

performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of signicant risks and rewards to the

customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. 

Group collects and spends money towards maintainence of the completed projects where society is yet to be

formed or where the affairs of the maintenance of building constructed by them has not been handed over to the

society. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the bill is raised to the customer for collection of

maintainence charges.

Interest income on Financial Assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the EIR method.
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When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the

estimated future cash ows discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues

unwinding the discount as interest income.

10 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of

borrowings with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowings.

Borrowing cost pertaining to development o ong term projects are transferred to Construction work in progress ,

as part of the cost of the projects upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare these projects for its intended

use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recongnised as expense in the period in which they are incurred

11 Employee Benets

Short-term Employees Benets

All short term employees benets such as salaries, wages, allowances, performance incentive, employee welfare

costs, exgratia are recognised during the period in which the employee render services and are measured at

undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the Liabilities are settled. 

 Post-employment Benets 

The Group provides the following post-employment benets:

i) Dened benet plans such as gratuity and

ii) Dened Contribution plans such as provident fund.

Dened benets plans 

The cost of providing dened benet plans such as gratuity is determined on the basis of present value of dened

benets obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method with independent actuarial valuation

made at the end of each annual reporting period, which recognizes each period of service as given rise to additional

unit of employees benet entitlement and measuring each unit separately to build up the nal obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the dened benet obligation

and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benet expense in the Statement of Prot and

Loss except those included in cost of Assets as permitted. 

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in

actuarial assumptions, the effect of change in assets ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan asset (excluding

net interest as dened above) are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) except those included in cost of

assets as permitted in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassied to the Statement of

Prot and Loss in subsequent periods. 

Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements) is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss except those included in cost of Assets as permitted in

the period in which they occur. 
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Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the

Statement of Prot and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other

comprehensive income.

Current  tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable tax

rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses and

penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in nance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest Income,

if any, related to Income tax is included in Other Income.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets and Liabilities in the

balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable prot. Deferred tax Liabilities are

generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax Assets are generally recognised for all

deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable

that future taxable prots will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed

losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised. Such deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are not recognised if

the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of Assets and Liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

the taxable prot nor the accounting prot. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax Assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it

is no longer probable that sufcient taxable prots will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Dened Contribution Plans

Contributions to the Provident Fund are made at a pre-determined rate and charged to the statement of Prot and 

12 Income Taxes

Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which

the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax Liabilities and Assets reects the tax

consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its Assets and Liabilities. 

Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax Assets

against current tax Liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the

Group intends to settle its current tax Assets and Liabilities on a net basis. 

13 Current versus Non-current classication

The Group presents Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classication. 

a)   An asset is current when it is:

·         Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

·         Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

·         Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

·        Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.
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All other assets are classied as non-current.

b)    A liability is current when:

·         It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

·         It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

·         It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

·         There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

All other liabilities are classied as non-current.

c)                  Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are classied as Non-current Assets and Liabilities.

d) The normal operating cycle in respect of operation relating to under construction real estate project depends on

signing of agreement , size of the project, phasing of the project , type of development, project complexities,

approvals needed And realisation of project into cash And cash equivalents and range from 3 to 5 years.

Accordingly project related Assets and liabilities have been classied into current and non-current based on

14 Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the prot from continuing operations and total prot, both

attributable to equity shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

C Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notication dated 24th March 2021, has amended Schedule III to the

Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosure requirements in nancial statements. The Financial statements have

been prepared after incorporating the amendments to the extent they are applicable

D Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifes new standards, ammendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025,

MCA has not notied any new standard or ammendments to existing standards applicable to the Group.
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Particulars
Furniture and 

Fixtures

Ofce 

Equipment
Vehicle Computers Total

Computer

 Software
Total

Gross Block

 Opening Balance as at 01 April 2023 14.96                 13.92
                    

31.04
                

59.92
 

               22.72                   22.72
              

Additions/Adjustments -                     7.80
                      

0.37
                  

8.17
                  

-
                       

-
                  

Disposals -
                    

 Balance as at 31 March 2024 14.96                 21.72

                    

31.41

                

68.09

 

               22.72                   22.72

              

Additions/Adjustments -                     p 164.68

                  

1.25

                  

165.93

              

Disposals 

 Balance as at 31 March 2025 14.96                 21.72

                    

164.68

                  

32.66

                

234.02

 

             22.72                   22.72

              

 Accumulated Depreciation 

 Opening Balance as at 01 April 2023 14.96                 13.02                    -                        23.06                51.04                13.50                   13.50

              

Depreciation / Amortisation for the year -                     0.91                      4.30                  5.21                  5.09                     5.09

                

Disposals -

                    

 Balance as at 31 March 2024 14.96                 13.93                    -                        27.35                56.25                18.59                   18.59

              

Depreciation / Amortisation for the year 6.02                      29.06                    4.63                  39.72                2.54                     2.54

                

Disposals 

 Balance as at 31 March 2025 14.96                 19.96                    29.06                    31.98                95.96                21.13                   21.13

              

Net Block

As at 31st March 2024 0.00                   7.79

                      

-

                        

4.06

                  

11.83

                

4.13

                     

4.13

                

As at 31st March 2025 0.00                   1.75

                      

135.61

                  

0.68

                  

138.06

 

             1.59

                     

1.59

                

 NOTE 3 (b) OTHER 

INTANGIBLES ASSETS 

NOTE 3 (a)  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(In Rupees Lacs) 

NOTE 4

INVESTMENTS

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Non-Current Investments

Unquoted - Non Trade

226.26                  27.51
                  

Aggregate Amount  of Unquoted Investments 226.26                  27.51
                  

Current Investments

Unquoted - Non Trade

 In Mutual Fund Units: (at Fair Value through Prot or Loss ) 32.78 67.33

                  

Aggregate Amount  of Quoted Investments 32.78                    67.33

                  

NOTE 5

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (In Rupees Lacs)

 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

 Carried at Amortised Cost : Considered Good  

L Bank deposits with original maturity more than 12 months* 1,355.61

             

854.81

               

L Security Deposits 28.41

                  

26.98

 

                108.55             134.44

           

 Others 141.46             149.08

           

O Interest Accrued on Loans 47.97

               

40.91

             

1,384.02

             

881.79

 

              297.98                  324.43

                 

 *Pledge as security for working capital taken from bank 

NOTE 6

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/( LIABILITIES) - (NET)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net);

 Retirement Benets (0.03)                    (1.43)

                  

 Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTPL Mutual Funds 2.63                 (9.05)

                  

A 2.60                     (10.48)

                 

Deferred Tax Asset:

 Expenses allowable on Actual Payments 14.19               14.04

                  

 Property,Plant And Equipments And Intangibles (0.23)                    3.35

                    

 Carried forward Loss 274.28             146.14

                

B 288.24                  163.53

                

Total A+B 290.84                  153.04

                 

In Mutual Fund: (at Fair Value through Prot or Loss )

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Amount

Particulars

CurrentNon-Current

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars

Total
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Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net);

 Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTPL Mutual Funds (0.10)                    (0.23)

                  

A (0.10)                    (0.23)

                  

Deferred Tax Asset: B -

                     

Total A+B (0.10)                    (0.23)

                  

NOTE 7

INVENTORIES (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

INWork-in-progress 5,760.89               5,677.64

              

INFinished Units 355.04 355.04

                 

Total 6,115.93               6,032.69

              

NOTE 8

TRADE RECEIVABLES 

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

T Unsecured, Undisputed and Considered Good 4107.96 1,706.09

              

Unsecured, Considered good -                        -

                      

Unsecured Considered doubtful -                        -

                      

Less: Impairment provision on Expected Credit Loss Model -                        -

                      

Total 4,107.96               1,706.09

              

Ageing for Trade Receivables

Particulars
Not Due

Less than 6 

months

6 months -1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 years

More than 3 

Years

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 3,206.37           85.10            188.33                18.45                609.71                  4,107.96

             

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good* -          (528.80)             (431.64)         (103.04)              -                   (642.61)                (1,706.09)

            

*Figures in bracket are in respect of previous year

NOTE: The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on trade receivables using the simplied approach as per Ind AS 109. Based on internal assessment and external

information relating to the customers, ageing, and collection history, the management has concluded that there is no material expected credit loss as at 31st March 2025. Consequently,

no allowance for impairment has been recognised.

Particulars

(In Rupees Lacs)

 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment As at 

31 March 2025

NOTE 9

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

CI Cash on hand 83.04                         36.26 

B Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 505.44                       206 .52 

Term Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
 

                        -                           18.54 

Total 588.48                 261.32
                      

NOTE 10

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

BDDeposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 

months*                          -   557.24

BCDividend Account**

 

                    1.26 1.26

Total 1.26                     558.50

                      

 *Pledge as security for working capital taken from bank 

 **Unclaimed Dividend of Rs. 0.62 Lacs for the nancial years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund is pending to be transferred 
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NOTE 11

LOANS (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD) (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Carried at Amortised cost :

Loans to

Employees 2.85                     2.58

                          

Others (Refer Note a below) 834.11                 98.00

                        

Total 836.96                 100.58

                      

NOTE 12

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Unsecured and Considered Good

SA Advances to Suppliers (Other than Capital) 122.92

                 

253.58

                      

Sub Total 122.92                 253.58

                      

 Unbilled Revenue 2,113.36              4,086.00

              

O  Balance with statutory authorities -                       0.75

                     

L  Prepaid Expenses 24.52                   15.20

                   

O  Others (Refer Note 28(h)) 261.96                 282.07

                 

Sub Total 2,399.84              4,384.01

                   

 Total 2,522.76              4,637.59

                   

a. The loans are repayable on demand
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NOTE 13 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(In Rupees Lacs) 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised Share Capital 6,000,000     600.00           6,000,000        600.00
            

 

Issued Share Capital 3,733,300     373.33           3,733,300        373.33

            

Subscribed Share Capital 3,247,900     324.79           3,247,900        324.79

            

Fully Paid-up Share Capital 3,247,900     324.79           3,247,900        324.79

            

Forefeited Shares - Amount originally paid up on 4,85,400 shares 19.71             19.71

              

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 3,247,900     344.50           3,247,900        344.50

            

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -                  -

                 

Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 3,247,900     344.50           3,247,900        344.50

                         

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -                  -

                         

Balance at the end of the year 3,247,900     344.50           3,247,900        344.50

                         

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change 

during the 

year

% Change during the 

year

Promoter Name No. % No. %

Deepak Chheda 1,017,252     31.32% 0.00% 1,017,252       31.32% 1.80%

Shailesh Damji Shah 588,521        18.12% 0.00% 588,521          18.12% 0.00%

Rohit Keshavji Dedhia 319,466        9.84% 0.00% 319,466          9.84% 0.00%

Harish Damji Nisar 320,211        9.86% 0.00% 320,230          9.86% 0.00%

Rohan Deepak Chheda 9,916           0.31% 0.00% 9,916              0.31% -0.40%

Paarth Deepak Chheda 9,627           0.30% 0.01% 9,327              0.29% -0.09%

Krupa Deepak Chheda 12,610          0.39% 0.03% 11,489            0.35% -0.09%

Sigma Fiscals Private Limited 9,714           0.30% 0.05% 8,160              0.25% 0.09%

Shares in the Holding Company held by each shareholder holding more than ve per cent shares 

No. % No. %

Deepak Chheda 1,017,252     31.32% 1,017,252        31.32%

Shailesh Damji Shah 588,521        18.12% 588,521           18.12%

Harish Damji Nisar 320,211        9.86% 320,230           9.86%

Rohit Keshavji Dedhia 319,466        9.84% 319,466           9.84%

NOTE 14 OTHER EQUITY

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Capital 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Exchange

 

differences 
on 

Translation 

of Financial 
Statements of 

Remeasure

ments 

of Dened

 Benet Plans

 Balance at the beginning of the Comparative Reporting year 350.51          421.41           224.54            0.33               14.02              1,010.80                         118.47

                   

Changes in Accounting Policy or Correction of Prior Period Errors

Restated balance as at 1st April 2023 350.51         421.41           224.54            0.33               14.02              1,010.80                         118.47

                   

Prot for the Comparative year ending 31st March 2024 53.50              53.50                              78.64

                     

Other Comprehensive Income for the Comparative Reporting year ending 31 March 2024 -

                  

4.27

                

4.27

                               

Total Comprehensive Income for the Comparative year 350.51         421.41           278.04            0.33               18.29              1,068.57                         197.11

                   

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: -

                                 

Add: Intergroup Transactions -                                 8.59

                       

Add:  FCTR 1.87               1.87

                               

Add: Change in balance of Capital of Minority Interest

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 350.51         421.41           278.04            2.20               18.29              1,070.43                         205.70

                   

Restated balance as at 1st April 2024 350.51          421.41           278.04             2.20                18.29              1,070.43                         205.70

                    

Prot for the Reporting year ending 31st March 2025 267.83             267.83

                            

76.24

                     

Other Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year ending 31 March 2025 0.09

                

0.09

                                

Total Comprehensive Income for the Reporting year 350.51         421.41           545.87            2.20               -                 1,338.35                         281.94

                   

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Add: Intergroup Transactions -

                  

88.05

                              

-124.73

                  

Add:  FCTR

Add: Change in balance of Capital of Minority Interest -

                  

 Balance at the end of the Reporting year ending 31st March 2025 350.51          421.41           545.87             2.20                -                  1,426.50                         157.21

                    

Nature and Purpose of each component of equity

Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument

Retained Earnings
Remeasurements of Dened Benet Plans
Capital Reserve

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES For Rodium Realty Limited

Chartered Accountants                                        

FRN 101174W
Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant Gala

Partner                                                                 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda
Mem.No.  037626 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofcer

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 A35252

The 

 

Equity component part of compound nancial instrument issued by the Group which are classied as nancial liabilities an

Equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the denations of nancial liability and equity 

instrument.

Retained earnings are the prots that the Group has earned till date, less dividend payouts.
Gains/Losses arising on Remeasurements of Dened Plan at the end of each reporting period. 
It represents reserves acquired on acquistion of the Holding Company.

Equity 

Component 

of 

Compound 

Financial 

Instrument

Total

Non-controling 

interest

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

OTHER EQUITY Total

The Holding Company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitle to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holder of the equity 

share will be entitle to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share holders.

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-



NOTE 15

BORROWINGS (At Amortised Cost) (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

NON CURRENT

Secured

Term loans;

LTT  From Bank 

 

                    747.73                    2,436.82 

 From Other Financial Institutions 

 

                 3,065.13                              -   

Unsecured

From Related Parties

 

                    703.30 

Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments -

70,00,000 6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference 

Shares of Rs.10/- each                      540.41                       495.78 

Total                        5,056.57                         2,932.60 

CURRENT

Secured

STL  Working Capital Loan from Bank 

 

                 1,004.99                    1,067.37 

Current Maturities of Long-term Debt

 

                      28.88                    1,119.70 

Unsecured

 From Related Parties (Refer Note 28 (g)) 

 

                 2,412.40                    2,549.90 

 From Others 

 

                    602.49                       812.49 

 Interest Accrued on above 

 

                 1,329.85                    1,338.52 

Total                        5,378.61                         6,887.98 

Nature of Borrowings

1 Term Loan from Capri Global Capital Limited is secured by ;

a. First and Exclusive Charge by way of Registered Mortgage over

the Development Rights, Title, Interests of the Developer/ Borrower

and all the present and future structures there upon to the extent of

the Developer/Borrower's share.

b. First & Exclusive charge by the way of registered hypothecation

over all the present and future cash ows of the project including

receivables from sold area, recoverable from the bank guarantee in

respect of the project.

c. The said loan is further secured by assignment o nsurance

policies of the adequate value for the project in favour of the Lender.  

 

rst disbursement including moratorium 

period of 24 months. Interest is 16.35% p.a  

(P.Y. - 16.35%). This loan has been fully 

repaid during the year.                   

2) Repayable in 24 months from the date of 

rst disbursement including moratorium 

period of 24 months. Interest is 16.35% p.a 

(P.Y. - 16.35%). This loan has been fully 

repaid during the year.                                        

 

3) Repayable in 54 months from the date of rst 

disbursement (Including moratorium period 

of 36 months). Interest 16.35%p.a (P.Y. - 

16.00%).     

4) Repayabale in 36 months from the date of 

rst disbursement (Including moratorium 

period of 24 months). 16.35% p.a (P.Y. - 

16.00%)

Interest Rate & Terms Of Repayment
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2   Working Capital Loan from Indian Oversaes Bank

3  Loans from Related Parties and Others 

4  Loans from Aditya Birla Capital 

5

Vehicles purchased against loans are secured by hypothication of vehicles purchased under the respective 

schemes.

Loan is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing from July-2024 and carries interest rate of  9.45% 

p.a. (P.Y. Nil).

 Loan from Mercedes Benz Financial Services India Private Limited 

The Company has availed a term loan repayable over a period of 60 months carrying interest at the rate of 13.75% 

p.a (PY Nil) . The loan carries a moratorium of 30 months on repayment of principal, during which only interest is 

serviced on a monthly basis. Post the moratorium, the principal is repayable in 30 equal monthly instalments along 

with applicable interest.

All other terms and conditions of the 70,00,000 6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of

FV Rs 10/- fully paid will remain the same as of the 70,00,000 9% Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference

Shares of FV Rs 10/- fully paid. The original preference shares were for a term of 20 Years from 31st March, 2008

being the date of allotment, accordingly the 70,00,000 6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference

Shares of FV Rs 10/- fully paid would mature on 31st march, 2028. The component portion of compound nancial

instrument is classied as nancial liability.

i) The

 

said term loan is

 

secured by rst

 

and exclusive

 

charge by way of registered mortgage

 

on

 

property being 

developement rights of Ms. Fluid Realty LLP, units belonging to developers component and present and future FSI 

accruing to the developer in the redevopement project "Rodium Xone".

ii) First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation and escrow of all present and future receivables/rental 

arising out of units of above mentioned securities.

Unsecured Loans from Related Parties and Others carries interest @ 12%. (Previous year 12%) and are repayable on

demand. The unsecured loan holders have given their consent regarding waiver o nterest for Financial Year 2024-

25, on their unsecured loan except for two parties for whom interest provision is made. No provision has been

made for the waived interest portion.

 Working Capital Loan from Indian Overseas Bank is repayable on demand and is secured by way of lien over 

Term Deposits and further Personal Guarantee of Managing /Wholetime Directors. It carries interest rate of 7.15% 

p.a. (Previous Year 7.71%). 

Secured against Mortgage of Unit No 401 and 402, 4th oor, X-cube,

Mumbai, property owned by Promoters and their Relatives, of the

holding Company,  

 Repayable in 176 months from the date of 

rst disbursement. Interest 9.55%(P.Y. 

9.80%) 

6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares  

NOTE 16

PROVISIONS

Particulars

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

STProvision for Employee Benets 33.89                      29.28                   22.36                   20.81
                      

Total 33.89                      29.28                   22.36                   20.81
                      

Non-Current Current

(In Rupees Lacs) 
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NOTE 17

TRADE PAYABLES

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Outstanding due of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 28(e)) 10.98                   6.44

                        

TPOutstanding due of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 

 

                638.09                     640.08 

Total 649.07                 646.52

                    

Trade Payables aging schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

As at 

31 March 2025

i) MSME

 

                     10.98 

 

                        -   

 

                        -                              -   

 

                  10.98 

(ii) Others

 

                   592.31 

 

                  16.30 

 

                  29.48                            -   

 

                638.09 

Total                  603.29                 16.30                  29.48                          -                  649.07 

Trade Payables aging schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years
2-3 years

More than 3 

years

As at 

31 March 2024

i) MSME

 

                       6.44 

 

                    6.44 

(ii) Others

 

                   352.94 

 

                  83.90 

 

                  50.90                     152.34 

 

                640.08 

Total                  359.38                 83.90                  50.90                  152.34                646.52 

NOTE 18

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

OLUnclaimed Dividends*

 

                    1.26                         1.26 

Total 1.26                     1.26

                        

NOTE 19

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

OLContract Liabilities (Revenue received in advance)

 

             1,534.54                  1,240.27 

OLStatutory Dues

 

                173.33                     109.96 

Employee Benefits Payable

 

                  93.87                       64.29 

OLOthers

 

             1,357.73                  1,003.73 

OL Total 3,159.47              2,418.26

                 

Movement of contract liabilities is as under ;
As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

As at beginning of the year 1,240.27              91.76

                      

*Unclaimed Dividend of Rs. 0.62 Lacs for the nancial years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 required to be transferred to the Investor  Education 

and Protection Fund is pending to be transferred

(In Rupees Lacs) 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars

During the year ended 31st March, 2025, the Company recognised Revenue of Rs. 81.64/- Lacs ( Previous year Rs. 79.90 Lacs) aris ing from 

opening unearned revenue (contract liabilities).

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Current

Particulars

Current

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Recognised as  revenue from contracts with customers (81.64)                 (79.90)

                    

Advance from customers received during the year 375.91                 1,228.41

                 

                 

Balance at the close of the year 1,534.54              1,240.27



NOTE 20
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 

RO Income from Property Development               5,923.91               4,488.22 

Income from Sale of Shop                          -                      92.00 

Other Operating Revenues:

OI Maintenance and other Charges 231.63                  174.82 

6,155.54              4,755.04              

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows: (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

Gross Sales (Contracted Price)               5,923.91               4,488.22 

Reductions towards variable consideration                          -                            -   

5,923.91              4,488.22              

NOTE 21
OTHER INCOME (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

OIInterest Income 96.85                    94.39 

Dividend Income on Current Investments 0.00                      0.14 

OINet Gain on Sale of Investments classied as FVTPL 2.40                      4.64 

2.90                    36.83 

OI 7.06                      1.73 

109.21                 137.73                 

NOTE 22
COST OF DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

COCost of Development Rights / Land acquistion                          -                 1,082.27 

COConstruction and Direct Cost 4543.66               2,403.47 

Administration and General Expenses 120.74                  140.02 

COBorrowing Costs 2.46                  474.96 

4,666.86              4,100.73              

Miscellenous Income

Total

Revenue recognised

Net Gain on Fair Value Changes on Financial Assets classied as FVTPL

The management determines that the segment information reported is sufcient to meet the disclosure objective

with respect to disaggregation of revenue under Ind AS 115 Revenue from contract with Customers. Hence, no

seperate disclosures of disaggregated revenues are reported.(Refer Note 28(d))

Total

Total
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NOTE 23

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

AND STOCK-IN-TRADE (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
 Year Ended

31 March 2025 

 Year Ended

31 March 2024 

Closing Stock:

     Finished Goods 355.04 355.04                 

     Work-in-Progress 5513.44 5,677.64              

5,868.48              6,032.69              

Less:  Opening Stock:

     Finished Goods 355.04 355.04                 

     Work-in-Progress 5462.39 5,429.01              

5,817.44              5,784.05              

(51.05)                 (248.63)               

NOTE 24
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

  
Particulars

 Year Ended

31 March 2025 

Year Ended

31 March 2024

EBSalaries and Wages 118.46                    34.44 

EB Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Other Funds 7.01                      7.87 

EB Staff Welfare Expenses 0.91                      3.69 

Total 126.38                 46.00                   

NOTE 25

FINANCE COSTS (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
 Year Ended

31 March 2025 

Year Ended

31 March 2024

INInterest on Loans and Deposits 88.88                  417.58 

INInterest on Working Capital Facilities 160.52                  196.21 

Other Borrowing Costs;

     Interest on Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments

44.62

                   41.04 

IN Others 0.11                    10.12 

294.13                 664.95                 

 Less: Amounts Capitalised to the cost of qualifying assets (2.46)                   (448.04)               

291.67                 216.91                 

Total

(In Rupees Lacs) 
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NOTE 26

OTHER EXPENSES (In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2025

Year Ended

31 March 2024

Power and Fuel 10.25 7.51
                   

Legal & Professional Charges 24.92 17.02

                 

Rent (Refer Note 28(f)) 22.91 12.00

                 

Rates and Taxes 69.72 2.69

                   

Insurance 23.42 16.98

                 

Printing and Stationery 7.76 4.38

                   

Repairs and Renewals:
Buildings 167.91 90.66

                 

Compensation to Tenant 124.66 -

                    

Travelling and Conveyance 1.27 4.27

                   

E3Communication Expenses 1.21 1.35

                   

Auditors' Remuneration: -

                    

Audit fee 2.30 2.50

                   

Tax Audit fee 0.75 0.75

                   

Other Services 1.25 1.25

                   

4.30

                     

4.50

                   

Sales Promtotion Expenses 0.07 0.33

                   

Donation 9.82 -

                    

Commission 4.05 5.00

                   

1Bank Charges 0.98 0.77

                   

GST Expense 29.35 -

                    

Interest paid on Statutory Dues 4.15 6.93

                   

Miscellaneous Expenses 89.81 85.12

                 

Total 596.58

                 

259.53
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NOTE 27

A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The group's net debt to equity ratios are as follows:

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Interest bearing Loans and Borrowings 5,085.45                  4,052.30

                  

Less:  Cash and Short Term Deposits 589.74                     819.83

                     

Net Debt 5,675.19                  4,872.13

                  

Equity 344.50                     344.50

                     

Other Equity 1,426.50                  1,070.43

                  

Total Capital 1,771.00                  1,414.93

                  

Capital and Net Debt 7,446.19                  6,287.06

                  

Net Debt to Equity Ratio 76.22% 77.49%

B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

i) Market Risk

Interest Rate Risks

Exposure to interest rate risk

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

Fixed-rate Instruments                             -                               -   

Borrowings                   9,105.33                   8,482.07 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for xed-rate instruments

Commodity Price Risk

The group does not account for any xed-rate nancial assets or nancial liabilities at fair value through prot or loss. Therefore, a change in

interest rates at the reporting date would not affect prot or loss.

The group's activities are exposed to steel and cement price risks and therefore its overall risk management program focuses on the volatile nature

of the steel and cement market, thus seeking to minimize potential adverse effects on the group's nancial performance on account of such

volatility.

The Board reviews risk management policies.

Foreign Currency Risks

Currency risk is not material, as the group's primary business activities are within India and does not have signicant exposure in foreign

currency.

The group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at xed rates exposes to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate
prole of the group's interest-bearing nancial instruments as reported to the management of the group is as follows.

For the purpose of group's Capital Management, capital includes Issued Equity Capital, Securities Premium, and all other Equity Reserves

attributable to the Equity Holders of the group.  The primary objective of the group's Capital Management is to maximise the Share Holder Value.

The group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and requirements of the nancial

covenants and to continue as a going concern. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the dividend payment to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 
The group monitors capital using a ratio of 'Net Debt' to 'Equity'. For this purpose, net debt is dened as total borrowings less Cash and Bank

Balances and Other Current Investments.

The group’s principal nancial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these nancial liabilities
is to nance the operations of the group. The principal nancial assets include trade and other receivables, investments in mutual funds and cash
and short term deposits.
The group has assessed market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk to its nancial liabilities.

Market Risk is the risk o oss of future earnings, fair values or cash ows that may result from a change in the price of a nancial instrument, as a

result o nterest rates, foreign exchange rates and other price risks. Financial instruments affected by market risks, primarily include loans &

borrowings, investments and foreign currency receivables, payables and borrowings.

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate or cash ow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values
of xed interest bearing investments because of uctuations in the interest rate. Cash ow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash ows of
oating interest bearing investments will uctuate because of uctuations in the interest rates.
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ii) Credit Risk

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2025 

 As at 

31 March 2024 

More than 6 months                      901.59                   1,177.29 

Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a nancial instrument fails to meet its contrac,tual obligations

and arises principally from the group's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.

The carrying amount of following nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables

The group's exposure to credit risk is inuenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However credit risk with regards to
trade receivable is almost negligible in case of its residential sale business as the same is done to the fact that in case of its residential sell business
it does not handover possession till entire outstanding is received.

Others                   3,206.37                      528.80 

                  4,107.96                   1,706.09 

iii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difculty in meeting the obligations associated with its nancial liabilities that are settled by

delivering cash or another nancial asset. The group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufcient

liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking

damage to the group's reputation.

The group holds cash and cash equivalents with banks which are having highest safety rankings and hence has a low credit risk.

The amounts reected in the table above are not impaired as on the reporting date.

Investments in Debt Securities Loans to Related Parties and Project Deposits

The group has investments in mutual funds and project deposits. The settlement of such instruments is linked to the completion of the respective

underlying projects. Such Financial Assets are not impaired as on the reporting date.

Cash and Bank balances

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash ows. This monitoring includes nancial

ratios and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

The group has access to funds from debt markets through bank loan, commercial papers, xed deposits from public and other debt instruments.

The group invests its surplus funds in bank xed deposit and debt based mutual funds

The ageing of trade receivbles is as follows:

NOTE 27

A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Contd.)

Exposure to Liquidity Risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of nancial liabilities at the reporting date.

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Total
Within 12 

months
1-2 years 2-5 years

More than 5 

years

Financial Liabilities

Non Current

Borrowings 5,085.45            5,085.45            1,105.46            150.34               3,230.25                  599.40             

Current

Borrowings 1,004.99            1,004.99            1,004.99            

Trade Payables 649.07               649.07               649.07               

Other Current Financial Liabilities 1.26                   1.26                   1.26                   

March 31, 2025
Carrying 

Amount

Contractual cash flows



Borrowings 4,052.30            4,052.30            1,119.70            470.54               1,826.27                  635.79             

Current

Borrowings 2,932.60            2,932.60            2,932.60            -                     -                           -                   

Trade Payables 646.52               646.52               646.52               -                     -                           -                   

Other Current Financial Liabilities 1.26                   1.26                   1.26                   -                     -                           -                   

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Total
Within 12 

months
1-2 years 2-5 years

More than 5 

years

Financial Liabilities

Non Current

March 31, 2024
Carrying 

Amount

Contractual cash ows

C. Fair Values and Hierarchy

(In Rupees Lacs)

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Financial Assets

- Investments 259.04                   94.84                     

Fair value of nancial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost (In Rupees Lacs)

As at 

31 March 2025

As at 

31 March 2024

Financial Assets

Loans 836.96                   100.58                   

Security Deposits 136.96                   161.42                   

Interest Accrued on Loans and Deposits 47.97                     40.91                     

Bank Deposits 1,355.61                854.81                   

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 10,435.18              9,820.60                

Level 1: This includes nancial instruments measured using quoted prices. The fair value of all mutual funds is valued using 

the closing NAV as at the reporting period

Particulars

Fair Value/Carrying Value

The carrying amounts of Trade Receivables, Cash and cash Equivalents, Bank balances other than Cash and Cash 
Equivalents, Other Receivables, Trade Payables and Unclaimed Dividend are considered to be the same as their fair values 

due to the current and short-term nature of such balances.

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the nancial instruments that are 
a) recognised and measured at fair value and b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair 

value, the Company has classied its nancial instruments into the three levels prescribed in the Indian Accounting 
Standard.

Level One

Particulars Hierarchy

Fair Value/Carrying Value
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NOTE 28

ADDITION INFORMATION/EXPLANATIONS

a)

b)

c)

Particulars
For the year ended 31-

March-2025

For the year ended 31-

March-2024

Prot after Tax Rs. Lakhs 344.07                            132.14                           

Weignted Number of Equity Shares (Face Value Rs.10/-) Nos. 3,247,900                       3,247,900                      

Earnings per share - Basic Rs. 10.59                              4.07                               

Earnings per share - Diluted Rs. 10.59                              4.07                               

d)

(i)Entity wide disclosure required by Ind AS 108 are as detailed below:

 For the year ended 31-

March-2025 

 For the year ended 31-

March-2024 

Real Estate Development & Services                          6,155.54                          4,755.04 

                         6,155.54                          4,755.04 

(ii)  Revenue from External Customers:

India                          6,155.54                          4,755.04 

Outside India                                     -                                      -   

                         6,155.54                          4,755.04 

(iii)  Non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets and nancial instruments)

India                          1,576.39                             897.76 

Outside India                                     -                                      -   

                         1,576.39                             897.76 

(iv) Transactions with single external customer which amounts to 10% or more of the Company's Revenue. 

 For the year ended 31-

March-2025 

 For the year ended 31-

March-2024 

Bajaj Alliance Life Insurance Co Ltd 318.49                            307.16

Bajaj Alliance General Insurance Co Ltd 440.39                            424.72

Note:-

e) Disclosures under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED'):

(In Rupees Lacs) 

 For the year ended 31-

March-2025 

 For the year ended 31-

March-2024 

(i)  Principal amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the accounting year                                                        6  . 4  4      10.98

f) The Group’s leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for ofce permises.  The leasing arrangements are for one year, and are usually renewable by 

mutual consent on agreed terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as rent.

Note: Other  information/ disclosures relating to payments made beyond appointed date, interest accrued and paid and cumulative intrest are not applicable, being 

NIL.

The details of liabilities to Micro and Small Enterprises, to the extent information available with the Group are given under. This has been relied upon by the auditors

(I) The Group is engaged interalia in the "Real Estate Development and Services". These in the context of Ind AS 108 " Operating Segment" are considered to constitute
one single primary segment. The Group does not have any operations outside India. Hence disclosure as envisaged in the Accounting Standard is not required. Nonreportable
segments have not been disclosed as unallocated reconciling item in view of their materiality. In view of the above, primary and secondary reporting

Disclosures under Ind AS 108 - ""Operating Segment" 

The Notes to these consolidated financial statements are disclosed to the extent necessary for presenting a true and fair view of the consolidated fin

statements, as claried vide Circular No.39/2014 dated 14th October,2014.

Consolidated Employee benet disclosures are not materially different from the employee benet disclosures of the standalone nancial statements of the
Company.

Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted)

disclosures for business/geographical segment are not applicable.
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NOTE 28

ADDITION INFORMATION/EXPLANATIONS

g) Related party disclosures ( As per Ind AS 24: Related Party Disclosures) :

(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship where control exists are as under:

Key Management Personnel: Mr. Deepak Chheda - Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Harish Nisar - Whole-Time Director

Mr. Rohit Dedhia -  Whole-Time Director

Mr. Yogesh Shah - Independent Director

Mr. Vatsal Shah - Independent Director

Mr. Rohan Chheda - Chief Financial Ofce

Ms.Srushti Raghani (Upto 13.07.2023)

Ms.Jyoti Singh (Upto 5.11.2024)

Ms.Riddhi Mahendra Soni (From 17.01.2025)

Relatives of Key Management  Personnel: Ms. Grima Dedhia (Daughter of Mr. Rohit Dedhia)

Mr. Prerak Dedhia (Son of Mr.Rohit Dedhia)

Mrs.Krupa Chheda (Wife of Mr. Deepak Chheda)

Mr. Keshavji Dedhia (Father of Mr. Rohit Dedhia)

Mrs. Jaywanti Dedhia (Mother of Mr. Rohit Dedhia)

Mr. Mehul Nisar - (Son of Harish Nisar)

Mrs. Geeta Rohit Dedhia ( Wife of Rohit K Dedhia)

M/s. RDH Infraspaces (Formerly known as Rodium Realty & Construction)

M/s. C N A Architects

M/s. Sigma Fiscals Pvt Ltd

Uniwood Systems 

Uniwood Systems LLP

ARH Interior

b) Transactions and outstanding with related parties (excluding reimbursements) (In Rupees Lacs) 

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

i) Subsidiary Company

Investment made during the year

Share of Loss in LLP

Interest received

Other receivable

i) Key Management Personnel:

Remuneration

Directors 108.00 96.00 75.04                  55.16

                       Retirement Benets 4.39                    4.48 49.59                  45.20

                       Chief Financial Ofcer 25.06                  23.10                  1.95                    1.63

                         Company Secretary 3.82                    4.99                    0.45                    0.45

                         
Outstanding Interest paid

Directors -                      -                      480.97                488.97

                     
Expenses on Rent, Fees and Charges.

Directors 14.40                  14.40                  41.38                  45.94

                       
Chief Financial Ofcer

Loan Taken /(Returned) (Net)

Directors 53.50                  168.50                1,470.94             1,536.95

                  
Chief Financial Ofcer 4.00                    84.00                  80.00

                       
Sale of Flat

Directors -                   -                   0.63

                      
Insurance

Directors 20.58 -                   -

                        

ii) Relatives of Key Management  Personnel:

Remuneration -                      -

                          
Service Received 18.2                    13.2                    18.19                  25.45

                       
Deposit Received -                      33.25                  35.00

                       
Sale of Flat (Unbilled) 56.93                  719.91                112.28                55.35

                       

Cancellation of Flat 45.00                  -                      -

                          

Expenses on Rent, Fees and Charges. 2.40                    2.40                    9.87                    9.13

                         

Interest Payable -                      31.77                  31.77

                       iii) Companies/Firms in which Directors and relatives of Directors are interested:

Service Received 134.98                20.90                  11.44                  2.77

                         

Sale of Shop -                      -

                          

Sale of Flat 40.20                  110.55                103.03                62.83

                       

Expenses on Rent, Fees and Charges. 7.20                    7.20                    14.71                  22.82

                       

Interest Payable -                      126.75                126.75

                     

Loan Taken /(Returned) (Net)                     4.00                         -   443.76                447.76

                     

Cancellation of Flat/Shop 12.20                  11.59                  11.59

                       

Unsecured Loans from Directors carries interest @ 12%. (Previous year 12%) and are repayable on demand. The Directors have given their consent 

regarding waiver of interest for Financial Year 2023-24, on their unsecured loan

Companies/Firms in which Directors and 

relatives of Directors are interested:

Particulars Transactions Outstanding (Payable)/Receivable

Advance Given 43.25                  53.25

                       
c) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties;

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-

end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group has not recorded  any impairment of 

receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2024: Rs. Nil). This assessment is undertaken each nancial year through examining 

the nancial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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NOTE 28

h) Commitment

(i) Uncalled amount of Rs.Nil (Previous Year: Rs 4,500 ) on Nil Units (Previous year 250 units) of Kotak India Growth Fund - Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.11.25 Lacs)

j)  As at 

31 March 

2025 

 As at 

31 March 

2024 
5.00                 5.00                 

i) Additional information on Net Assets and Share of Prot as at 31st March, 2025

As % of net 

Prot
Amount (Rs.)

Parent

 - Rodium Realty Limited 94.10% 1,666.57                       80.81% 278.04                          

Parent Subsidiaries

Indian

Rodium Housing LLP 5.57% 98.72                         -97.72% (336.24)                         

81 Estates LLP 15.50% 274.58                      -0.01% (0.02)                             

Readystage LLP 0.43% 7.69                           -0.01% (0.04)                             

Fluid Reality LLP 20.93% 370.62                      186.37% 641.25                          

Xperia Reality LLP 0.06% 1.01                           0.00% -                                

Foreign

Rodium Digital Inc. 4.65% 82.39                         -2.95% (10.16)                           

Minority Interest

Indian Subsidiaries 157.21                      76.24                            

k)

l)

m)

n)

i
ii

o)

i
ii

p)

For Rodium Realty Limited

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants                                        Deepak Chheda Rohit Dedhia

FRN 101174W Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00419447 DIN: 02716686

Vasant Gala

Partner                                                                 Riddhi Mahendra Soni Rohan Chheda

Mem.No.  037626 Company Secretary Chief Financial Ofcer

Mumbai, Dated 30th May, 2025 A35252

Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneciaries) or

Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneciaries

Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneciaries) or

Provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneciaries.

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

Share in prot or loss

(ii) During the year 2014-15, the Holding Company had entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with one of the vendors for Purchase of Transfer of Development

Rights (TDR) to be used in the Holding Company’s upcoming projects. The Holding Company had paid Rs. 2.28 Crores to the said vendor as advance as per the MOU. The party

was unable to fulll its commitment as envisaged in the MOU even after repeated reminders by the Holding Company. The Holding Company has initiated the legal process for

recovering the advance paid due to the breach of contract and fraud conducted on the Holding Company. Pending outcome of the legal process, the amount paid has been reected

under Short Term Loans and Advances.

As % of 

consolidated 

net assets

Amount (Rs.)

Name of the entity

Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus 

total liabilities

The Group did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies A

nancial year.

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the nancial year.

Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees given 

The Group has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries), other than mentioned in the nancial

statements, with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-
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